
CITY OF ELKHORN 
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

May 20, 2024  ~  5:30 p.m. or later,  
depending upon the conclusion of the COW meeting  

Council Chambers, City Administration Offices, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

1) Call to Order
2) Pledge of Allegiance
3) Roll Call
4) Public Comment Public comments are limited to three minutes each. The public may speak on any item of

City concern whether or not the topic is included on this agenda. However, if the topic does not pertain to an
item listed on the Council agenda, the Council is not permitted to address or discuss the matter during this
meeting. Under open meeting laws, the Council must notice an item on the agenda to allow discussion on
that matter. If Council is not permitted to discuss your concerns, your comments will be considered and may
be placed on a future agenda for further discussion.

5) Consent Agenda (One motion & a second will approve all of the following items listed. Any item may be
pulled from the list and handled separately.)
a) Meeting Minutes: Human Resources May 1 & 16, 2024; Committee of the Whole and Common

Council May 6, 2024 and Public Safety May 9, 2024
b) Pay Request No. 1 from Rock Road Companies for the NE WTP Sewer & Water Extensions

project in the amount of $290,784.78
6) Bills Payable

a) Consideration and recommendation to pay
7) Report of City Officers

a) Mayor
i) Recognition of Municipal Court Clerk Claudia Last for 14 years of service
ii) Swearing in of Interim City Attorney Elaine S. Ekes
iii) Swearing in of Fire Chief Trent Eichmann
iv) Consider Candidates for District I Aldermanic Vacancy

b) City Administrator
8) Reports of City Boards and Community Partners

a) Fire Advisory
b) Library
c) Recreation Advisory
d) Chamber of Commerce
e) Community Grant Writer

9) Committee Reports
a) Human Resources
b) Committee of the Whole
c) Public Safety

10) Presentation
a) Karl Sorvick, Recreation Director

i) Elkhorn Community Band Shell: History and restoration efforts
11) Unfinished Business



P a g e  | 2 
 

a) Discussion and possible decision regarding the Temporary Class “B” Beer license application for 
the Walworth County Agricultural Society at the Walworth County Fairgrounds event -
Professional Champion Bull Riding on July 5 & 6, 2024; 5:00 – 10:00 pm and review the event 
emergency plan  

b) Discussion and possible decision regarding execution of a revised agreement with Visu-Sewer, 
LLC for the 2024 Sewer Rehabilitation Project in the amount of $774,933.75 

12) New Business 
a) Discussion and possible decision regarding whether to direct the city attorney to draft a 

proposed ordinance opting out of the state code revision allowing establishments who hold a 
Class “B”, “Class B” or “Class C” license to offer extended closing hours (between 4:00 a.m. and 
6:00 a.m.) for the National Political Convention   

b) Discussion and possible decision regarding conditional use permit for JRS Holding to operate a 
transportation facility (in the form of bulk material trucking) at 702 Nathan Lane 

c) Discussion and possible decision regarding issuing proposed request for proposals (RFP) for 
needs analysis/study of fire station  

d) Discussion and possible decision regarding recommendations from Human Resources 
Committee regarding City employee health insurance plan for 2024-2025  
i) Change broker from Rathsack & Associates to Galagher Insurance, Risk Management & 

Consulting (effective immediately)  
ii) Standardize health reimbursement arrangement for employees so that all employees 

receive $500 (as opposed to previous split of $500 for single employees and $1,000 for 
employees with families)(starting January 1, 2025)  

iii) Increase amount employees can contribute to flexible spending account from $2,200 in 
2024 to $3,200 in 2025 (starting January 1, 2025) 

iv) Collect monthly premium of 1% of expected plan cost for employees with additional plan 
participants (i.e., children or spouses)(starting January 1, 2025)  

13) Adjourn into Closed Session 
a) Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION 

pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) to consider the employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 
i) Discussion regarding compensation for newly appointed Fire Chief Trent Eichmann  

b) Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c)—to consider the employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility—and pursuant to 19.85(1)(f)—to 
consider financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, 
preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against 
specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse 
effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in 
such problems or investigations.   
i)  Discussion regarding findings from investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 2024 

14) Reconvene in Open Session for possible action on Closed Session items 
The Common Council shall RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION reserving the right to take action on 
the matters discussed in CLOSED SESSION and to move to the remaining meeting agenda(s) as 
posted.   



P a g e  | 3 
 

a) Discussion and possible decision regarding compensation for newly appointed Fire Chief Trent 
Eichmann 

b) Discussion and possible decision regarding findings from investigation ordered by Council on 
January 3, 2024 

15) Adjourn  
 
DATED at Elkhorn, Wisconsin, this 17th day of May 2024  

 
Rebeca Perez, Deputy City Clerk  

 
Should you have any questions or comments regarding any items on this agenda, please contact the City Clerk’s office at 
(262) 723-2219. Upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids and services. 
 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Human Resources Committee Minutes 

Council Chambers, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

May 1, 2024 
 

The Human Resources Committee meeting was called to order at 10:45 a.m. by Alderperson McClory 
followed by Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Alderpersons Scott McClory, Ron Dunwiddie and Gary Payson Jr. 
Also present: Mayor Tim Shiroda, Administrator Adam Swann, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Human Resources 
Generalist Kacey Keogh, Police Chief Joel Christensen, Director of Public Works Matthew Lindstrom, 
Finance Director Corrie Daly, Recreation Director Karl Sorvick, Library Director Chad Robinson, Utility Field 
Office Coordinator Dawn Gall, Water Superintendent Tim Boss, Electric Superintendent BZ Kayser, Theresa 
Boeger.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding employee health insurance plan for 2024-2025 plan year. City 
Administrator Adam Swann gave a brief overview of the financial status of the city’s health insurance fund. 
Swann noted the health insurance costs have increased significantly over the past few years. Human 
Resources Generalist Kacey Keogh reviewed various options for employee health insurance. Discussion 
took place, the committee recessed from 11:55 am – 12:07 pm for city staff to update and provide more 
information regarding premium amounts then discussion continued. Motion (Dunwiddie/Payson Jr.) to 
recommend a 1.75% premium and standardize the HRA amount for all employees to $500. Voice vote, all 
approved, motion carried.  
 
Adjourn: Motion (Dunwiddie/Payson Jr.) to adjourn at 12:15 p.m. 
 
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Committee of the Whole Minutes 

Common Council Chambers, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

May 6, 2024 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order by Council President Payson Jr. at 4:45 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Alderpersons Gary Payson Jr., Ron Dunwiddie, Scott McClory, Ken Meinel, Kurt Harkness and 
Mayor Tim Shiroda.  
Others present: Administrator Adam Swann, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Director of Public Works Matthew 
Lindstrom, Safe Built and Willdan Representatives. 
 
Interviews of firms that submitted proposals for building-inspection services in response to the City’s RFP.  
Council President Payson Jr. asked questions of the SAFE Built representative regarding his firm, inspectors 
on staff, communication with residents, staff, contractors and other customers, prior litigation issues, and 
improving processes. Council President Payson Jr. asked the same questions of the Willdan representative 
regarding his firm, inspectors on staff, communication with residents, staff, contractors and other 
customers, prior litigation issues, and improving processes.    
 
Closed Session: The Committee of the Whole may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION pursuant 
to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(e) in order to conduct specified public business, whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require. The Committee of the Whole may also entertain a motion to go 
into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to 19.85(1)(f) to consider financial, medical, social or personal histories of 
specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the 
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or 
investigations. Review and discuss the proposals for building inspection services. Motion 
(Dunwiddie/Harkness) to adjourn into closed session. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. Adjourn into 
closed session at 5:05 pm. 
 
Reconvene in open session for possible action on closed session items at 5:25 pm. Motion 
(Dunwiddie/Harkness) to reconvene in open session. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
The Common Council shall RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION reserving the right to take action on the 
matters discussed in CLOSED SESSION and to move to the remaining meeting agenda(s) as posted. 
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposals for building-inspection services. Motion 
(McClory/Dunwiddie) to direct staff to negotiate with Safe Built Inspection Services. Roll call vote: McClory, 
yes; Dunwiddie, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes; Payson Jr., yes. Motion carried. 
 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Harkness) to adjourn at 5:27 pm. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk 



 
CITY OF ELKHORN COMMON COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES 
May 6, 2024 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 311 SEYMOUR CT., ELKHORN, WI 53121 
 
The Common Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Shiroda at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:   Mayor Tim Shiroda, Alderpersons Gary Lee Payson Jr., Ron Dunwiddie, Scott McClory, Ken 
Meinel, Kurt Harkness.  
Others present: City Administrator Adam Swann, Attorney Elaine Ekes, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Police 
Chief Joel Christensen, Director of Public Works Matthew Lindstrom, Interim Fire Chief Trent Eichmann, 
Finance Director Corrie Daly, Utility Field Office Coordinator Dawn Gall, City Engineer Mike Timmers, other 
interested persons. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Dennis Karbowski and Chris Clapper spoke about ATV’s and UTV’s. John Henderson informed the Council 
he is in attendance as a representative for the Walworth County Food and Diaper Bank.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion (Payson Jr./McClory) to approve the Common Council Meeting Minutes from April 16, 2024 and the 
Beekeeping Permit Application for Javan Wehmeier at 147 N. Water Crest Ct. Voice vote, all approved, 
motion carried. 
 
Alderperson Payson Jr. requested these items be postponed and the fairgrounds submit a safety plan. 
Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to postpone to a later date of May 20, 2024 the temporary Class “B” Beer 
licenses for the Walworth County Agricultural Society at the Walworth County Fairgrounds, Bull Riding on 
July 5 & 6, 2024; 4:00 pm -11:00 pm and July 7, 2024; 1:00 pm - 9:00 pm and temporary Class “B” Beer 
license for the Walworth County Agricultural Society at the Walworth County Fairgrounds, Taco Fest on July 
20, 2024; 11:00 am – 11:00 pm and July 21, 2024; 11:00 am - 9:00 pm. Voice vote, all approved, motion 
carried. 
 
REPORT OF CITY OFFICERS 
MAYOR’S REPORT  
Mayoral Appointments - Boards, Commissions & Liaisons 
Police and Fire Commissioners: Craig Rasmussen – member 
Board of Appeals: Tom Stotko, Gary Welsh, James Boardman, Julie Taylor – members 
Historic Preservation Commission: James Boardman - Plan Commission member, Julie Taylor, John 
Gunyon, Lisa Brellenthin, Gary Welsh, Jean Carroll - Citizen members 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Meinel) to approve the mayoral appointments listed above. Voice vote, all approved, 
motion carried.  
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Administrator Swann reported grading work began at the Creekside 
Community Development, Electric Department staff member Nathan Porter completed his 4-year 
apprenticeship and is now a journeyman, the NEWTP project began and Cobb Rd. should be open by May 
17th. Structures were removed from the City’s new parcel on HWY 67 and letters of interest for the District 
1 alderperson vacancy are due by May 15th. Director of Public Works Matthew Lindstrom shared an update 
on Centralia phase 2 and the HWY 11 closing. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion and possible decision regarding amending 2024 budget to increase EEDA grant funds available 
by $32,546.75, which is the amount of unused EEDA grant funds in 2022-2023. Motion (Payson 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 2 
 

 

Jr./McClory) to approve amending the 2024 budget to increase EEDA grant funds available by $32,546.75, 
which is the amount of unused EEDA grant funds in 2022-2023. Roll call vote: Payson Jr., yes; McClory, yes; 
Dunwiddie, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes. Motion carried.  

 
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Resolution No. 24-11: A Resolution Approving the 
Engagement Agreement with Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C., as the Interim City Attorney for the City of Elkhorn. 
Motion (Meinel/McClory) to approve Resolution No. 24-11: A Resolution Approving the Engagement 
Agreement with Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C., as the Interim City Attorney for the City of Elkhorn. Voice vote, 
all approved, motion carried.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Ordinance No. 24-04: An Ordinance Amending 
Section 1.03(2)(h)1 of the City of Elkhorn Municipal Code regarding the Appointment of the City Attorney 
and other Attorneys [first and possible second reading]. Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to waive the first 
reading of Ordinance No. 24-04: An Ordinance Amending Section 1.03(2)(h)1 of the City of Elkhorn 
Municipal Code regarding the Appointment of the City Attorney and other Attorneys. Voice vote, all 
approved, motion carried. Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve Ordinance No. 24-04: An Ordinance 
Amending Section 1.03(2)(h)1 of the City of Elkhorn Municipal Code regarding the Appointment of the City 
Attorney and other Attorneys with the delegation wording to include Mayor and/or Administrator. Voice 
vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding request for proposals for city attorney. Motion (Payson 
Jr./Harkness) to approve the request for proposals for city attorney. Voice vote, all approved, motion 
carried.   
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Resolution 24-12: A Resolution Approving an 
Interfund Loan from the City Electric Fund to Tax Incremental District #4. Motion (Dunwiddie/Meinel) to 
approve Resolution 24-12: A Resolution Approving an Interfund Loan from the City Electric Fund to Tax 
Incremental District #4. Roll call vote: Dunwiddie, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes; McClory, yes; Payson Jr., 
yes. Motion carried.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding the Conditional Use Permit for Outdoor dining located at 1 N 
Lincoln Street. Motion (Meinel/Harkness) to approve the Conditional Use Permit for Outdoor dining located 
at 1 N. Lincoln Street. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding City participation in “No Mow” May [requested by Alderman 
Harkness]. Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) not to approve City participation in “No Mow” May. Roll call 
vote: Payson Jr., yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, no. Motion carried 4-1.  
 
Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate on offers to purchase public property for Lot 72 (Tax 
Key YA 396900001). Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED 
SESSION pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c)—to consider the employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the governmental 
body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility—and pursuant to 19.85(1)(f)—to consider financial, 
medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of 
specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons which, if discussed in 
public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to 
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations to review of findings from 
investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 2024.  Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a 
motion to go into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) to consider the 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 3 
 

 

employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over 
which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility for conducting annual 
performance review of City Administrator Adam Swann. Motion (Payson Jr./Harkness) to adjourn to closed 
session. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. Adjourned to closed session at 5:59 p.m.  
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION  
Reconvened in open session at 6:29 pm.  
The Common Council shall RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION reserving the right to take action on the 
matters discussed in CLOSED SESSION and to move to the remaining meeting agenda(s) as posted. 
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding offer to purchase public property, Lot 72 (Tax Key YA 
396900001). Motion (McClory/Dunwiddie) to accept the offer subject to the right of first refusal under the 
City’s standard policy and subject to review by the city attorney of the form contract. Voice vote, all 
approved, motion carried. 
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding findings from investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 
2024. Motion (Payson Jr./Harkness) to receive and file. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
   
Discussion and possible decision regarding results of performance review of City Administrator Adam 
Swann. Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve the step increase that was discussed in closed session. 
Roll call vote: Payson Jr., yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes. Motion carried.  
 
ADJOURN 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Harkness) to adjourn at 6:33 p.m. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
  
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk  



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Public Safety Committee Minutes 

Council Chambers, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

May 9, 2024 
 

Public Safety Committee was called to order at 10:45 a.m. by Alderman Dunwiddie followed by 
roll call. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Alderpersons Ron Dunwiddie, Kurt Harkness and Gary Lee Payson Jr. 
Also Present: Mayor Tim Shiroda, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Deputy City Clerk Rebeca Perez, 
Police Chief Joel Christensen, Human Resources Generalist Kacey Keogh 
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding Personal Appearance Standards. Police Chief 
Christensen informed the committee that currently the Police Department does not allow facial 
hair other than a mustache or tattoos. The department and PFC are looking to update the 
policies. Christensen asked the committee how they want the officers to present. Discussion 
took place regarding facial hair and length, tattoos and the location. Christensen added there 
will be a draft to review in the near future.   
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding Police Department Policy Update Officer-Involved 
Shootings and Deaths #306. Police Chief Christensen shared the update is still in progress and 
there are two other policies that need to be updated along with this section. Christensen added 
the department had a training yesterday regarding this topic.  
 
Adjourn 
Motion (Payson Jr./Harkness) to adjourn at 11:01 am. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk 
 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Human Resources Committee Minutes 

Council Chambers, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

May 16, 2024 
 

The Human Resources Committee meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m. by Alderperson McClory 
followed by Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Alderpersons Scott McClory, Ron Dunwiddie and Gary Payson Jr. 
Also present: Administrator Adam Swann, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Human Resources Generalist Kacey 
Keogh, Police Chief Joel Christensen, Director of Public Works Matthew Lindstrom, Utility Field Office 
Coordinator Dawn Gall, Finance Director Corrie Daly and other interested persons.  
 
Discussion and possible decision regarding employee health insurance plan for 2024-2025 plan year. 
Administrator Swann informed the committee the stop loss carrier quote came in and the numbers are 
better than expected. Swann explained the City budgets off the expected plan costs not the potential 
maximum plan costs. Swann noted this because it is affecting the solvency of the fund and there is no 
guarantee claims will not exceed the amount budgeted. HR Generalist Keogh explained the timeline is tight 
and any updates need to be approved by next week. Keogh recapped the decisions made at the last HR 
meeting on May 1st and asked if the committee wanted to change brokers, maintain what the committee 
discussed at the last meeting, retaining the current plan schedule or looking at the alternate and an opt 
out incentive. Swann added changing brokers would be in the best interest of the City. Alderperson Payson 
Jr. asked to move forward with changing brokers, keeping the current plan schedule, implementing a 1% 
cost share, keeping the $500 HRA and increasing the FSA to $3,200. Alderperson McClory recommended 
not moving forward with an opt out option at this time. Motion (Dunwiddie/Payson Jr.) to change the 
broker, add a 1% cost share for employees, retain the current plan schedule and not offer an opt out 
incentive. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
Adjournment 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Payson Jr.) to adjourn at 3:47 p.m. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk 



Owner:

Engineer:

Contractor: 

1.  ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE $2,557,000.00

2.  Net change by Change Orders $0.00

3.  Current Contract Price (Line 1 ± 2) $2,557,000.00

4.  TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE $306,089.24

5.  RETAINAGE:

a.  5% x $306,089.24 $15,304.46 Work Completed

b.  5% x $0.00 $0.00 Stored to Date

c.  Total Retainage $15,304.46

6.  AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5.c) $290,784.78

7.  LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 6 from prior Application) 0

8.  AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION $290,784.78

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE $2,281,519.68

The amount $290,784.78

Approval Signature Name Title Date

Contractor Recommendation

Foth Recommendation

5/17/2024

Village Recommendation

DNR Representative

Todd Deibert Project Manager

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

is recommended for approval for payment in accordance with the terms of the Contract.

Approved Change Order 1 $0.00 $0.00

Approved Change Order 2 $0.00 $0.00

Approved Change Order 3 $0.00 $0.00

Revised Contract Price $0.00

ADDITION SUBTRACTION

Pay Request Number 1

Date 5/16/2024

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 1

Rock Road Companies Inc.
W4814 County Highway A, Elkhorn, WI 53121

Current Contract 

Amount
2,533,204.81$                                                      

Pay Period Start - 5/10/2024

Foth Infrastructure & Environment
7044 S Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Original Contract 

Amount
2,533,204.81$                                                      

Original Contract Date 3/5/2024

Project Title NE WTP Sewer & Water Extensions

City of Elkhorn
9 S Broad St, Elkhorn, WI 53121

Owner Project No.

Engineer Project No. 0021E010.02

Raun Flowers                                Project Manager                  5/17/24

DocuSign Envelope ID: F77459D1-A3F2-432E-87DE-E8F7F735ACB8



1

Item Est. Unit Extended Quantity Value

No. Qty. Price Price Completed Completed

1 1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $144,437.00 $144,437.00 0.50 $72,218.50

2 2 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.75 $750.00

3 3 Lift Station Removal LS 1 $9,400.00 $9,400.00 0.00 $0.00

4 4 Temporary Mailboxes LS 1 $150.00 $150.00 1.00 $150.00

5 5 Erosion Control LS 1 $22,580.00 $22,580.00 0.75 $16,935.00

6 6 Restoration LS 1 $62,206.11 $62,206.11 0.00 $0.00

7 7 Traffic Control LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.25 $1,250.00

8 8 Common Excavation CY 600 $22.00 $13,200.00 313.29 $6,892.38

9 9 Stripping, Stockpiling and Respreading Topsoil LS 1 $49,600.00 $49,600.00 0.00 $0.00

10 10 Stripping, Stockpiling and Respreading Wetland Soil LS 1 $37,900.00 $37,900.00 0.00 $0.00

11 11 Dewatering LS 1 $59,900.00 $59,900.00 0.50 $29,950.00

12 12 Tree Removal LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.25 $250.00

13 13 WTP Plumbing LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0.00 $0.00

14 14 12" PVC Sanitary Sewer (<15' of Cover) LF 3,810 $110.90 $422,529.00 738.00 $81,844.20

15 15 12" PVC Sanitary Sewer (15> of Cover) LF 3,640 $177.40 $645,736.00 0.00 $0.00

16 16 Sanitary Sewer Manhole VF 405 $616.62 $249,731.10 41.83 $25,792.26

17 17 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Casting EA 26 $1,450.00 $37,700.00 0.00 $0.00

18 18 Remove and Replace Culvert Pipe (15", RCP) LF 180 $78.50 $14,130.00 0.00 $0.00

19 19 Apron Endwalls EA 8 $740.40 $5,923.20 0.00 $0.00

20 20 Remove and Replace Cuvert Pipe (15", HDPE) LF 36 $68.00 $2,448.00 0.00 $0.00

21 21 Remove and Replace Culvert Pipe (12", HDPE) LF 36 $68.00 $2,448.00 0.00 $0.00

22 22 Sawcut Pavement, Full Depth LF 45 $2.50 $112.50 0.00 $0.00

23 23 3/4" Base Aggregate Dense (Cobb Shoulders & WTP Driveway) TON 212 $28.00 $5,936.00 0.00 $0.00

24 24 1 1/4" Base Aggreate Dense (Cobb Pavement & Shoulders) TON 555 $13.90 $7,714.50 0.00 $0.00

25 25 3" Base Aggreate Dense (Cobb Pavement & Shoulders) TON 1,220 $19.40 $23,668.00 0.00 $0.00

26 26 Geogrid SY 2,130 $9.50 $20,235.00 0.00 $0.00

27 27 HMA Binder Course TON 230 $99.00 $22,770.00 0.00 $0.00

28 28 HMA Surface Cours TON 170 $96.00 $16,320.00 0.00 $0.00

29 29 Bituminous Tack Coat GAL 180 $4.00 $720.00 0.00 $0.00

30 30 Excavation Below Subgrade CY 120 $19.90 $2,388.00 0.00 $0.00

31 31 12" PVC Water Main (STA 34+24-57+33) - Bid Alt 1 LF 2,375 $104.20 $247,475.00 0.00 $0.00

32 32 6" PVC Water Main - Bid Alt 1 LF 24 $100.60 $2,414.40 0.00 $0.00

33 33 Hydrant Assembly - Bid Alt 1 EA 4 $7,200.00 $28,800.00 0.00 $0.00

34 34 12" Gate Valve and Box - Bid Alt 1 EA 6 $4,709.00 $28,254.00 0.00 $0.00

35 35 12" PVC Water Main (STA 56+60-74+92) - Bid Alt 2 LF 1,910 $111.00 $212,010.00 0.00 $0.00

36 36 12" PVC Water Main (74+92-82+91) - Bid Alt 3 LF 805 $145.80 $117,369.00 480.50 $70,056.90

Project Title

BID ITEMS

UnitDescriptionItem Code

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

NE WTP Sewer & Water Extensions

2,533,204.81$                                                                 

Date 5/16/2024

1

0021E010.02

3/5/2024

Owner Project No.

Engineer Project No.

Original Contract 

Amount
Original Contract 

Date
Current Contract 

Amount

Pay Period

Pay Request Number

2,533,204.81$                                                                 

0

Start - 5/10/2024

TOTAL $2,533,204.81 $306,089.24

c:\pw_workdir\pw_ie\fvd_tld1\d0569742\Pay Request Template - NE WTP Sewer and Water Extensions.xlsm

Pay Request Template - NE WTP Sewer and Water Extensions.xlsm

Page 1 of 1

DocuSign Envelope ID: F77459D1-A3F2-432E-87DE-E8F7F735ACB8



MEMO 
TO: Mayor Tim Shiroda  

Alderman Ronald Dunwiddie 
Alderman Kurt Harkness 
Alderman Scott McClory 
Alderman Ken Meinel 
Alderman Gary Payson, Jr.  
Alderman for District 1 (vacant) 

FROM: Adam Swann 

DATE: May 17, 2024  

RE: Common Council Meeting on May 20, 2024 

City Administrator Report 

• Interim grading permit for Creekside Community Development

Creekside Community Development provided the City with an escrow for
their interim grading permit and have started preliminary grading of the 
Creekside Community Development site. City staff and the City engineers are 
continuing to meet weekly with Creekside Community Development to review 
and discuss the specific implementation plan, which still needs to be submitted 
to the Plan Commission and Council for approval.  

• Submission of application to amend specific implementation plan for
Harvest Pointe Villas Condos

Bielinski Homes has submitted an application to amend the specific
implementation plan for Harvest Pointe Villas Condos. As Council will recall, 
Bielinski Homes had previously received approval in 2022 to construct 32 
condos near the corner of Wisconsin St. and Harvest Way. Due to economic 
changes, Bielinski Homes is proposing to reduce the size of the condos from 



2 

1,460 SF to 1,342 SF. (The Olivia 1460 condo building will be replaced with 
the Lauren 1342 building.) Their hope is to break ground this summer or fall. 

• Update re implementation of ATV/UTV ordinance

The Public Works Department has been installing the posts for the
ATV/UTV signs, and the signs will be installed starting next week. 
ATVs/UTVs will be permitted on City streets (35 mph or less) once the signs 
have been installed and the City ordinance has been published.   

The City has been advised by both the city attorney and legal counsel for 
Walworth County that the City has the right to regulate ATVs/UTVs on County 
highways within City limits and that if the City’s ordinance limits ATVs/UTVs 
to roads/highways in the City of 35 mph or less, this would apply to County 
roads. As a result, pursuant to the ATV/UTV ordinance recently passed by the 
Council, ATVs/UTVs will not be permitted on County roads in City limits 
having speed limits of greater than 35 mph.   

• Board of Review scheduled for May 22, 2024

This is a reminder that the Board of Review is scheduled for May 22, 2024
from 5:30-7:30 p.m. at the City Administration Building. This is the 
opportunity for City residents to appeal their 2024 property assessments (for 
taxes payable in 2025). Residents must contact the city assessor or city clerk at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting to schedule a hearing time. For further info, 
please contact City Clerk Lacey Reynolds or the City appraiser, Dana Remien 
of Accurate Assessor.   

• Receipt of anonymous donation for LifeVac anti-choking devices

The City has received a donation of $790.31 for the Fire Department and
Police Department to purchase 14 LifeVac devices. These devices are used to 
help babies who are choking. The donation was made anonymously by a parent 
whose baby was recently saved using one of these devices.    

• Appointment to Walworth County Workforce Housing Strategy Task
Force

I have been appointed by Walworth County to serve as one of two city
administrator representatives on the Walworth County Workforce Housing 
Strategy Task Force. According to the County resolution creating the task force, 
the purpose of the task force is “[t]o identify and develop recommendations for 
a structure and/or action steps for the County to continue to engage in 



3 
 

workforce housing promotion following completion in 2024 of the current 
County Workforce Housing Initiative as contracted with the Walworth County 
Economic Development Alliance (WCEDA).” The task force is supposed to be 
temporary and conclude by the fall.   

 
 

New Business 
 

• Discussion and possible decision regarding recommendations from 
Human Resources Committee regarding City employee health 
insurance plan for 2024-2025 
 
The City’s self-insured health plan for employees runs from July 1 of the 
current year to June 30 of the following year, so the renewal date is 
quickly approaching. The Council’s HR Committee recently met to 
discuss the City’s employee health insurance plan for July 1, 2024 to June 
30, 2025 and voted to make the following recommendations: 
 
1) Change broker from Rathsack & Associates to Galagher Insurance, 

Risk Management & Consulting (effective immediately) 
 

This proposed change would save the City Health Fund approximately 
$37,000 over the next plan year. 
 

2) Standardize health reimbursement arrangement for employees so that 
all employees receive $500 (as opposed to previous split of $500 for 
single employees and $1,000 for employees with families)(starting 
January 1, 2025) 

  
     This proposed change would save the City approximately $32,500 per 

year.  
 

3) Increase amount employees can contribute to flexible spending account   
     from $2,200 in 2024 to $3,200 in 2025 (starting January 1, 2025) 
 
     Employee FSA accounts are funded with payroll deductions (prior to 

taxes being deducted). There is no direct cost to the City unless an 
employee exhausts his/her FSA account prior to the end of the year 
prior to all payroll deductions being completed. 

     



4 
 

4) Collect monthly premium of 1% of expected plan cost for employees 
with additional plan participants (i.e., children or spouses)(starting 
January 1, 2025) 
 
This proposed change would save the City approximately $22,213.10 
per year. Below is a breakdown of how this proposed change would 
equate to payroll deductions, although these numbers will be further 
reduced if the Council approves changing brokers. Additional 
information is included in the Council packet.  
 
 Employee premium per payroll 

(based on 24 payroll 
deductions) 

Employee only $0 
Employee + spouse $10.73 
Employee + child(ren) $10.73 
Employee + family  $16.04 

 
 

 



Memo 

To: Common Council   

From: Karl Sorvick, Recreation Director 

Date: May 16th, 2024 

Re: Approve Restoric LLC for completion of Historical Structure Report for Elkhorn Bandshell  

In March of 2024, the City of Elkhorn reached out to several agencies to request a proposal for a 
Historical Structure Report for the Elkhorn Bandshell. The city received one proposal from Restoric LLC. 
Included in this memo is the proposal from Restoric LLC. 

The project fee is $24, 888 (not to exceed). The Wisconsin Historical Society awarded us with 
50% grant funding not to exceed $30,000. The project cost using Park Funds for the city would be 
$12,444 (not to exceed) and the remaining would be matched by the Historical Society.  

Restoric LLC is a trusted agency and approved by the Wisconsin Historical Society to be 
considered for future grant funding. Their profile of similar and large-scale projects also make them an 
exceptional fit for the Elkhorn Bandshell.  

In addition to the HSR proposal, Restoric has also provided three additional options that the city 
may wish to pursue. Option A with a cost estimate of $2,860 is considered most important. This option 
would provide an acoustical assessment & design for the bandshell.  

Recommendation from Park and Recreation Board: Approve the contract to Restoric LLC for the 
Historical Structure Report with the use of Park Funds not to exceed $12,444.  











Account Number: 100-4-44120, S10.00 (per location)

wrscoNstN

AppUcATtoN FOR TEMPORARY CIASS "B" (Beer)

AndlOr "CI-ASS B" (Wine) RETAILER'S IICENSE
For serving or selling alcohol, pursuant to Elkhorn Ordinance 12.03

The named organization applies for:

! A Temporary Class "8" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute

125.25(6) (unlimited licenses allowed per year) and/or

Q A Temporary "class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute 125.51(10) (two

licenses allowed per year)

O Lodge/society Qveteran's Association O Fair Association O civic orTrade organizaton
Or8anltatlon Typ€:

O Bona fide club Qchurch

c[Y & zaP cod.

Elkhom, Wl 53121Walworth County Agricultural Society 411 E Court St

262-723-3228 office@walworthco u ntyfa i r.co m
Email

Aprit 28,1842
lf lncorporated, date in.orporated

April5, 1965 walworthcountyfair.com

Jacob PolyockDavid Adams

Eileen Walsh-Grzenia Susan Earle

5,.^\, a\\o,]oaq
Dar€b) Alcohol Sal€s Stan Time:

5:DtSOrn
Alcoholsaler Ehd Ime

rD:OOOrn$o$essi gnc"\ thampl on ts \\R\dm\
Evenr Addre$ Gee below if a whe walk with hore th.n one lo.ation, up Io 20locahonr allowed)

411 E Court St. Elkhorn, WI 53121
Estimated Attendance

Q,soD co^rh\q\
D€s(abe Pr€mit€! where beer/wine willbe slored, sold andconsumed (for Wirie Walli, atta.h she.t lRtins each loc.tion .ddre s3, pGhi3e

r.^)q.\uJ Oi \^. Loun\ (q\{ q ( Dune,ls G ru 
"CI 

S\ qne/
d.irripnon and lic.r'r.d op.Eto.:t each)

cur€nt city ol flkhoh Oper.torlicense No

23-107-48
ucehsed op€Eior (M u5r b€ prerent .t .ll times, rt not currently licens€d in tllhoh, complet€ Tc m porary ope..tor's Applicati on):

Larry Gaffey

) of the or8anilabon, indivaduelly and together, declar€ under penahes of law thatthe information provided in this applicaton is true and corect to
ization a8rees to comply with all la\i,, r€sclution, ordinances and reSulatrons (federal, state and local) atfeding

NOTE: this opplicotion must be occomponied by o Speciol Events Permit Applicotion to be considercd. Fee moy not be requircd.

oateS lbJ9g omc", -#-Zfh o.,"31f,.aory

The
the
t is eranted

DEC!ARATION

c-7 ,t_va

r club purposes,
h only5ell5 al(o

ricu ltural societies. (3)
hed of er-se icemen'

ell (2t
li.e

Mo5t coole.s presently on the
.re not a ferm€nt€d mah beve

holpoliti
o18

the

NOTE

Tehporary B Llcense Addltional lnformation
May b€ Grant.d and ls5ued onlyto: (1)Bona fide clubs that have been in existen.e torat least 6 months prior tothe date of application. "Club" meens an orSani
ration, whether inco rporated or not, which is the owner, lessee or o(cupant of a building or portion thereofused exclusivel which is operated
solely for a recreetional, fraternal, social patrlotic, cal, benevo,ent orathletic purpose but not for pecuniarygaln and bev€ra8e5 inci-

hat ha9 b€en indentalto ns State, county, aivic or tradeoper.tion. (2) anizations, local fa ir asso.iations, or a8 Church, lodge, or so.iety t
existence for at least 6 monlhs prior to the date ofappli cation. (4) Posts now or hereafter establis s organiza6ons
Reslrlctions: {1) ticen se mey not be issued to individuals. (2) Licenles to other lhan ex-servicemen's orSanizaiions, can be isgued on
similar Satherint. (3) Iicenses forclub or or8aniration meetings may be issued

antirecSrou Ucense issued to a county or distrid fair must coverthets)faiGround (5r. 125 26(6)and 125.51{10), Wis. Stats. (5) No license to clubs havang any indebted wholesalerfor more than 15 days for beer (s. 125.33(71,Wis. Stats.)and 30 Wis. Stats.) (7)ticensed operatorisl must be - Beerj 125.51(10),s. 12s.69(4Xb),
licensed club, .l

times {ss. 125.26(5), 125.32
)- wine, 12s 17)(8) The125.68(2 ub members, or any other persons are not permitted to possess intoxicating liquor on nsed premises on themporary Class -B'l"Class B" I rea. (s. 125.32(5), Wis. SraG.) (9)Not more licenses may be issued to any club, county or localfair asso-orveterans'posr in iny i2 monrh penod. (10)ciatjon, agrirultu.a I essor iation, .hurch,lodge, Licensed organiratioos must purchase their producl from elcensed wholes.ler. (lll Wane W.lkrupto 20 rSaniiation must charge an admission lee foi participation in the event, and no additionalfeemay b€ char8ed for servi ce ot fermented mah bever

market have fer;ented lnatr beverase ba
reg€ or wine and may not be sod with a T

se allowing sale under a beer license (Barlles & James, SeaSramr, etc.). Most hard
€mporary "Class 8" or Class "g" lice

Please Print Clearly

Rc"++

S[o,oo c*ts q<sq
wot Co' AS to'R@tsq 31 I

EIJ(TiORN"

J^*\



PROJECT MANUAL FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
OF THE

2024 SEWER REHABILITATION

ELKIIORN, WISCONSTN

November 2023

rtlllr

.$ sc otus/+

', WILLIAM
HEIN

*

WI

I lllllll
?-pz-3/a -zo -

APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
13400 Bishop's Lane, Suite 270

Brookfield, WI53005
(262) 784-7690

@ Applied Technologies, Inc. 2023
Project No. 6575

R:\Shared Foldm\Projects\6575 . Elkhom 2024 Sewer\I3.0 Specifi@tions\Title page.doq l|8t2023



This page left intentionally blank

Rlshded Folders\Projects\6575 - Elkhom 2024 Sewer\13.0 Specifi@tions\Title Page.docx tt/Et2o23



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the 1Oth day of May in the year 2024by and between the City

of Elkhom (hereinafter called Owner) and Visu-Sewer. LLC (hereinafter called Contractor).

Owner and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. WORK

l.0l Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work
is generally described as follows:

Furnish and install, complete, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, power, utilities, transportation,
and all other items and services to perform construction of the complete project.

ARTICLE 2. TTIE PROJECT

2.01 The Project is generally described as follows:

The work, officially known as "2024 Sewer Rehabilitation" consists of the installation of cured-in-
place lining and sealing of service connections on specified sanitary sewers within basin 2 of the
City of Elkhom. The work also includes any repairs and miscellaneous work necessary to complete
the rehabilitation.

ARTICLE 3. ENGINEER

3.01 The project has been designed by Applied Technologies, Inc. who is hereinafter called Engineer
and who is to act as Owner's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and
authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT TIMES

4.01 The Work will be substantially complete by December 31, 2024, as provided in Articles 4 and
15 of the General Conditions and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Article 15 of
the General Conditions by January 31,2025.

00505-l

Rlshded Fold6\Prcjects\6575 - Elktom 2024 Sewer\I.o Prcjst Meagemmt\I.2 Contrrcls\00505 Agrement.docf,



4.02 LiquidatedDamages.

Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and that
Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified
above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article I I of the General
Conditions. They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving
in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not
completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall
pay Owner Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) for each day that expires after the
time specified above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.
After Substantial Completion if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the
remaining Work within the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by
Owner, Contractor shall pay Owner Two Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars ($250.00) for
each day that expires after the time specified above for completion and readiness for final
payment.

ARTICLE 5. CONTRACT PRICE

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion ofthe Work in accordance with the Contract Documents
an amount in current funds as follows:

TOTAL BASE BID: $774,933.75

All specific cash allowances are included in the above price and have been computed in accordance with
Article 13 of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE6. PAYMENTPROCEDURES

6.01 Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General
Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.

6.02 ProgressPayments.

Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of
Contractor's Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer, once each month
during construction as provided below. All progress payments will be on the basis of the
progress of the Work measured by the schedule of values established in Article 2 of the
General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units
completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the General
Requirements.

Prior to substantial completion, after each Application for Payment has been found
acceptable by Owner, Owner will pay 95o/o of the estimated value less any previous
payments to Contractor until the Project is 50% complete. At 50% completion, further
partial payment shall be made in full to Contractor and no additional amounts may be
retained unless Engineer certifies that the job is not proceeding satisfactorily, but amounts
previously retained shall not be paid to Contractor. At 50% completion or any time
thereafter when the progress of the Work is not satisfactory, additional amounts may be

00s05-2

A.

A.

B

R:\Shded Foldes\Prcjects\6575 - Elk-hom 202 Sewer\I.0 Prcjst Mmagemmt\I.2 Contracts\00505 Agreement.docx
l\lay 9,2024



retained but in no event shall the total retainage be more thanlD%o ofthe value ofthe Work
completed.

C. Upon substantial completion of the Work, an amount retained may be paid to the
Contractor. When the work has been substantially completed except for Work which
cannot be completed because of weather conditions, lack of materials or other reasons

which in the judgment of the Owner are valid reasons for non-completion, the Owner may
make additional payments, retaining at all times an amount sufficient to coverthe estimated
cost of the Work still to be completed or in the alternative may pay out the entire amount
retained and receive from the Contractor guarantees in the form ofa bond or other collateral
sufficient to ensure completion of the job.

6.03 Final Payment.

Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Article 15 of the
General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended
by Engineer as provided in said Article 15.

ARTICLE 7. INTEREST

7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 15 of the General Conditions shall bear

interest at the annual rate of five percent (5%).

ARTICLE 8. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement Contractor makes the following
representations:

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other
related data identified in the Bidding Documents.

Contractor has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general,

local, and Site conditions that may in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance

or fumishing of the Work.

Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local laws and

regulations that may in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or fumishing
of the Work.

Contractor has studied carefully all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface

conditions and drawings of physical conditions which are identified in the Supplementary
Conditions as provided in Article 5 of the General Conditions, and accepts the
determinations set forth in Article 5 of the Supplementary Conditions of the extent of the
technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which Contractor is entitled to
rely.

E. Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and

carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and

studies (in addition to or to supplement those referred to above) which pertain to the

00505-3

A.

B.

C.

D.

Rlshded Folders\PrcjeclsMs7s - ElHrom 2024 Sewer\1.0 Proj4t Meagemmt\I.2 Contracts\00505 Agreement.docx
tuy 9,2024



subsurface or physical conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the
cost, progress, performance or fumishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary
for the performance or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract
Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents,
including specifically the provisions of Article 5 of the General Conditions; and no
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar
information or data are or will be required by Contractor for such purposes.

Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the
site and assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities.
No additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar
information or data in respect of said Underground Facilities are or will be required by
Contractor in order to perform and fumish the Work at the Contract Price, within the
Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract
Documents, including specifically the provisions of Article 5 of the General Conditions.

Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations,
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract
Documents.

Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that
he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by Engineer
is acceptable to Contractor.

The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

ARTICLE 9. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

9.01 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between Owner and Contractor
concerning the Work, consist of the following:

This Agreement (pages 00505-1 to 00505-6, inclusive).

Exhibits to this Agreement (pages to , inclusive).

Performance and Payment Bonds, identified as exhibits 00610 and 00615 and consisting
of eieht (8) pages.

Notice of Award (not attached)

General Conditions (pages C-700-l to C-700-70, inclusive, not attached).

Supplementary Conditions (pages 00800-l to 00800-18, inclusive, not attached).

Specifications consisting of Divisions and pages listed in Table of Contents of the Project
Manual (not attached).

F

G

H.

I.

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

00505-4

R:\Shtred Folders\Prcjects\65?5 - Elkhom 2024 SeweAl.0 Prcjwt Muagemdt\1.2 Contracts\00505 Agrment.dq



H. Drawings, consisting of sheets numbered l-G-l through s5-c-t inclusive, (not
attached) with each sheet dated 09-15-2023 bearing the following general title

CITY OF ELKHORN
2024 SEWER REFIABILITATION

ELKHORN, WISCONSIN

Addenda numbers I to 2, inclusive (not attached).

Instructions to Bidders (pages 00200-1 to 00200-14 , inclusive, not attached)

Contractor's Bid(pages 00410-l to 00410-7.

Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award (pages _ to
inclusive).

The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement
and are not attached hereto: All Written Amendments and other documents amending,
modi$ing, or supplementing the Contract Documents pursuant to Article I 1 of the General
Conditions.

9.02 The documents listed in paragraphs 9.01.A et seq. above are attached to this Agreement (except as

expressly noted otherwise above).

9.03 There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in this Article 9. The Contract Documents
may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in Article I I of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 10. MISCELLANEOUS

10.01 Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.

10.02 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be
binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and,
specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law),
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

10.03 Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives
to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

10.04 Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any law
or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding
upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such
stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to
expressing the intention ofthe stricken provision.

00505-5

I.

J

K.

L.

M.

R:\Shaed Foldm\Projects\6575 - Ell4lom 2024 Swer\1.0 Prcj6t Mdagemmt\1.2 Contracts\00505 Agreem@t.docx
tuy 9,2024



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement in triplicate. One
counterpart each has been delivered to Owner, Contractor and Engineer. All portions of the Contract
Documents have been signed or identified by Owner and Confactor.

This Agreement will be effective on

Owner Contractor Visu-Sewer

By By
lsEALl

Attest Attest

Address for giving notices Address for giving notices

W230 N4855 Betker Drive

I

(\
L)

Agent for service ofprocess

Designated Representative :

Name:

Title:

Address

Phone:

Facsimile

Email:

00505-6

Rr\Shued Folders\Projects\6575 - Elktom 2024 S€w€d1.0 Prcj@t Mmagemmt\I.2 Contracts\00505 Aglem€fldm

Pewaukee, Wl 53072

(where applicable)

(If Contractor is a corporation, attach
evidence of authority to sign.)

Designated Representative:

Name: Josh Regner

Title: Project Manager

Address: W230 N4855 Betker Drive - Pewaukee, Wl 53072

Phone: (262)695-2340

Facsimile: (262)695-2359

Email: visu-info@visu-sewer.com

(If Owner is a public body,
attach evidence of authority to
sign and resolution or other
documents authorizing
execution of Agreement.

License No.



PERFORMANCE BOND

Surety

Name: SiriusPoint America lnsurance Company

Address (gincipol ploce ol business)'.

1 World Trade Center
285 Fulton Street, 47th Floor, Suite 47J
NewYork, NY 10007

Contractor

Name: Msu-Sewer, LLC

Address (principol place ol business):

\/\/230 N4855 Betker Drive
Pewaukee, W 53072

ContraGt

Description (no me and lotution ):

2024 Sewer Rehabilitation

Contract Price: $77 4,933.75

Effective Date of Contract: MaY 10,2024

On*ner

Name: City of Elkhorn

Mailing address {principol place olbusinessJ:

311 Seymour Court
Elkhorn, W153121

Bond SPA'150407_032

Bond Amount. $774,933.75

Dateof Bond: May 10,2024
(Date ol Bond connotbe eorllerthon E lefrve Date of contrcct)

Modifications to this Bond form:
El None E See Paragraph 16

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth in this
Performance Bond, do each cause this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer,
agent, or representative.

By:

Name:

Title:

Attest:

Name:

Title:
by any ddltlonal pfties, such os jointventurcrs (2) tury ilnguhr reference to

Controitot, gtrety, Owner, or other potty is considered pluml where applicable.

(Printdortyped)

Name: Christopher K. Hovden

c

By:

+*it
l,(Frru rvr At E v arr(\F (?

bnutn L- At Ev ar\G,trt2

SiriusPoint America lnsurance Company

Name: Angelica M. Lopez 'oa.!t

Surety

(Fullfomolname

Notes: (7) Prwide suplemental

(Printed or typed]

(hlnted ottyped)

Title: Attorney-in-Fact

Contractor as Principal

Visu-Sewer, LLC

(Printed ortypedl

Title: Mce President - Surety

s

EAL iI

n'$l.u*

EJCDC' C-610, Pedormene Bond.

WF2(tl8l{atlonal Societyof ffisctond Entlneeri,Amerlcm C.rrumll of Er6lncer{ngcompenics,
and Arncrlcan Soci.tt of CMI Endnccrs. A[ rights t€s.fled.

P4c lof 4



1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors,

administrators, successors, and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction

Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

2. lf the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shall have no

obligation under this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in

Paragraph 3.

3. lf there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Sure{s obligation under this Bond

will arise after:

3.1. The Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering

declaring a Contractor Default. Such notice may indicate whether the Owner is requesting a

conference among the Owner, Contractor, and Surety to discuss the Contractot's performance.

lf the Owner does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days after

receipt of the Owner's notice, request such a conference. lf the Surety timely requests a

conference, the Owner shall attend. Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference
requested under this Paragraph 3.1 will be held within ten (10) business days of the Surett's
receipt of the Owne/s notice. lf the Owner, the Contractor, and the Surety agree, the
Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such

an agreement does not waive the Owne/s right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor

Default;

3.2. The Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the

Surety; and

3.3. The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance wlth the terms of
the Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction

Contract.

4. Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Paragraph 3.1 does not
constitute a failure to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety's obligations, or release the
Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the 5urety demonstrates actual prejudice.

5. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the

Surety's expense take one of the following actions:

5,1. Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the
Construction Contract;

5.2. Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or
independent contractors;

5.3. Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a
contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract

to be prepared for execution by the Owner and a contractor selected with the Owners

concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified

surety equavalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the

amount of damages as described in Paragraph 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price

incurred by the Owner as a result of the Contractor DefaulU or

5.4. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor,

and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:

E CDC' C{10, Perfonnarxe Bond.

Cogy1ttt? 20lS ffidonel Society of Prrofessionrl Eqlnccrt ftncrlon Council dElglneeriry Compeiiles,
and Arwlcen Soclety of Ovil ElElneers Al rl;fts rcscrved.

Pege 2ofll



5.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and,
as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or

5.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notifythe Owner, citing the reasons for denial.

6. lf the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 5 with reasonable promptness, the Surety
shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice
from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and
the Owner shall be entatled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner, lf the Surety proceeds as

provided in Paragraph 5.4 and the Owner refuses the payment, or the Surety has denied liability, in
whole or in part, without further notice, the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available
to the Owner.

7, lf the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1,5.2, or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to
the Owner will not be greater than those of the Contractor under the C,onstruction Contract, and the
responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety will not be greater than those of the Owner under the
Construction Contract. Subject to the ommitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract
Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication for:

7.1. the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the
Construction Contracq

7.2, additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default,
and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 5; a nd

7.3, liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specifled in the Construction Contract,
actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.

8. lf the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1,5.3, or 5.4, the Surety's liability is limited to the amount
of this Bond.

9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are
unrelated to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price will not be reduced or
set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action will accrue on this Bond to any
person or entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administratoF, successors, and assigns.

10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction
Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obllgations.

11. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond must be instituted in any court of competent
jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work b located and must be instituted
within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor
ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under
this Bond, whichever occurs first. lf the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the
minimum periods of limitations available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit will be
applicable.

12. Notice to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor must be mailed or delivered to the address shown
on the page on which their signature appears.

13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the
lomtion where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said
statutory or legal requirement will be deemed deleted therefrom and provisions conforming to such

EJCDC' C{1O, Performance Bond.
CopyrEftte 20f8 Natlmal Sodery of Profeslonal Ergirccrs, Amedcan Courrll of Englneerlng Conpanies,

and Amerlcan Society of Ovll Englneers Al rights reserved,
P€ge3 ot4



statutory or other legal requirement will be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the
intent is that this Bond will be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

14. Definitions

t4-1. BolanceoftheContractPrice-ThetotalamountpayablebytheOwnertotheContractorunder
the Construction C-ontract after all proper adjustrnents have been made including allowance for
the Contractor for any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of
insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid
and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract.

74.2. Construction Contract-The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the
cover page, including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the
Contract Documents.

14.3. Contraaor Defoult-Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to
perform or otherurise to comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.

74.4. Owner Defoult-Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the
Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply
wlth the other material terms of the C-onstruction Contract.

14.5. Controct Documents-Allthe documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and

Contractor.

15. lf this Bond is issued for an agreement bebveen a contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor
in this Bond will be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner will be deemed to be Contractor,

16. Modifications to this Bond are as follows: None.

E CDC'C{10, Perionnence Bond.
c.oPyrtht! Zfft Nationel Soclety of mssbtll ftElnccr5, Amedon Gound d ElElnecr*u Cqnp.nla!,

ard Amertcan Sodety of CMI EnglnrG]s. Al r$rts reserued,
Prge 4of'l



PAYMENT BOND

C.ontractor

Name: Msu-Sewer, LLC

Address (Nincipot place of busines):

\A230 N4855 Betker Drive
Pewaukee, Wl 53072

Surety

Name: SiriusPoint America lnsurance Company

Address (prlnctpol ptoxe ofbushess,l:

1 World Trade Center
285 Fulton Street, 47th Floor, Suite 47J
NewYork, NY 10007

C.ontract

Description (oame ond I ocatbn ):

2024 Sewer Rehabilitation

Contract Price: $774,933.75

Effective Date of Contract: [1[2y 10,2a24

()*mer
Citv of Elkhorn

Name:

Mailing address (principal place ofDusrness|:

311 Seymour Court
Elkhorn, \M 53121

Bond sPA150407_032

Bond Amount: $774,933.75

Dateof Eond: May 10,2024
(Date atButd condotbe @dietthon Efuive Dote ofconttEt)
Modifications tothis Bond form:

Dt ruone E See Paragraph 18

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth in this
Paymeril Bond, do each cause this Payment Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or
renresentative

(ggftourd

Name: DA{\D L n[Jynr.\Oej?-
ltuindortyWd)

rith: SECn-Efea-.I
Notes: (7) Ptovide supplemmtal exeladon by ony odditimat porties, such os joint venturers. (2) tuty singutar reference to
Corrfroclor, $ttctf, Owter, or ot:ler pW E @nsiM pluml where applimile.

Contractor as Principal

(hinted ortypedl

(Futl

By:

tt)KEtrn rn. AL-Lxn r-:se€-
(F+intd ortyped)

M.

K. HovdenName: Ch
(mndorUpcd)

Surety

SiriusPoint America lnsurance

By:

Name:

Title:

Attest:

Name:

Title:

Aftest:

Title: Vice President -

A l,V

EAL
979

m
o

it$i:ui'

EICDC' C-615, P.Imsn Bond.
CopyrttF 2lnt ilrtlonel sotlty of Hrsbnd Eltlncer:, Ancdcar Cililcil of EnglmerlrE Comprrlc,

and lmerlcln Soclety of ttull Eqlrree Al d3lts msened.
Pege 1 of|



1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors,

administrators, successors, and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials, and equipment

furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by

reference, subject to the following termt.

2. lf the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies,

and holds harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens, or suits by any person or entity seeking

payment for labor, materials, or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction

Contract, then the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond.

3. lf there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Sure$s obligation to the Owner

under this Bond will arise after the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the
address described in Paragraph 13) of claims, demands, liens, or suits against the Owner or the

Owner's property by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials, or equipment
furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, and tendered defense of such

claims, demands, liens, or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.

4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the

Surety's expense defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner against a duly tendered claim,

demand, lien, or suit.

5. The Surety's obligations to a Claimant under this Bond will arise after the following:

5.1. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor

5.1.1. have furnished a written notice of non-payment to the Contractor, stating with
substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the
materials were, or equipment was, furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was

done or performed, within ninety {90} days after having last performed labor or last

furnished materials or equipment included in the Claim; and

5.L.2. have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 13).

5.2. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor have sent a Claim

totheSurety (atthe address described in Paragraph 13).

6. lf a notice of non-payment required by Paragraph 5.1.1 is given by the Owner to the Contractor, that
is sufficient to satisfy a Claimant's obligation to furnish a written notice of non-payment under
Paragraph 5.1.1.

7. When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the

Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:

7.t. Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt

of the Claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts
that are disputed; and

7.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.

7 .3. The Surety's failure to discharge its obligations under Paragraph 7 .l ot 7 .2 will not be deemed

to constitut€ a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acqulre as to a Claim,

except as to undisputed amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached agreement.

lf, however, the Surety fails to discharge its obligations under Paragraph 7,1 or 7.2, the Surety

shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable attorney's fees the Claimant incurs thereafter
to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.

EJCDCO G615, Prymerlt Bond,

Copvrbhlto 2(}lf Nrdonal Soci€ry of Profassloml Endnccr$ Alnerlcen Goundl of Erltln€crlnt Cqlrpin'rer,
.nd Arncrlctn Sodety of Clull EntineeE All r$ltts rcscrved.

P.tG 2 of4



8. The Surety's total obligation will not exceed the amount of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable

attorney's fees provided under Paragraph 7.3, and the amount of this Bond will be credlted for any
payments made in good faith by the Surety.

9. Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract will be used for the
performance of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any construction
performance bond. By the Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that
all funds earned bythe Contractor in the performance ofthe Construction Contract are dedicated to
satisrying obligations of the Contractor and Surety under this Bond, subject to the Owner's priority to
use the funds for the completion of the work.

10. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants, or others for obligations of the Contractor that
are unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable forthe payment of any costs

or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligation to make
payments to or give notice on behalf of Claimants, or otherwise have any obligations to Claimants

under this Bond.

11. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction
Contract orto related subconractt purchase orders, and otherobligations.

12. Nosuitoractionwill becommencedbyaClaimantunderthisBondotherthaninacourtofcompetent
jurisdiction in the state in which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is located

or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a Claim to the Surety
pursuant to Paragraph 5.7.2 or 5.2, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone

or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract,
whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. lf the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law,

the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit will
be applicable.

13. Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor must be mailed or delivered to the
address shown on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims,

however accomplished, will be sufficient compliance as of the date received.

14. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the
location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said

statutory or legal requirement will be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such

statutory or other legal requirement will be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the
intent is that this Bond will be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

15. Upon requests by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the
Contractor and Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

16. Definitions

L6.7- Cloim-A written statement by the Claimant including at a minimum:

t6.L.l. The name of the ClaimanU

t6.!.2. The narne of the person for whom the labor was done, or materials or equipment
furnished;

16.1.3. A copy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor, materials, or
equipment was furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contracq

16.1.4. A brief description of the labor, materials, or equipment furnished;

EJCDC' G515, Payment Bond.

Copyrlglrto 2018 Nedsrel Sodety of Profesclonel Eruineels, Amcrlan Coundl of Entineerlnt Cornp.nies,
and Arnerican Sodety of Clull Enllnecrs A[ rlghts resctled.

P.!.3 of4



t6.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.1.5. The date on which the Claimant last performed labor or last furnished materials or
equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contracq

16.1.6. The total amount earned by the Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment furnished
as of the date of the Claim;

t6.L.7. The total amount of previous payments received by the Claimant; and

15.1.8. The total amount due and unpaid to the Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment
furnished as of the date of the Claim.

Claimont-An individual or entity having a direct contract whh the Contractor or with a

subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor, materials, or equipment for use in the
performance of the Construction Contract. The term Claimant also includes any individual or
entity that has rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable mechaniCs lien or similar statute
against the real property upon which the Project is located. The intent of this Bond is to include
without limitation in the terms of "labor, materials, or equipment" that part of the water, gas,

power, ligh! heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or rental equipment used in the Construction
Contract, architectural and engineering services required for perfiormance of the work of the
Contractor and the Contractor/s subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien
may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials, or equipment were furnished.

Cnnstruction Contract-The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the
cover page, including all Contract Documents and all changes made to the agreement and the
Contract Documents.

Owner Defoult-Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the
Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply
with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.

Controrf- Documents-Allthe documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and
Contractor.

17. lf this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor
in this Bond will be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner will be deemed to be Contractor.

18. Modifications to this Bond are as follows: None

EICDC' G615, Payment 8ond.

ffihf zlrls lletlontl Sodcty ol Prothsslonrl Englneers, Ancdcan Courrll of Engtneerhg Corrnpinles;
rnd Arulcen Sodcty of gvll Englneers. All rlglrts reserved.

Pege4 of it



MMANBEOl_1123

POWER OF ATTORNEY
SIRIUSPOINT AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY

NEWYORK

K\O\Y ALL NDN BX THDSE PRESh\TS: That SiriusPoint America l4su.ece Compily, a Nerv York corporaliotr, Itsr'ing its principal offic in
rlrc Ciry of Ncw Yorlq pumd b rhe follotrving Rulution, rvhich was adol,tcd by lhc B@rd of Dirutotr of lhc Compmy, to rvit:

RESO! ,yElt, llDl the P6i.bil, Saiq Vice PBidel, Chi€f Finmcial Oflier, Secretary or A$i$anl SeBtary is hercby aulhori4d lo ex@lc Povcrs
qf Attomsj' ap'Finting 6 attom€yi-irh&.t sl€c{ed trploys of wrlain s@ty cotrpmis vho shall hsw the porver for ud on behalf of lhe Cmrpany lo €xecule

and aflix the sl of tfu CooPany lo sut€ty strlrds 6 co-$rely.

Does hercbynominalg mtit[te ard appoint:

Christophcr K, llovdm, Angclica M. Lopcz

hs tfw and larvful atlomyjn-fa.t, to mkq exmte, red dd deliver forad on its behal( and s its act tndded; any and all bonds, contmcts, agreemols

of hdemiry, dd oth€r urd€daldngs in su€r)6hip (NOT INCLUDINC bods wilhout a fred panalty or fiwial guratrte bonds) ild lo bind thecompmy thereby

d fully aod to thc saBe cxtdt G if ffi vcre sigrrd by rle duly uthorired omcec of the Company, provided, lswev€r, that lhe peml ur of any me such

i$lrument qecuted hercuder shall not qe€d lhe sum of:

S50,0@lX)0 siqle bond linit

All rcb of sid attomelT-io-faapurnanr to tE autholities hcEin giva m hercby ai6d md mlirnrd, The extrutive ofticers listed above in the

Rciolu{im my frem titr ro de atrd at uy tirc rffi 4y sudt appoint@ ad rwokc lhe po\w giq to him or her.

The exqution of och bonds or udedakings in puMce of the pl€sls, withitr me )@r of the date of irru of thae presens, shall lx bioding upon
said Compmy, c fully ardatrply, b atl intats ildpurpos, as if lhey had bmn duly eecoted ud aclnorvledgedby the tegularly elected officer of the Contpany

at its officc in Nsv Yott, N6v Yorlq in thcir oqprcper pssqs.

lN IVITNESS \YHERDO4 SiriuPoitrt Ameria lrMacc Compuy hd cas€d ils cqporatc sl to be h€rMto allixed, and these pcsents to be

sigred by irs Seret ry lhis I 7(h day ofAugusr in the ycd 2023-

SiriusFoint Amcdca Companl

By:

Scffldf

Slale of Nqr ,eRy I
tst

Couty ofMonmoulh l

On rhis l7'h day of Augur 2023, belixe nc, a Notary hrblic of lhc Sratc of Ncrv Jerey in ahd for lhc Counry of Monmouth duly conrmisioncd
and qElific4 6mc Mdis ,. Ralph Sdn ary, ofsi.iusPoint Affii€ ln$rrc Coarpatry, to G perwlly knoM to be lhe individel and oflier decril'ed in,

ald $to sded the prwding imtru|t$t, aad adoowledged thc qedion of 0E s, ed, bculg by re duly srw, dcposcfh ed Fith, that slE i$ thc

oflier ofthe Cor{try afoHai4 nd rhat the sl alfixed lo rhe pRceding ios{ruoHt s lhe coryonte sal of said Crnqmy, md the sid coqronte sl and ha
sigmtuE 6 offrs wse duly allixed ud *bscribod io thc said iD$rumst by lh€ authodty and dirutior of 0E raid Compay, rcfered to in thc preceding

islru|ML is mN in fqc
IN Tf,STlitfutiYlvHEREoF,l have hereunto sd my hand ands{lixed my omcial sql.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MARCH 31'

colilMlSSlOt'{: f 5020831 1

na
upirc
Lrscr- ?r, )Ozl

State of Nc$ Jffiy
CountyofMmih

l, MclisF J- Ralph, S6rckry, of SiriuPoinr Ar*rie lnunre Compny, a Ncrv Yort cotporali@, do hcreby rerlify that thc abovc dd forcgping is a

irll, tM coret copy of Pows of A[onEy, is slill in fqe td €llst ard h4 not beq rcvok€d-

lN lvl'f NF.SS lvHERlioF, I have h€@lo *t my had od aflixcd the sal of sid Compey thii 1 oth a"f of. May , 2024
s$is{Yr"

g i SEAL' 'i'*'

3, 1979 .jq.,.iylilf
SEAI.
r9v9



MMANBEO1 1123

POWEROFATTORNEY
SIRIUSPOINT AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY

NEWYORK

l$\I)\v AlL lt&\ BY THESE PRESEN-TS: That SiriusPoint Awica lnsurre Compuy, a New Yuk orporatiql lsvirg its prircipal ollie in
0rc City of Ncw Yodq FrBad b rhe folbrving Rslulioo, which s6 adolttcd by lhc B@rd of DiEtoF of lhc Cortpany' ro rvit;

RESOI ,VED, thrt llE P6i&ilt, Saitr Yi@ Pasidet, Chief Finmial Olfrs, Sarctary or A$istrni Ss:Btary is hercby authori4d to exqlc Poiss
of Aftomey ryoiating s attwJE-iGh.t sclctcd @lploy6 of elain s@ty cepqi€s who shdl hrw tlc porwr for and on bdralf of rte Cqnpaty to exwle
and aflir rhc gl of rh Cfi{'ory b sudy celtds 6 @-$ely.

Dos hcrebynominal€, @trslitute and appoini:

Christophci K. Ilovdm, Angclica M, L{pcz

lls tnE and larvful attomy-in-fact, to mtq exccute, sed dd dcliwr for and on its behalf, and m ir aa anddei; uy ad all honds, contmcls, ag@m6ls
of hdcmiry, ard ooEurdcrtakings in u*yship (NOT INCLUDINC b6ds rvilhqt a lqed psdty or fimcial guEnt@ bonds) ild to bind thecorlpqy thqeby
6 frtlly attd to th€ sam cxtat d if saft wcrc sigrrd by thc duly ildhoriftd offiffi of thc Cofipmy, lMid€d, lbw6'er, lhat rlE p€ml sm of my mc such
irolrumqt qe$ted hersds shall not qc€d the sum of:

S5Q0d),fiX) siqgle boad limit

All ds of eii attqncTs-iracttmmilt b tbc ethodtiE hmin givo re ha€sy rarifid rd onfimxd Th€ ermtiw ofliffi listEd abwe in th€

R€solulifi my frm liG b lire ed !t dy lim tww ey $dr aFoinl€e and rryokc lhe pow giE to him or her-

The €xruti@ of su{t bo& or edqtakings in puw of the pG@ts, rvithir @ yH of tlE datc of iss of th& psents, drall b€ bilding upoo
said CoEtPany, s fully aldatrply, to i[ iilqrrs adpurposG, 6 if lhey had beo duly exmted ard acloowlcdged by the cgularly el€cted offrcen of the Corrpany
at its offrcc in Nsv Yo*, N@ Yodq in rheiro$poper pqsffs.

lN IYITNESS IYHEREOF, Siri6Poitri Amcrie lruacc Conrpany hu cucd ils sponte Ml to b€ herroto aff[ed, ,nd thse presnts to be

signcd by irs Sserary this I ?th day ofAogost in lhe ycar 2023.

SiriusPoin Amdca Colpaty

Slate of Ncrv J4cy ]
,sr

Court ofMormnh l

On this I 7d day of Augus{ 2023, befqe !E, a Notary Adlic of rhc Sran of Ncrv Jqpy in sd for lhe County of Monmouth duly rcmmisiocd
dd qralilied, ffi Mdis L Ralph Ssr€tary, ofsidusP<ir{ AFia hurc Crcpany, io c pcls@lbt ktroM b be lhc individel aod ofliq dsqiM in,
ad sio qoned rh€ predbg ids@t, aod aaouiledgcd rtE q$rriq of the w, ad, beiry hy re &dy iNs.\ dqo$rh ed $ith, lhal slE ii lhe
olfiq ofthe Corsatry afoEi4 and rhrt the sl alfixed to the pte@ding in5tmt 6 0E srponte sl of srid Con{Etry, ad lhe sid mrpont€ sl ffd hs
sigEtuE s offs re duly alf*ed ud $bs.ib€d !o lhc sll iBsls|mt by thc elhority ud dirEliq of dE siid Copuy, rcfenrd to in thc pceding
insllulmEisrwi0fqc

lN TDsfinfuIl'lillERf,of, I have heruto s€t my hild and alnxed my olficial sel.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
w colrruis3rolt explRES MARCH 31' 2028

COMMISSION: #50m8il1

c,si6
f{trcr- .r, )Ozl

Starc ofN.w ,a$y
Cdnty of lvlBmor

l, Melisn l- Ralph, Screiary, of SiriuPoint Amde Inslrc ComJmy, a Nerv Yor* corpratim, do hereby cerrify lhal thc abow and fotcgoing is a
irll, ltE @reI coo. of Powrof Afiqncy, is sill h f{e md eff€cl atd has nor bea @o&€d-

lN rvlTMrss rYIIEREoF, I have h€sIlto st my hand nd atfixd thc sal of eid Compmy this ] Qfft aay of, May ,2024

s1$:s{k
ii SEAL' :-Ro:. 1979 jo
%;'!y!$os1'

tw9



PROJECT IDENTIFICATION

BID FORM

2024 Sewer Rehabilitation

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: City of Elkhorn
311 Seymour Court
Elkhorn, WI53l2l

l. The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an agreement with

Owner in the form included in the Contract Documents to perform and lurnish all Work as specified or

indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract Price and within the Contract Time indicated in this Bid

and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

2. Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation to Bid and Instructions to Bidders,

including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to

acceptance for the period of time specified in the Invitation to Bid after the day of Bid opening. Bidder will
sign and submit the Agreement with the Bonds and other documents required by the Bidding Requirements

within l5 days after the date of Owner's Notice of Award.

3. In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that:

(a) Bidder has examined copies of all the Bidding Documents and of the following Addenda,

receipt of all which is hereby acknowledged:

Number

1

Date

12t14t23

12t1

(b) Bidder has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work,

site , locality, and all local conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any lnanner may affect cost,

progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.

(c) Bidderhas studied carefully all reports and drawings ofsubsurface conditions and drawings of
physical conditions which are identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in Afticle 5 of
the General Conditions and accepts the determination set forth in Article 5 of the Supplementary

Conditions ofthe extent ofthc technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which

Bidder is entitled to rely.

(d) Bidder has obtained and carefully studied all such examinations, investigations, exploralions,

tests and studies which pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at the site or otherwise may

affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work as Bidder considers necessary for the

performance or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the

provisions of Article 5 of the General Conditions; and no additional examinations, investigations,

explorations, tests, reports or similar information or data are or will be required by Bidder for such

purposes.

00410-1

2

R:sharedl:'ldssil!dorsi6tl: liiltrotr202aSil\qil40Didir8rll4Add3f,d510ul0 Uidl'om_Addenduu2d.!x



(e) Bidder has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the Contract

Documents with respect to cxisting Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and assumes

responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional examinations,

investigations, explorations, tests, reports or similar information or data in respect of said Underground

Facilities are or will be required by Bidder in order to perform and furnish the Work at the Contract

Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract

Documents, including specifically the provisions of Article 5 of the General Conditions.

(f) Bidder has correlated the results ofall such observations, examinations, investigations,

explorations, tests, reports and sludies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

(g) Bidder has given Engineer uritten notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that it has

discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution theteof by Engineer is acceptable to

Bidder.

(h) This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest ofor on behalfofany undisclosed person,

firm or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group,

association, organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any

other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; Bidder has not solicited or induced any person, firm or

corporation to refrain frorn bidding; and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any

advantage over any other Bidder or over Owner'

(i) Bidder has reviewed and understands the requirement for the use of American Iton and Steel

(AlS) and certifies that all iron and steel products in the bid will be produced in the United States in a

mannsr that complies with the AIS requirement.

(j) Bidder certifies that the Bid conforms to the requirements of Davis-Bacon labor standards

and wage determinations.

0a410-2

R \Shtrd loldilr\iloiesst6i?l ' Fl*lltn 2024 scscnln o lJidd'ilsi14.4 Addciloig,1 ll - lid fots'AdncMuD 2 dei Ddlnhr I 8, 2021



l. Bidder will complete the Work for the following prices:

TOTAL BASE BID:

The Bidder shall include in the Total Base Bid price for the Work the following lump sum amounts that

include the major equipment provided by the "named" manufacturers listed in Schedule A - Major
Equipment Schedule:

If the Contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest, qualified, responsive and responsible

Bidder based on the TOTAL BID AMOLINT whose evaluation by Owner indicates that the award will be

in the best interests of the Project. The Owner reserves the right to award any combination of Sections based

on budgetary constraints to the Contractor as described above.

2. Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete as provided in Articles 4 and 15 of the

General Conditions, and complete and ready for final payment in accordance withArticle l5 ofthe General

Conditions, by the dates identified in Article 4 of the Agreement.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to scheduling of the Work.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of failure to
complete the Work on time.

00410-l

R:\Shded Fo1dere\Projects\65?5 - Elktom 2024 Sewer\I.0 Project Mmagement\I 2 Contracts\00410 - Bid Fomdocx

SECTION 1-BASIN 2

Item
No.

Item Description Unit Estimated
Quantity

Unit Price
(Figures)

Extended
Amount
(Fieures)

1-1 Remove and Seal Protruding Tap EA 16 Si.so s2,400.00

7-2 Sealing of Active Leaks EA 15 Ss+o S12,600.oo

L-2-8 8-lnch Sanitary Sewer Lining LF 10,660 s30 s319,800.00

1-3-10 10-lnch Sanitary Sewer Lining LF 980 s36.40 s35,672.00

7-3-r2 12-lnch Sanitary Sewer Lining LF 296 S43.7s s12,950.00

1-3-15 15-lnch Sanitary Sewer Lining LF 4,562 Sog.zs 5315,918.50

r-4 Rei nstate Sewer Latera I EA 2t3 s2s0 Sss,zso.oo

1-5 Lateral Connection Test and Seal EA 0

7-6 Chemical Grout Material GAL 24 $e $216.00

r-7 Heavy Cleaning Hrs 32 s320 s10,240.00

1-8 Point Repair Allowance Allowance 7 s11,887.25 s11,887.25

SUBTOTAL s774,933.75

tuy 9,2024



,|

6. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid;

(a) Required Bid Security

Subcontractor Listing

in the form of Bid Bond

(b)

(c) Statement of the Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located;

or in the absence ofsuch evidence, this bid constitutes Bidder's covenant to obtain such qualification
prior to thc award of the Contract.

Communications concerning this Bid shall be addressed to:

Name: Josh

Company Name: Visu-Sewer, LLC

Address: W230 N4855 Betker Drive - Pewaukee, Wl 53072

Telephone No.: 695-2340

8. The terms used in this Bid, which are defined in the General Conditions of the Construction Contract

included as par( of the Contract Documents, have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions,

SUBMITTED ON DECEMbCT 21 2023
I hereby certifi that as Bidder I/We have examined and carefully prepared this Bid from the Bidding
Documents and have checksd the same in detail before submitting this Bid, and that all statements herein are

made on behalf of:

An Individual

By (Individual's Signature) (sEAL)

Individual's Name (Print)

Doing business as (Firm Name)

Business address

Phone No,:

00410-4

Rlshrredlildr$hojsrsr6ll5 Elkiotn?024Sc$lrild0lrdingil44 ddonds{lEll}-tldaonlidierdurr?d€t D€cmbr 18.2021



A Partnership

By (Firm Name) Visu-Sewer LLC

Signature of General Pafiner

Name of General Partner (Print) Keith M. Alexander

Business Address: W230 N4855 Betker Drive

Pewaukee, Wl 53072

PhoneNo.: (262) 695-2340

A Corooration

By (Corporation Name)

State of Incorporation

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Rep. (Print)

Title (sEAL)

Attest (Signature)

Name of Attester (Print)

Business address:

Phone No.

004 r 0-5

R:Shs{d a.ld.ri\,!.jccls16j75 ' }llkhon 2{t! sc(t,tl4 0 nidd,n!\U 4 Adderdt!&10 ' Bid ljotr!" Add.ndunr ? d(4x tkilnk,18.2021



A Jgint Venturq

By (Representative's S ignature) (sEAL)

Representativs's Name & Title (Print)

Doing business as (Firm Name)

Business address:

Phone No.

By (Representative's Signature) (sEAL)

Representalive's Name & Title (Pdnt)

Doing business as (Firm Name)

Business address:

Phone No.

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, paftnership, and corporation thst is

a party to thcjoint vcnturc should be in the manner indicated above).

Sworn and subscribed to before me this

day of 2A_.

Notary or Other Officer Authorized To
Administer Oaths

My commission expires:

00410-6

Rlshrdroldesit)ftleds\6tl5"til*lx,m20:4sc$dl40Bid6tr8il44Adddddl&l!'Didtotn AdJcdum2dsx Dqcrmkr I&2021



SUBCONTRACTOR L1STING

The Bidder ceriifies that the following fimrs or businesses will be awarded subcontracts for the indicated
porlions of the Work in the event that the Bidder is awarded the Contract. In addition 1o the subcontractors
listed, fill in the names ofall other subcontractors and suppliers whose contract amounts equal or exceeds 10%

of the Total Base Bid Amount. The Bidder agrees that, aftcr thc opcning of Bids, no changcs or substitutions in
the listing will be allowed without the written approval of the Owner, Requests for such changes or
substitutions shall be made in writing with appropriate documentation and reasons included. If space is
inadequate, attach additional sheets with identical information.

Other

Name of Firm:

Type of Work:

Address:

None

Street City stare (zip)

$ Amount
Other

Name of Firm:

Type of Work:

Address:
Street City State (Zip)

$ Amount

Other

Name of Firm:

Type of Work:

Address:
Street City State (Zip)

$ Amount

00410-7

R:\ShsrrdFoldcrs\Prol6ts\6575-Eikiom2024Se\redl4{}Bidding\l4,1Addend0\00410-BidFom Adde(dffi2d@x



This page left intentionally blank

004 I 0-8

R:'sh!r€d Foldors\lrojc!tsr6575 - Elkhom 2024 Scncr\j 4 0 Bidding\14 4 Addendd004l0 - Bid Fom"AddeodM 2 dacx



DOBG=
OATA 8 ANALYTICS

Print

VISU-SEWER LLC.
vrsu-sEwER-NTDvBE-CrTY OF ELKHORN-F'O& 2024 SEWER REHAB PROJECT.

Project Specs:

Notice ID #: 8482 Location: WI: Pewaukee

Bid Date: 1212112023 BDOQ: MBE, WBE, DBE

Tlpe Of Notice: Sub-Bid Advertisement

Contact: See Notice Summary for details on how to respond to this notice.

Notice Summary:

VSY,i*y;*sH?o!f**
Notice to Disadvantaged Businesses

Visu-Sewer, LLC W230 N4855 Betker Dr,

Pewaukee, WI 53072, Phone: 262-695 -2340, Fax: 262-695 -23 59

is seeking DBEs, including MBEs and, IABEs to submit proposals.,/or the City of Elkhorn, 2024
Sewer Rehabilitafion. Subcontracting opportunities in the following areas: traffic control, bypass

pumping, and excavation repairs. All interested and qualified DBEs should contact, IN WRITING,
(certified letter, rehrn receipt requested), Josh Regner, to discuss the subcontracting opportunities.

All negotiations must be completed by
Wednesday, December 20th at lpm.

The bid opening date is Thursday., Dccember 2lst ,2023, st lDsm.



Noticc To Biddcrs

Notice to Disadvantlgcd Businesses

Visu-Sewer, LLC W230 N4855 Betker Dr, Pewaukee, WI 53072,
Phone: 262-695-2340, Faxr 262-695-2359
Is seeking DBEs, including MBEs and WBEs to submit proposals for
the Cily of Elkhorn, 2024 Sewer Rchabititation,
Subcontracting opporlunities in the following areas: traffic control,
bypass pumping, and ercavation repairs.
All intcrcstcd and qualificd DBEs should contact, in writing,
(certified leller, return receipt requested), Josh Regner, to dlscuss
thc subcontracting opportunities.
All ncgotiations must be completod by Wednesday, Dccember 20th
at lpnr, The bid opening date is Thursday, December zlst,2\123, ,t
l0arn.

l2ll 8, Advcrtisgmcnt

lnsituform Technologies USA, LLC intends to bid as a prime
contractor on the upcoming project titlcd Elkhorn W 2024 Sewer
Rehabilitation.
We are seeking proposals from rcgistered DBE contractors through
the WisDOT and UCP to assist us in completing the requirements
for this project.
lnsiiuform Technologics USA LLC, rn Acgion Compnny, is an Equnl
opportunify Employer.
We would be happy to work wlth your firm in breaking down these
bld lt€ms to assist in your ability to quote some of this work.
If you need to obt|in bonds, lines of credit, permits or insurance as

required, assistance is available.
lf you wish to provide us with a quote, please nole thst lhey are
due by Wednesday, December 20th @ 9AM CST.
Please submit quotes to rkramcr@acgion,com and/or ckoller@
argion,com
Please contact us t0 provide a link to view the specs and plans.

We would appreciate a quote from your firm,
Please contact us with any queslions regarding this project at 314-
343-91s2.

I 2/1 8, Advertisement

Noticc To Biddcrs

Dodge Data & Analytics Weekly soU'f'HERNwIScoNSIN Week Ending Dec, 16, 2023 71

Classificds



5/10/2024

R & R Insurance Services Inc
PO Box 1610

Waukesha WI 53187-1610

Deborah Madsen
(262)574-7000 (262)574-7080

clcertificates@rrins.com

Visu-Sewer LLC
W230 N4855 Betker Rd
PO Box 804
Pewaukee WI 53072-0804

Phoenix Ins Co (Travelers) 25623
Charter Oak Fire Ins Co (Travelers) 25615
Travelers Prop Cas Ins Co of America 25674
Travelers Indemnity Co of Connecticut 25682

CL2431546577

A

X

X
X 10,000 Ded - PD Only

X

X CO-5968X624 4/1/2024 4/1/2025

#CGD604 02-19 (AI)

#CGD316 02-19 (WOS)

#CGT100 02-19 (WOS)

1,000,000

300,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

B
X

X X
X 810-5968X624 4/1/2024 4/1/2025

#CAT353 02-15 (AI/WOS)

#CAT499 02-16 (AI/PNC)

1,000,000

C

X X

X 10,000 X
CUP-0J357280 4/1/2024 4/1/2025

#EU0001 07-16 (AI/PNC/WOS)

15,000,000

15,000,000

D
N

UB-3K116933 4/1/2024 4/1/2025

X

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

B Contractors Equipment 660-5167X974 4/1/2024 4/1/2025 Leased/Rented Equipment 300,000

B Installation Floater 660-5167X974 4/1/2024 4/1/2025 Any One Jobsite & In Transit 500,000

Project: 2024 Sewer Rehabilitation. City of Elkhorn, Applied Technologies, Inc., Owner's subsidiaries,
City of Appleton, and its officers, council members, agents, employees, and authorized volunteers are
Additional Insureds on a primary and non-contributory basis for General Liability, including ongoing and
completed operations, Auto Liability, and Umbrella Liability per forms listed above when required by a
written contract. Umbrella is excess over the underlying General Liability, Auto Liability, and
Employers' Liability limits. Builders Risk applies per policy 660-5167X974, $774,934

City of Elkhorn
311 Seymour Ct.
Elkhorn, WI  53121

Daniel Scheider/DM586

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-

POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INS025  (201401)



Alex Rentals LLP

Visu-Sewer East LLC

Visu-Sewer Inc (Former Name)

Visu-Sewer Intermediate LLC

Visu-Sewer of Illinois LLC

Visu-Sewer of Mississippi LLC

Visu-Sewer of Missouri LLC

Visu-Sewer of Ohio LLC

VS Water Blasting LLC

Additional Named Insureds

Other Named Insureds

OFAPPINF (02/2007) COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC



COMMERCIAL AUTO

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED – PRIMARY AND
NON-CONTRIBUTORY WITH OTHER INSURANCE –

CONTRACTORS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

CA T4 99 02 16 © 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

PROVISIONS 

1. The following is added to Paragraph c. in A.1., 
Who Is An Insured, of SECTION Il – COVERED 
AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE : 

This includes any person or organization who you 
are required under a written contract or 
agreement, that is signed by you before the 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs and 
that is in effect during the policy period, to name 
as an additional insured for Covered Autos 
Liability Coverage, but only for damages to which 
this insurance applies and only to the extent of 
that person's or organization's liability for the 
conduct of another "insured". 

2. The following is added to Paragraph B.5., Other 
Insurance of SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO 
CONDITIONS: 

Regardless of the provisions of paragraph a. and 
paragraph d. of this part 5. Other Insurance, this 
insurance is primary to and non-contributory with 
applicable other insurance under which an 
additional insured person or organization is a 
named insured when a written contract or 
agreement with you, that is signed by you before 
the "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs 
and that is in effect during the policy period, 
requires this insurance to be primary and non- 
contributory.  



















































COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

COMMERCIA GENERA LIA ILITY COVERA E FORML L B G

in thi Re ds a (1) The "bo i y in ur " o "pro e ty da a e id l j y r p r m g " s
th e t re po i y ca e ul y to de e m n ri ht , dut e a d bye n i l c r f l t r i e g s i s n a th tn " a t k s pl cea e a
wha s a d s no co e e . i het i n i t v r d n t

Thro g o t th s po i y th wo ds "y u a d "y ur" re eu h u i l c e r o " n o f r (2) The "bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a ed l j r " r p r m g "
to th Na e Insure sho n i the a d o cur d ri ge m d d w n n c s u n t e p l cy pe i d; a dh oi r o n
a y o he pe so o o g nz t o qua i yng a a Na en t r r n r r a i a i n l f i s m d

(3) Pri r to th pe i d, no in ure l steo e r o s d i d
In ure und r thi po i y The wo ds "we , "us" a ds d e s l c . r " n

un e Pa a ra hd r r g p 1. of II – Who Is
"o r re e o t e co pa yp o i i g hi i sura ceu " f r t h m n r vd n t s n n .

An In ure a d no "e pl y e a t o i es d n m o e " u h r z d
The wo d "i sure " m a s a y o ga i a i n by y u tor n d e n n r nz t o o gi e o ov r f an
qu l fyng a such undeai i s r II – Who Is An o kn w tha the "bo i y" r e t d l
I sure . i j r " o "pro e ty da a e han d n u y r p r m g " d

i whoe o in If such a li te i suren l r . s d n d
Ot e wo ds a d phr se tha a p a in quo a i nh r r n a s t p e r t t o

"e pl y e k e , to them o e " n w
m rk ha e m a i g. Re e toa s v e nn f r V –

pe i d th t the "bo i y i j ry or o , a d l nu " r
De i i i ns.f n t o

"pro e ty da a e , th n a yp r m g " e n
SE TI N I– CO ERA EC O V G S co ti u t o o re um ti n o suchn n a i n r s p o f

"bo i y in ur " o "pro e ty da a ed l j y r p r m g "CO ERA E A – B D L IN U Y A D P O E TYV G O I Y J R N R P R
o a t r th pe i d wi l be de m d tor f e e r o l e eD MAGE L A I ITA I B L Y
ha e be n no n pri r t h p l cy pe i dv e k w o o t e oi r o .

1. I su i g A reem nn r n g e t
c. "Bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a ed l n u " r p r m g "

a. We wi l pa th se sum tha th i surel y o s t e n d
duri g th pe i d a d wa no ,n e r o n s t

b co e le al o l ga e to pa a da a ee m s g ly b i t d y s m g s
pri r to the pe i d kn w to ha eo r o , o n v

b ca se o "bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a ee u f d l n u " r p r m g "
by a y i sure l ste n e a a ra hn n d i d u d r P r g p

to th s in ura ce a p i s. We wi l ha ei s n p l e l v
1. of II – Who Is An Insure o a yd r n

th rig t a d du y to de e d the i sure a anste h n t f n n d g i
"e pl y e a t o i e by y u to gi e om o e " u h r z d o v r

a y "sui " se kn th se da a e . Ho e e ,n t e i g o m g s w v r
o a o , a yf n " r n

we wi l ha e no dut to de e d the i surel v y f n n d
co ti u t o , o re um t o o than n a i n r s p i n f t

a anst a y "sui " se kn da a e fo "bo i yg i n t e i g m g s r d l
"bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a e a t r thd l n u " r p r m g " f e e

i j ry o "pro e ty da a e to thinu " r p r m g " s
e d f he p ri d.n o t e o

i sura ce do s no a py We m y a o rn n e t p l . a , t u
in e t ga e a y " wi l bev s i t n l" d. "Bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a ed l n u " r p r m g "a dn

se t e a y cl i r "sui " th t a e ul . Bu :t l n am o t a m y r s t t de m d to ha e be n kn wn to ha e o curr de e v e o v c e
a the e rle t ti e whe a y in ure l stet a i s m n n s d i d

(1) The a o n we wil pa fo da a e ism u t l y r m g s
un e Pa a ra hd r r g p 1. of II – Who Is An

l m te a de cri e ii i d s s b d n III – Li i sm t
In ure o a y "e pl y e a t o i e by y u tos d r n m o e " u h r z d o

Of I sur n e ndn a c ; a
gi e o o a ov r f n " r
cl i :am(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we

ha e use up th li i ov d e m t f
(1) Re o t al o a y pa t o the "bo i yp r s l , r n r , f d l

i the pa m nt o j d m n s on y e f u g e t r
i j ry o "pro e ty da a e to us o a yn u " r p r m g " r n

se tl m n s und rt e e t e A or B or
o h r i sure ;t e n r

m d ca x e se un e o e a ee i l e p n s d r C v r g C.

(2) a wri t n o de a d ot e r m n r
No o he o l g t o o l a i i y to pa sum ot r b i a i n r i b l t y s r

cl i fo da a e o the "bo i yam r m g s f d l
o se vce i unl ssr r i s s e

i j ry o "pro e t a a e ; rn u " r p r yd m g " o
e pl ci l pro i e fo und r Sup l m n a yx i t y vd d r e pe e t r

(3)Payments. a a e by a y o he m a s thaw r n t r e n t
"bo i y in ur " o "pro e ty da a e had l j y r p r m g " s

b. Thi in ura ce a p i s to "bo i y i j ry a ds s n p l e d l n u " n
o curre o a t ccurc d r h s o o .

"pro e ty d m ge o l fp r a a " ny i :

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 1 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

Various provisions policy restrict

Declarations,

person or
Section

special Section

caused "occurrence

policy
Section

receive notice
"occurrence claim

occurred,
part

or authorized prior
policy

occurred
, change

during

which

which

discretion, occurrence

Section

applicable
insurance

Coverages

perform acts covered

policy

which
occurs policy

policy
occurred

Section
receive

notice "occurrence claim includes
change

policy

Section

receive notice "occurrence

Receives verbal
because

Becomes

begun

coverage.

"coverage territory";



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

e. Da a e o "bo i y i j ry i cl dem g s f d l nu " n u (3) An sta u e o di a ce o e ua i n ea i gy t t , r n n r r g l t o r l t n
da a e cla m d by a y pe so r rga i a i n to the sae gi t, dim g s i e n r n o o nz t o l , f strbu i n o usi t o r e of
fo ca e l ss o se vce o de th re ul i g ar r , o f r i s r a s t n t
a y t m ro he "bo i y i j r ".n i e f m t d l nu y Thi e cl sio a p i s o l i y u a e in thes x u n p l e ny f o r

2. Ex l si nc u o s bu i e s o m n f ct r ng di tri u i g sel n ,sn s f a u a u i , s b t n , l i g
se vng o furn shi g aco oi be e a e . F rr i r i n l h l c v r g s oThi i sura ce d e no p l os n n o s t a py t :
th pur o e o thi e cl sio , pe m t i g ae p s s f s x u n r i t n

a. Ex ec ed O I te d d I j ryp t r n n e n u pe so to bri g aco oi be e a e o y urr n n l h l c v r g s n o
pre i e , fo co sum tim s s r n p o o y u pren n o r m se ,i s

i t nd d fro th sta d on o th i sure . whe he o non e e m e n p i t f e n d t r r t a fe is cha g d o ae r e r is
Thi e cl sio do s no a pl to "bo i y in u y re u re fo suchs x u n e t p y d l j r " q i d r is no by it e f, t s l
o "pro e ty da a e re ul i g fro the use o co si e e th bu ir p r m g " s t n m f n d r d e s ne s o sel n , ss f l i g e vn or i g r

b Co trac u l L ab l t d Wo ke s' Co p n a i n An i il r L w. n t a i i i y . r r m e s t o d S m a a s

"Bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a e fo An o l g t o o thed l n u " r p r m g " r y b i a i n f i sure un e an d d r wo k r 'r e s
th i sure is o l ga e to pa da a e by co p nsa i n di a ie n d b i t d y m g s m e t o , s b l t be e i s ori y n f t
re so o th a sum t o o l a i i y i a un m l y e t co pea n f e s p i n f i b l t n e p o m n m n a i n l w o as t o a r n sim l ry i a
co tr ct o a r e e t. Thi e cl sio do s no l w.n a r g e m n s x u n e t a
a pl o l a i i y f r a a e :p y t i b l t o d m g s e. Em l yer's i b l tp o L a i i y
(1) Tha t e i sure o l a e i t e a se cet h n d w ud h v n h b n "Bo i y i j r " tod l nu y :

(1) An "e pl y e o the i sure a i in o t om o e " f n d r s g u f
(2) Assum d in a co tr ct o a re m nt th t ie n a r g e e a s a d n th co r e o :n i e u s f

a "i sure , pro i e th t thn n d vd d a e
(a) Em l y e t y th i sure ; opo m n b e n d r"bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a ed l j r " r p r m g "
(b) Pe f r i g dut e re a e to ther o m n i s l t d

o a r e e t. Soey fo th purp se or g e m n l l r e o s f
l a i i y a sum d in a "i surei b l t s e n n d (2) The spo se chi d pa e t bro h r o sisteu , l , r n , t e r r
re so a l a t rne s' fe s a da n be t o y e n o tha "e pl y e a a of t m o e " s f
l t g ti n e p nse i curr d byo f r a tyi i a o x e s n e r o a p r Pa a r pr g a h (1) a o eb v .
o h r th n a i sure wi l be de m d to bet e a n n d l e e

Thi e cl si n a pl e whe he th in ure m ys x u o p i s t r e s d ada a e o "bo i y i j ry om g s f d l n u " r
be l a l s a e po e r n ny o hei b e a n m l y r o i a t r"pro e ty d m g ", ro i e th tp r a a e p vd d a :
a d t a y o lga i n to sha e da a e wi h on o n b i t o r m g s t r

(a) Li b l t to such pa ty fo , o fo thea i i y r r r r re a so e ne ese who m st pa da a ep y m o l u y m g s
co t o , th t de e se ha asos f a f n s l
be n a sum d in the sa e "i suree s e m n d

Thi e cl si n do s no a py to l a i i ys x u o e t p l i b l tco tr ct"; ndn a a
a sum d by the i sure un e a "i sures e n d d r n n d

(b) a t r e s' fe s a d l t g t ot o n y e n i i a i n co tr ct .n a "
e pe se a e fo de e se o th t pa tx n s r r f n f a r y

f. P lu i no l t oa anst a ci i o a t rn t v di putg i vl r l e a i e s e
(1) "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i gd l j r " r p r m g " r snre out o in whi hs l i n c

o t o the , a l g d o th e te eu f l e e r r a n dda a e to th s in ura cem g s i s n
di cha ge di pe sa , se p g , m gr t o ,s r , s r l e a e i a i na pl e a e al ge .p i s r l e d
re e se o o "po l t n s":l a r f l u a t

c. L q o i b l ti u r L a i i y
(a) At o fro a y pre i e , sit or m n m s s e r

"Bo iy i j ry o "pr p rt da a e fod l n u " r o e y m g " r
l ca i n whi h i o wa a a y ti eo t o c s r s t n m

a y i sure a e h l i be b e so o :n n d m yb ed l a l y r a n f
o ne o by o re t d ow d r , r n e r

(1) Ca si g o to the i t xca i nu n r n o i t o l a e to a y i sure . Ho e e , th so n d , n n d w v r i
o n e so ;f a yp r n subp ra ra h o s n t ppy t :a g p d e o a l o

(2) The furn shi g o aco oi be e a e to ai n f l h l c v r g s (i) "Bo i y in u y i susta n d wit i ad l j r " f i e hn
pe so und r the l g l dri kng a e or n e e a n i g r bu l i g a d ca se by sm k ,i d n n u d o e
u de he o on r t f r fu e , o so t pro uce bym s r o d d

o o i i a i g fro e u pm n th tr r g n t n m q i e t a

Pa e2 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

because

license
activity

which

contract"
occurs

contract",
necessary

because

party's

Such

proceeding

consequence

capacity

actualwhich

which

contributing

influence

escape

occupied

vapor

alcoholic beverages.

"Bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty d m ge e pe te od l nu " r p r a a " x c d r

re so a l f rce t p o e t pe so s o p o e t .a n be o o r t c r n r r p r y

of the contract or agreement; or

furnishing alcoholic beverages.

subse u n to t e e e ut o o t e co t a tq e t h x c i n f h n r c
conduct of the insured's business; or

because of the injury.

alcohol;



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

i use to he t co l o to pe f rm th no m ls d a , o r r o e r a ,
th bu l i g o by o hy ra l c oe i dn , r r d u i r
o i i a i g fro e upm n tha isr gn t n m q i e t t fo th o e a i n or e p r t o f
use to he t wa e fo pe so ad a t r r r n l "m bi e e ui m n " o it pa t , ifo l q p e t r s r s
use by th bui di gs o cup n s oe l n ' c a t r such fue s, o o h rl r t e
th i u sts;er g e o e a i g fl i s e ca e fro ap r t n u d s p m

(i )i "Bo i y i j ry o "pro e tyd l nu " r p r
o the . Thi e ce ti nr m s x p oda a e fo y u m y bem g " r o a
do s no a pl if the "bo i y i j rye t p y d l n u "hed li be if y u a e a co tr ct rl a l , o r n a o
o "pro e ty da a e a i e o t or p r m g " r s s u fa d the o ne o le se o suchn w r r s e f
th in e ti n l di cha ge di pe sae t n o a s r , s r lpre i e , sit o l ca i n ha be nm s s e r o t o s e
o r l a e o the fue s,r e e s f la de to y ur a ad d o s n
o o h r o e a i g fl i s, o i suchr t e p r t n u d r fadditional insured with respect to

y ur o g i g o e a i ns pe fo m d fu l , o o he oo n on p r t o r r e es r t r p r t ne a i g
fo th t a d t o a i sure a tha fl i s a e bro gh o or a d i i n l n d t t ud r u t n r to the
pre i e , sit o l ca i n a d suchm s s e r o t o n pre i e , sit o l ca i n wit them s s e r o t o h
pre i e , sit o l ca i n is nom s s e r o t o t i t nt th t th y be di cha g d,n e a e s r e
a d ne e wa o n d o o cupi dn v r s w e r c e di pe se o re e se a pa t os r d r l a d s r f
by o re te o l a e to a y, r n d r o n d , n th o e a i n beng pe fo m d bye p r t o s i r r e
i sure , o he tha tha a d t o an d t r n t d i i n l such in ure , ors d
i sure ; on d r

(i ii ) "Bo i y i j ry o "pro e tyd l n u " r p r (i )i "Bo i y inj ry o "pro e tyd l u " r p r
da a e a i i g o t o he t,m g " r sn u f a da a e sustan d wit i am g " i e h n
sm k o fu e fro a "ho tieo e r m s m s l

bu l i g a d ca se by th re e sei d n n u d e l a
fi e ;r "

o ga e , fum s o v po s frof s s e r a r m
(b) At o fro a y pre i e , sit or m n m s s e r m te i l bro g t in o th t bu l i ga r as u h t a i d n

l ca i n whi h i o wa a a y ti eo t o c s r s t n m
use by o fo a y i sure o o h rs f rd r r n n d r t e o pe f r e by y u o o y u e afr o m d o r n o r b h l
th ha dl ng sto a e dispo a,e n i , r g , s l bya co tr ct r r subco t a ; on a o o n r r r
pro e sin r re tm n o w stec s g o t a e t f a ;

(i ii ) "Bo i y inj ry o "pro e tyd l u " r p r
(c) If such "po l t n s" a e o we e a a yl u a t r r r t n

da a e a i i g o t o he tm g " r sn u f a ,
ti e tra spo t d, ha de , sto e ,m n r e n l d r d

sm k o fu e fro a "ho tieo e r m s m s l
tr a e , di po e o , o ae t d s s d f r s

fi e ; rr " o
wa te by o o :s r f r

(e) At o fro a y pre i e , sit or m n m s s e r(i) An nsure ; oy i d r
l ca i n o whi h a y in ure o a yo t o n c n s d r n

(i )i An pe so o o g nz t o foy r n r r a i a i n r
o wo kngr r i

who y u m y be le alm o a g l y
o o a y i sure 'r n n n ds

re po si l ;s n b e
be af a e o we e a a y ti eh l r r r t n m

(d) At o fro a y pre i e , sit or m n m s s e r pe fo mng o e a i n to te t fo ,r r i p r t o s s r
l ca i n o whi h a y in ure o a yo t o n c n s d r n m ni o , cl a up, re o e co t i ,o t r e n m v , n an
co tr ct rs o subco t a r wo kngn a o r n r o s r i tr a , de o i y o ne tr l z , o in a ye t t xf r u ai e r n

o o a y i sure 'sr n n n d wa re po d to o a se s thy s n , r s s e
be af a e pe fo m ng o e a i n if theh l r r r i p r t o s o , "po l t n s".f l u a t
"po l t n s" a e bro gh o o to thel u a t r u t n r

(2) An l ss, co t o e p n e a i in o t oy o s r x e s r s g u fpre i e , si e o l ca i n i co n ct om s s t r o t o n n e i n
a yn :wi h such o e a i n by such in ure ,t p r t o s s d

co tr ct r o sub o tr ct r. Ho e e ,n a o r c n a o w v r (a) Re ue t, de a d o de o sta ut ry oq s m n , r r r t o r
th s subp ra ra h o s n t ppy t :i a g p d e o a l o re u a o y re ui e e t t a a y in ureg l t r q r m n h t n s d
(i) "Bo i y inj ry o "pro e tyd l u " r p r o o he s te t fo , m ni o , cle n up,r t r s r o t r a

da a e a i i g o t o the e ca em g " r sn u f s p r m v , co t i , tre t de o i y oe o e n an a , t xf r
o fue s, o ot ef l r h r ne t ai e o in a y wa re po d to ou r l z , r n y s n , r
o e a i g fl i s a e ne d dp r t n u d r e e a se s t e o , "po l t n s"; rs s h f l u a t o

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 3 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

dehumidify
produced

electrical
mechanical functions

necessary

which

policy

lubricants

receive

lubricants

lubricants

contractor

cto

processed

ct
directly indirectly

lubricants
which

contractors subcontractors
directly indirectly

effects

effects

i o n cti n wi h pe a i ns benn c n e o t o r t o i g

v hi l pa t de i n d to hod, sto ee ce r sg e l r

subcontractor;



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

(b) Cl i o sui by o o be af o a yam r t r n h l f n (b) The o e a i n o a y o the m chi e yp r t o f n f a n r
go e nm n a a t o i y o a y o he o e ui m n l ste in Pa av r e t l u h r t r n t r r q p e t i d r gra hp f. 2)(
pe so o o ga i a i n b ca se o or n r r nz t o e u f r f. 3)( o the de i i i n o "m bi ef f nt o f o l
te ti g fo , m n t r ng cl a i g up, e ui m n "; rs n r o i o i , e nn q p e t o
re o i g, con ani g, tre t ngm vn t i n a i , (6)
d to i yng o ne t a i i g, o i a ye xf i r u r l zn r n n

(a) Cha t re i h a pi o o a y i sure ;r e d w t l t t n n dwa re po di g to o a se sin they s n n , r s s g
e fe t o , "po l t n s".f c s f l u a t (b) No w e ya y i sure ; a dt o n d b n n d n

g Ai craft u o O at rcra t (c). r , A t r W e f No be n use to ca r a y pe so ot i g d r y n r n r
pro e ty f rp r o a"Bo iy in u y o "pro e t da a e a i i g o td l j r " r p r y m g " r sn u

o th o n r hi , m i t na ce use orf e w e s p an e n , h Mob l q ip e t. i e E u m n
e tr stm nt to o he s o a y "a t " on u e t r f n u o r "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i g o td l j r " r p r m g " r sn u
w te cra t o n d o o e a e by o re t d oa r f w e r p r t d r n e r o :f
l a e to a y in ure . Use o e a i no n d n s d p r t o

(1) The tra spo t t o o "m bi e e upm n "n r a i n f o l q i e ta d "l a i g r n o dn ".n o dn o u l a i g
by a "a t " o ne o o e a e by on u o w d r p r t d r

Thi e cl si n a p i s e e if the cla ms x u o p l e v n i s re t d r l a e o a y i sure ; on e o o n d t n n d r
a anst a y i sure a l g ne l g nce o o h rg i n n d l e e g i e r t e

(2) The use o "m bi e e ui m nt i , o whi ef o l q p e " n r lwro g on i th supe vsio , hir ngn d i g n e r i n i ,
i fo , o whi e bengn r r l ie pl y e t tr i i g o m ni o i g o o he s bym o m n , an n r o t r n f t r
a y spe d, de oi i n,n e m l t oth t in ure , if th whi h ca sea s d e " c u d
o stun i gr t n .th "bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty d m ge i v l ee d l nu " r p r a a " n ov d

th o ne shi , m i t na ce use oe w r p an e n , r i. War
e t ust e t to o he s o a y "a t " on r m n t r f n , u o r "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i g o td l j r " r p r m g " r sn u
wa e cra t tha is o ne o o e a e by ot r f t w d r p r t d r o :f
re t d r o n d o a y i sure .n e o l a e t n n d

(1) Wa , i cl di g u d cl r d o ci i a ;r n u n n e a e r vl w r
Thi e cl sio o s no a pl t :s x u n d e t p y o

(2) Wa l k by a m l ta y fo cer i e i i r r ,
(1) A wa e cra t whi e a ho e o pre i e y ut r f l s r n ms s o i hi d ri g o de e dng a an t an n e n r f n i g i s n

o n r e tw o r n ; o e pe t d a t ck by a yr x c e t a , n
(2) A a e cra t y u o n t o n ha s: go e n e t so e egn ow t r f o d o w t t i v r m n , v r i r o he a t o it r u h r ty

usin i i a y pe so n l o t e ge t ; og m l t r r n e r o h r a n s r(a) 50 fe t o g o l ss; nde l n r e a
(3) In urr ct o , re el o , re out o , usurp ds e i n b l i n v l i n e(b) No be n use to ca r a y pe so ot i g d r y n r n r

po e , o ta e by go e n e t lw r r k n v r m n apro e ty f r ha g ;p r o a c r e
a t o i y in hi d ri g o de e dng a anstu h r t n e n r f n i g i

(3) Pa kn a "a t " o , o o the wa s ne tr i g n u o n r n y x a yo he en f t s .
to pre i e y u o n o re t, pro i e the, m s s o w r n vd d

j. D m g o P o ertya a e T r p"a t " i no o n d by o re t d o l a eu o s t w e r n e r o n d
to y u r he i sure ; "Pro e ty d m ge too o t n d p r a a " :

(4) Li b l t a sum d unde a y "i surea i i y s e r n n d (1) Pro e ty y u o n, re t, o o cup ,p r o w n r c y
co tr ct fo he o ne shi , m i t na ce o i cl di g a y co ts o en a " r t w r p an e n r n u n n s r x e se i cu rep n s n r d

by y u, o a y o he pe so , o g ni a io r n t r r n r a z t o on r
e t t , fo re ar, re l ce e tn i y r p i p a m n ,(5) "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i gd l j r " r p r m g " r s n
e ha ce e t, re to a i n o m i t na cen n m n s r t o r an e no t o :u f
o such pro e t fo a y re so ,f p r y r n a n

(a) The op ra i n o m chi e y ore t o f a n r pre e ti n o i j ry to a pe so o da a ev n o f n u r n r m g
e ui m n th t i a t ch d to o pa tq p e t a s t a e , r r to a o he 's p o e t ;n t r r p r y
o , a la d v hi l th t wo l qua i y af n e ce a ud l f s

(2) Pre i e y u sel , gi e a a o a a d n ifm s s o l v w y r b n o ,"m bi e e upm n " un e th d fi i i no l q i e t d r e e n t o
th "pro e ty da a e a i e o t o a ye p r m g " r s s u f no "m bi e e ui m nt i such la df o l q p e " f n
pa t o h se pr m se ;r f t o e i swe e no subj ct to ar t e

co p l o y o fi a ci l re po si i i ym us r r n n a s n b l t (3) Pro e ty l a e o y u;p r o n d t o
l w, o o he m t r v hcl in ura cea r t r o o e i e s n

(4) Pe so a pro e t i th ca e custo y or n l p r y n e r , d r
l w, whe e i is o pri ci a la r t r n p l y

co tr l o t e i sure ;n o f h n d
ga a e ; rr g d o

Pa e4 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

includes

"occurrence

practice
prearranged racing,

prepared for,

activity

aircraft

vehicle

includingaction
action
actual

action

including

licensed

An aircraft that is:

aircraft,

use of aircraft or watercraft;

charge.



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

(5) Tha pa t cul r pa t o re l pro e t o phy ica in u yt r i a r f a p r y n s l j r to "y uro or
whi h y u o a y co tr ct rs o "y ur wo k a t r it ha be n putc o r n n a o r o r " f e s e to it in e des t n d

use.
o y u be af a e pe f rm n o e a i ns, ifn o r h l r r o i g p r t o n Rec l O ro u ts W rk r mp i ed. a l f P d c , o O I a r
th "pro e ty da a e a i e o t o tho ee p r m g " r s s u f s P o ertyr p
o e a i n ; rp r t o s o

Da a e cl i e fo a y l ss, co t o e pe sem g s am d r n o s r x n
(6) Tha pa t o a y pro e t that r f n p r y t i cu re by y u o o h r fo th l ss o usen r d o r t e s r e o f ,

m st be re to e , re are o re l ceu s r d p i d r pa d wi hd a a, , re art r w l , p i ,
b ca se "y ur wo k wae u o r " s re l ce e t a j stm nt re o a o di po ap a m n , d u e , m v l r s s l

o :f

(1) "Y u ro uct";o r p dPa a r p sr g a h (1), (3) a dn (4) o th s e cl si n dof i x u o
no a py to "pre i e da a e . A se a a et p l m s s m g " p r t (2) "Y u o k ; ro r w r " o
l m t o i sura ce a p i s to "pre i e da a ei i f n n p l e m s s m g "

(3) "Im are p o e t ";p i d r p r ya de crib d in Pa a r ps s e r g a h 6. of III –
i such wo k o pro e t isf r , r p r yLi i s O nsura cemt f I n .

Pa a ra hr g p (2) o hs e cl sio o s no a pl if t i x u n d e t p y f
pe so o o g nz t o o a k o n or n r r a i a i n f n w rth pre i e a e "y ur wo k a d we e ne ee m s s r o r " n r v r

o, , r, re t d r ed fo e t l by y un e o h l r r n a o .
da g ro s co di i n i tn e u n t o n i .

Pa a r p sr g a h (3), (4), (5) a dn (6) o th sf i
o P rso a n d erti i g I ju y. e n l A d A v s n n re cl sio do no a pl to li b l t a sum dx u n t p y a i i y s e

"Bo i y in u y a i i g o t o "pe so a a dd l j r " r sn u f r n l nun e sid tr ck a re m ntd r a e a g e e .
a v rtsi g i j ry .d e i n nu "Pa a ra hr g p (6) o th s e cl sio do s no a plf i x u n e t p y

p a a. D tto "pro e ty da a e i cl de in th "pro uct -p r m g " n u d e d s
co pe e p ra i n h z r ".m l t d o e t o s a a d Da a e a i i g o t o th lo s o , lo s o usem g s r sn u f e s f s f

o , da a e to co ru t o o , i a i i y to a ce s,f m g , r p i n f n b l t c sk. D m g o Yo r P o u ta a e T u r d c

"Pro e ty da a e to "y ur pr d ct a i i g o tp r m g " o o u " r sn u
o t o ny p rt o i .f i r a a f t Ho e e , thi e cl si n do s no a py tow v r s x u o e t p l

l a i i y fo a a e b ca se o "bo i y i j r ".i b l t r d m g s e u f d l n u yl. D m g o Yo r Wo ka a e T u r

"Pro e ty d "p r q U so i i e o m n ca i n. n lc t d C m u i t oa a e to y ur wo k a i i g o t om g " o r " r s n u f
i o a y pa t o it a d i cl d d i he "pro uct -t r n r f n n u e n t d s

"Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i g o td l j r " r p r m g " r sn u
co pe e p ra i n h z r ".m l t d o e t o s a a d

o a y o a l g d voa i n o a y l w thaf n r l e e i l t o f n a t
Thi e cl si n do s no a pl if th da a es x u o e t p y e m g d o pro i i s the se dng tr n m t i gr hb t n i , a s i t n
wo k o th wo k o t o whi h th da a er r e r u f c e m g o dstri ut n fr i b i g o
a i e wa pe fo m d o y ur be af by ars s s r r e n o h l

r. Acc s O Di c o u e O Con id n i l Oe s r s l s r f f e t a rsubco tr cto .n a r
P rso a n o m ti ne n l I f r a o

m. D m g o I p i ed P o erty O P o ertya a e T m a r r p r r p
"Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i g o td l j r " r p r m g " r sn uN t h sic l y In u edo P y a l j r
o a y a ce s to o di cl sure o a y pe so 'f n c s r s o f n r ns

"Pro e ty da a e to "i p i e pro e t " op r m g " m ar d p r y r o o g ni a i n' co f de ti l or pe so ar r a z t o s n i n a r n l
pro e ty th t ha no be n l in u e ,p r a s t e l y j r d i f rm t o .n o a i n
a i i g o t o :r sn u f

s. Asb st se o
(1) A in d qu cy or, a e a

(1) "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i gd l j r " r p r m g " r snda g ro s in "y ur pro uct on e u o d " r
o t o th a t a o a l g d pre e ce ou f e c u l r l e e s n r"y ur o k ; ro w r " o
a t a, a l ge o th e t ne di pe sa oc u l l e d r r a e d s r l f(2) A dea o fa l r by y u o a y nl y r i u e o r n o e
a be to , a be to fi e s o pro u tss s s s s s b r r d c

o y ur be af to pe fo m a on o h l r r r
co tann a be to , pro i e th t then i i g s s s vd d a

a re m nt i cco d nce wt t t rm .g e e n a r a i h i s e s
"bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a e id l n u " r p r m g " s

Thi e cl si n do s no a pl to the l ss o ses x u o e t p y o f u ca se o co t i ut d to by the ha a d usu d r n r b e z r o
o o h r pro e t a i in o t o sudd n a df t e p r y r s g u f e n pro e ti s o sbe to .p r e f a s s

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 5 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

particular

incorrectly

accidental product"

recall inspection

Section

occupied

product, withdrawn

because
suspected defect deficiency inadequacy

Electronic

actual
restricts

"unsolicited communication".

physica

deficiency
condition

acting
contract

subco t a t r wo kn di e t y o i d re tln r c o s r i g r c l r n i c y

performed on it.

o re a l d fro th m rk t o fro use by a yr c l e m e a e r m n

or inability to manipulate "electronic data".

defect,



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

(2) "Bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a e a i i g e pl y e t- ea ed l j r " r p r m g " r s n m o m n r l t d de cri es b d in
o t o th o a l g d pre e ce o Pa a r pu f e r l e e s n r r g a h (a), (b), ro (c) a o e ib v s

al ge o th e t ne di pe sa ole d r r a e d s r l f Thi e cl si n a pl e whe he th in ure m ys x u o p i s t r e s d a
a y so i , li ui , ga e us o th r an l d q d s o r e m l be l a l s a e po e r n ny o hei b e a n m l y r o i a t r
o i cl di g sm k , v po s,r n u n o e a r a d t a y o lga i n to sha e da a e wit on o n b i t o r m g s h r
so t fu e , , ak l s, a do , m s l a i n re a so e ne ese who m st pa da a ep y m o l u y m g s
wa te a d th t a e pa t o a y os , n a r r f n r be a se o he "bo iy i j r ".c u f t d l nu y
"sui " whi h aso al ge a y "bo i y i j ryt c l l e s n d l n u " Ex l si nscu o c. th o gr u h n. do no a py to "pre i et p l m s s
o "pro e ty da a e de cri e inr p r m g " s b d da a e . A se a a e li i o i sura ce a p i s tom g " p r t m t f n n p l e
Pa a r pr g a h (1) a o eb v . "pre i e da a e a de cri e in Pa a r pm s s m g " s s b d r g a h 6. of

III – Li i s O nsur n emt f I a c .(3) An l ss, co t o e p nse a i in o t oy o s r x e r s g u f
a yn : CO ERA E B – P RSO A A D AD ERT SI GV G E N L N V I N

IN U Y L AB L TJ R I I I Y( )a Re ue t, de a d o de o sta ut ry oq s m n , r r r t o r
1. In u in g e m ns r g A r e e tre ua o y re ui e e t tha a y i sureg l t r q r m n t n n d

o o he s te t fo , m ni o , cle n up,r t r s r o t r a a. We wi l pa th se sum tha th i surel y o s t e n d
re o e co t i , tre t de o i y om v , n an a , t xf r le a l o l ga e to pa a da a eg l y b i t d y s m g s
ne t a i e o i a y wa re po d to ou r l z , r n n y s n , r o "pe so a a d a v rtsi g in ur " tof r n l n d e i n j y
a se s the e f ct o , a be to ,s s f e s f s s s th s i sura ce a pl e . We wi l ha e thei n n p i s l v
a be to fi e s o pro uct co t i i gs s s b r r d s n ann ri ht a d du y to de e d t e i sure a anst a yg n t f n h n d g i n
a be to ; rs s s o "sui " se kn th se da a e . Ho e e , we wi lt e i g o m g s w v r l

ha e no dut to de e d the in ure a an t a yv y f n s d g i s n( )b Cl i o sui by o o be af o a yam r t r n h l f n
"sui " se kn da a e fo "pe so a a dt e i g m g s r r n l ngo e n e t l a t o i y o a y o h rv r m n a u h r t r n t e
a v rtsi g in ur " to thi i sura ce do sd e i n j y s n n epe so o o ga i a i n or n r r nz t o f
no a py We m y at o rt p l . a , u ,te ti g fo , m n t r ng cl a i g up,s n r o i o i , e nn
i v sti a e a y o fe se a d se t e a y cla m on e g t n f n n t l n i rre o i g, con ani g, tre t ngm vn t i n a i ,
"sui " th t a e ul . Bu :t a m y r s t tde o i yng o ne t a i i g o in a yt xf i r u r l zn , r n

wa re po di g to o a se sin they s n n , r s s g (1) The a o n we wil pa fo da a e ism u t l y r m g s
e fe t o , a be to , a be to fi e s o l m te a de cri e if c s f s s s s s s b r r i i d s s b d n III – Li i smt
pro uct co t i i g a be to . Of I sura ce a dd s n ann s s s n n ; n

t. Em l ymen -Rel te ra ti esp o t a d P c c (2) Ou rig t a d dut to de e d e d whe wer h n y f n n n
ha e use up th li i ov d e m t f"Bo i y i j r " tod l nu y :
i sur n e i the pa m nt o j d m n s on a c n y e f u g e t r(1) A e so ri in ut o nyp r n a s g o f a :
se tl m n s und r Co e a et e e t e v r g s A or B or(a) Re usa o e po h t e so ;f l t m l y t a p r n

x e se un e o e a ee p n s d r C v r g C.
(b) Te mna i n o tha pe so 'sr i t o f t r n

No o he o l g t o o l a i i y to pa sum ot r b i a i n r i b l t y s re pl y e t rm o m n ; o
pe f r o se vce i unl ssr o m r r i s s e(c) Em l y e t re a epo m n - l t d , ,
e pl ci l pro i e fo un e Su pe e t ryx i t y vd d r d r p l m n a

o o i si n, such a co rci n,r m s o s e o
Pa m nt .y e sde o i n, e au ti n re ssi nm n ,m t o v l a o , a g e t

b. Thi i sura ce a pl e to "pe so a a ds n n p i s r n l ndi cip i e fa l re to pro o e os l n , i u m t r
a v rti i g in ur " ca se by a o fe se a i i gd e sn j y u d n f n r sna v nce ha a sm n , hum la i nd a , r s e t i i t o ,
o t o y u bu i e s but o l i th o f nse wau f o r sn s ny f e f e sdi crim na i n, li e , sl nd r voa i ns i t o b l a e , i l t o
co m t e in th "co e a e te r t r " du i g thm i t d e v r g r i o y r n eo th pe so 's rig t of e r n h f
poi yp ri d.l c e oo fa se a re t,r l r s

de e t o o i p i o m n a p i d t ot n i n r m r s n e t p l e o r 2 Ex l si n. c u o s
a tha pe so , re a dl ss ot t r n g r e f

Thi i sura ce d e no p l os n n o s t a py t :
whe he such ot r , , r

a. Kn w n i l t o f i h s f n th ro i g V o a i n O R g t O A o eo i si n i a p i d o isms o s p l e r
co mt e be o e duri g o a t r them i t d f r , n r f e "Pe so a a d a v rt sin in ur " ca se by or n l n d e i g j y u d r
ti e o t a e so 's e po m nt rm f h t p r n m l y e ; o a th o the i sure wi h thet e f n d t

(2) The spo se chi d pa e t bro h r o sisteu , l , r n , t e r r k o l d e th t the wo l voa e the rig tn w e g a u d i l t h s
o tha pe so a a co se u nce o "bo i yf t r n s n q e f d l o a o h r a d wo l "pe so a a df n t e n ud r n l n
i j ry to tha pe so a who a y o thenu " t r n t m n f a v rtsi g i j r ".d e i n n u y

Pa e6 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

actual
actual,

irritant

practices

capacity
contaminant,

acids chemicals
claim

because

Section

becomes
because
which

which
discretion

Section

applicable

practice policy
act

malicious prosecution

directed
practice policy act

occurs,

medical

acts covered

direction
act

inflict

privacy,

directed.



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

Thi e cl si n do s no a pl to "pe so a a anst a ci i o as x u o e t p y r n l g i vl r l e n t v di putt r a i e s e
re ou i n pro e di g is l t o c e n n
da a e to th s in ura cem g s i s nb Mate ia u l s ed Wi h Kn w ed e O. r l P b i h t o l g f
a pl e a e al ge .p i s r l e dF l i ya s t

f. B ea h O o tracr c f C n t"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r sn u f
o a o wri te pu l ca i n i cl di g "Adv rt sinr l r t n b i t o , n u n e i g i j ry a i i g o t on u " r sn u f a bre ch oa f

co tr ctn a .
th o th i sure wi h kno l d e oe f e n d t we g f g Q a it O erfo m n e f o d – F i u e. u l y r P r a c O G o s a l r
i s f l i yt as t . To Co fo m To S at m n sn r t e e t

c. Mate ia u l s ed O s d P i r T o i yr l P b i h r U e r o o P l c "Adv rt sin in ur " a i i g o t o th fa l re oe i g j y r sn u f e i u f
P rioe d go ds, pro uct o se vce to co fo m wi ho d s r r i s n r t
(1) "Pe so a a d a v rt sin nu y a i i g o t a y sta e e t o quar n l n d e i g i j r " r s n u n t m n f l t o pe foi y r r rm n e m dea c a

o o a o wri t n pu l ca i n i o r "a v rtse ef r l r t e b i t o , n y u d e i m nt ."
pu l ca i n by ee t o i m a s, o m t ri lb i t o l c r nc e n f a e a h Wro g D s ri ti n O ric s. n e c p o f P e
who e fi st pu l ca i n to k pl ce be o es r b i t o o a f r

"Adv rt sin in u y a i i g o t o the wro ge i g j r " r sn u f nth b gi ni g o t e p l cy pe i d re e n n f h oi r o ; o
de cri t o o the pri e o go ds, pro uct os p i n f c f o d s r

(2) "Ad e t si g i j ry a i i g ou ofv r i n n u " r s n t se vce sta e n y ur "a v rt se e t .r i s t d i o d e i m n "
i f i ge e t o co y i ht "ti l " o "sl g n"n r n m n f p r g , t e r o a

i. In el ec u lP op rtyt l t a r ei y ur "a v rt se e t who e fi stn o d e i m n " s r
i f i ge e t i y ur "a v rt se e t wa "Pe so a a d a v rt sinn r n m n n o d e i m n " s r n l n d e i g in u y a i i g o tj r " r sn u of
co mt e be o e the be i nn o the a y o a l g d i fm i t d f r gn i g f n r l e e n ri ge e t o voan m n r i l t o oi n f
po i y p r o . a y o th fo l wi g ri h s o la s, o a yl c e i d n f e l o n g t r w r n o h rt e

"pe so a a d a v rtsi g in ur " a l ge i a yr n l n d e i n j y l e d n nd Crim n lAct. i a s
cl i o "sui " th t aso a l ge a y sucham r t a l l e s n

"Pe so a nd a v rtsi g i j ry a i i g o t o ar n l a d e i n nu " r sn u f i f i ge e t r i l t o :n r n m n o voa i n
cri i a co mt e by o a the om n l m i t d r t f

(1) Co y i h ;p r g tth i sure .e n d
(2) Pa e tt n ;e. Co trac u l L ab l tn t a i i i y
(3) Tra e d e s;d r s"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in ur " fo ther n l n d e i g j y r

i sure ha a sum d l a i i y in a on d s s e i b l t r (4) Tra e n m ;d a e
a re m nt Thi e cl sio do s no a pl tog e e . s x u n e t p y (5) Tra e a kd m r ;
l a i i y f r a a e :i b l t o d m g s

(6)
(1) Tha the i sure o l a e i h a se cet n d w ud h v n t e b n

(7) Ot e n el ctu l p o e t i h s o a s.h r i t l e a r p r y r g t r l w

Thi e cl sio d e no p l os x u n o s t a py t :(2) Be a se o "pe so a in u y a sum d byc u f r n l j r " s e
y u in a o a re m nt th t i ao r g e e a s n (1) "Ad e t si g i j ry a i i g o t o a yv r i n nu " r sn u f n
"i sure co tr ct , pro i e th t then d n a " vd d a o a l g d i fri g m n o voa i n or l e e n n e e t r i l t o f
"pe so a in u y i ca se by a o f n er n l j r " s u d n f e s a o h r's co y i h , "ti l " o "sl g n" in t e p r g t t e r o a n

y ur "a v rt se e t ; ro d e i m n " o
th o a re m n . Soey fo thee r g e e t l l r

(2) An o h r "pe so a a d a v rt sin in u yy t e r n l n d e i g j r "pu po e o li b l ty a sum d by y u i ar s s f a i i s e o n n
al ge in a y cla m o "sui " th t asol e d n i r t a l"i sure co t a t , re so a l a t r e s'n d n r c " a n be t o n y
al ge a y such i f i ge e t o voa i nl e s n n r n m n r i l t ofe s a d ne e sa y l t ga i n e pe see n c s r i i t o x n s
o a o h r' co y i ht "ti l " o "sl g n" if n t e s p r g , t e r o a ni cu re by o fo a pa ty o he th n an r d r r r t r a n
y ur "a v rt se e t .o d e i m n "i sure wi l be de m d to be da a en d l e e m g s

be a se o "pe so a i j ry , ro i e h t:c u f r n l n u " p vd d t a j. In u ed I ed a n n e ne ypes r s n M i A d I t r t T
B si e s su n s e(a) Li b l t to such pa t fo , o fo tha i i y r y r r r e

co t o , th t pa t ' de e se ha asos f a r ys f n s l "Pe so a a d a v rtsi g in ur " ca se by ar n l n d e i n j y u d n
be n a sum d by y u in th sa ee s e o e m o fe se co mt e by a i sure who ef n m i t d n n d s
"i sure o t a t ; ndn d c n r c " a bu i e s i :sn s s

(b) Su h a t r e s' fe s a d l t g t oc t o n y e n i i a i n
(1) Ad e t si g o pu l shi g;v r i n , r b i n

e pe se a e fo de e se o th t pa tx n s r r f n f a r y

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 7 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

publication

direction

including

which
which

actual

act direction

which
contract

contract

contract

actual

"broadcasting"

injury" caused by malicious prosecution.

by ee tro i m a s, o a e i l f do e by o tl c nc e n f m t r a, i n r a

of the contract or agreement; or

co m t e sub e ue t to th e e ut o om i t d s q n e x c i n f

Trade secret; or



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

(2) De ig i g o de e m nn con e t o ne tr l zn , o i a y wa es nn r t r i i g t n f u ai i g r n n y r spo di g on n t , ro
we sit s f r o he s; rb e o t r o

(3) An In e n t se rch, a ce s, co t nt ot r e a c s n e r o War.
se vce p o i e .r i r vd r "Pe so a nd a v rtsi g i j ry a i i g o t o :r n l a d e i n n u " r sn u f

Ho e e , thi e cl si n do s no a py tow v r s x u o e t p l (1)
Pa a ra hr g p s a. 1)( , (2) a dn (3) o th d fi i i n ff e e n t o o

(2) Wa l k by a m l ta y fo ce in l dngr i e i i r r , cu i"pe so a i j ry .r n l nu "
a t o i hi d ri g o de e dng a an t ac i n n n e n r f n i g i s n

F r t e p rp se o hs e cl sio :o h u o s f t i x u n a t a o e pe t d a t ck by a yc u l r x c e t a , n
(1) Cre t n a d pro uci g co re po de ce go e nm nt so e egn o oa i g n d n r s n n v r e , v r i r t e a t o i yh r u h r t

wri t n in the co d ct o y u busin ss, usin i i a y pe so n lt e n u f o r e g m l t r r n e o t e ge t ; or o h r a n s r
bu l t ns, fi a ci l o a n a re o t , ol e i n n a r n u l p r s r (3) In urre t o , re el o , re out o , usurp ds c i n b l i n v l i n e
ne sle te s a o t y u go ds, pro u ts ow t r b u o r o d c r po e , o ta e by go e n e t lw r r k n v r m n a
se vce wil no be co si e e ther i s l t n d r d a th ri y i hi d r ng o de e di g a anstu o t n n e i r f n n g i
bu i e s o u l shi g; a dsn s f p b i n n a yo he en f t s .

(2) The pl ci g o fra e , bo d rs o l n s, oa n f m s r e r i k r p U so i i e o m n ca i n. n lc t d C m u i t o
a v rt sin , fo y u o o he s a y he e od e i g r o r t r n w r n

"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r sn u fth Int rn t wi l no , by i sef, be co si e ee e e l t t l n d r d
a y o a l ge voa i n o a y l w th tn r l e d i l t o f n a ath bu i e s o a v rtsi g "bro dca ti ge s n s f d e i n , a s n "

o pro i i s the se dng tr n m t i gr hb t n i , a s i t no pu l shi g.r b i n
o dstri ut n f "un o i i e co m ni a i n".r i b i g o s l c t d m u c t o

k. El c ro i h t oo s O u le i B arde t n c C a r m r B l t n o s
q Acc s O Di c o u e O Con id n i l O. e s r s l s r f f e t a r

"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r sn u f P rso a n o m ti ne n l I f r a o
a ee tro i cha r o o bul e i bo rd then l c nc t o m r l t n a

"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r sn u f
i sure ho ts o o ns, o o e whi h then d s r w r v r c

a y a ce s to o di cl sure o a y pe so ' on c s r s o f n r ns r
i sure x rci e co t o.n d e e s s n r l

o ga i a i n' co fi e t a o pe so ar nz t o s n d n i l r r n l
l. U au h rized U e f n th r's a e On t o s O A o e N m r i f rm t o .n o a i n

P o u tr d c r. Asb st se o
"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r s n u f (1) "Pe so a a d a v rt sin nu y a i i g o tr n l n d e i g i j r " r sn u
th una t o i e use o a o he 's na e oe u h r z d f n t r m r o the o a l ge pre e ce of r l e d s n r
pro uct in y ur - a l a d e s, o an n m od o e m i d r s d m i a e r

al ge r hre t n d i pe sa o a be to ,l e d o t a e e ds r l f s s s
m ta a , o a y o he siml r ta ti s to m sl ae t g r n t r i a c c i e d

a be to fi e s o pro u ts co t i i gs s s b r r d c n ann
a o h r s p t nt a usto e s.n t e ' o e i l c m r

a be to , pro i e th t th "pe so a a ds s s vd d a e r n l n
m. P l u i no l t o a v rt sin in ur " i ca se o co trbu ed e i g j y s u d r n i t d

to by t e h z rd us pro e ti s o sbe to .h a a o p r e f a s s
"Pe so a a d a v rt sin in u y a i i g o t or n l n d e i g j r " r sn u f

(2) "Pe so a a d a v rt sin nu y a i i g o tr n l n d e i g i j r " r sn uth al ge o th e te e di cha g ,e l e d r r a n d s r e
o the o a l ge pre e ce of r l e d s n rdi pe sa , se pa e m gra i n, re e se os r l e g , i t o l a r
a l ge o th e t ne di pe sa o a ysoi ,l e d r r a e d s r l f n l de ca e o "po l t n s" a ny t m .s p f l u a t t a i e
l q i , ga e us o th rm l ir i a t oi u d s o r e a r t n r

n P l u i n Rel t d. o l t o - a e co ta i a t i cl di g sm k , v po s,n m n n , n u n o e a r
An o s, x e se a i in ut o nyy l s e p n r s g o f a : so t fu e , ak l s, a do , m s l a i n

wa te a d th t a e pa t o a y os , n a r r f n r(1) Re ue t, de a d o de o sta ut ry oq s m n , r r r t o r
"sui " whi h aso a l ge a y "pe so a a dt c l l e s n r n l nre ua o y re ure e t th t a y in ure og l t r q i m n a n s d r
a v rt sin in u y de cri e i Pa a r phd e i g j r " s b d n r g ao h r te t fo , m n t r up re o et e s s r o i o , , m v ,
(1) a o eb v .co ta n tre t de o i y o ne t a i e o inn i , a , t x f r u r l z , r

(3) An l ss, co t o e p n e a i in o t oy o s r x e s r s g u fany way respond to, or assess the effects
o , "po l t n s"; r a yf l u a t o n :

(2) Cl i o sui by o o be af o a yam r t r n h l f n (a) Re ue t, de a d o de o sta ut ry oq s m n , r r r t o r
re u a o y re ui e e t tha a y i sureg l t r q r m n t n n dgovernmental authority or any other person

o o g nz ti n o te ti g fo , o o he s te t fo , mr r a i a o f s n r r t r s r o i o , cle n up,n t r a
m ni o i g, up, re o i g re o e co t i , tre t de oo t r n m vn , m v , n an a , t xfy oi r
co ta nn , tre t ng de o i yng or ne t a i e o i a y wa re pon i i g a i , t xf i u r l z , r n n y s nd to o, r

Pa e8 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

action

action

actual,

actual
restricts

actual actual,

actual actual,

cost or

clean

because
cleaning

acids, chemicals
claim

assessing the effects of, "pollutants".

War, including undeclared or civil war;



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

a se s the e f ct o , a be to ,s s f e s f s s s (3) o y u pe a i ns;f o r o r t o
a be to fi e s o pro uct co t i i gs s s b r r d s n ann pro i e ha :vd d t t
a be to ; rs s s o

(a) The ta e pl ce in th "co e a ek s a e v r g
( )b Cl i o sui by o o be af o a yam r t r n h l f n te r t r " a d uri g t e p l cy pe i dr i o y n d n h oi r o ;

go e n e t l a t o i y o a y o h rv r m n a u h r t r n t e
(b) The e pe se a e i cu re a d re o t d tox n s r n r d n p r epe so o o ga i a i n or n r r nz t o f

us wit i o e y a o the da e o thehn n e r f t fte ti g fo , m n t r ng cl a i g up,s n r o i o i , e nn
na dre o i g, con ani g tre t ngm vn t i n , a i ,

de o i yng o ne t a i i g o in a yt xf i r u r l zn , r n (c) The in ur d pe so subm t to e a i a i nj e r n i s x m n t o ,
wa re po di g to o a se sin they s n n , r s s g
e fe t o , a be to , a be to fi e s o a o t n s we re so a lf c s f s s s s s s b r r s f e a a n by re ui eq r .
pro uct co t i i g a be to .d s n ann s s s b. We wi l m k th se pa m nt ol a e e y e s f

s. Em l ymen -Rel t d P act c sp o t a e r i e fa l . The e pa m nt wi l no e ce d theu t s y e s l t x e
a pl ca l li i o i sura ce We wi l pap i be mt f n n . l y"Pe so a nur " tor n l i j y :
re so a l x e se f r:a n b e e p n s o

(1) A e so ri in ut o nyp r n a s g o f a :
(1) F rst ad a m ni te e a the ti e o ai i d i s r d t m f n

(a) Re u a o e po ha p rso ;f s l t m l y t t e n

(b) Te mna i n o tha pe so 'sr i t o f t r n (2) , X-ra a dy n
e pl y e t rm o m n ; o de t l se vce ,n a r i s

(c) Em l y e t re a epo m n - l t d , ,
a t o o i si n, such a co rci n,c r m s o s e o (3) ho pi a,s t l
de o i n, e au ti n re ssi n e tm t o v l a o , a g m n , pro e si n l nu si g a d un r l se vce .f s o a r n n f e a r i s
di cip i e fa l re to pro o e ors l n , i u m t

2. Ex l si nc u o s
a v nce ha a sm n , hum la i nd a , r s e t i i t o ,

We wi l n t a e pe se fo "bo i y i j r ":l o p y x n s r d l nu ydi crim na i n, li e , sl nd r voa i ns i t o b l a e , i l t o
o th pe so 's rig t of e r n h f , a. An I su edy n r

o fa se a re t,r l r s
de e t o o i p i o m n a p i d t ot n i n r m r s n e t p l e o r

b H red P rso. i e na tha pe so , re a d e s ot t r n g r l s f
whe he such ot r , , r To a pe so hi e to do wo k fo o o be af or n r d r r r n h l f
o i si n i a p i d o isms o s p l e r a y i sure r t na t f ny i sure .n n d o a e n o a n d
co mt e be o e duri g o a t r them i t d f r , n r f e c. In u y O N rma l O c p ed P em s sj r n o l y c u i r i e
ti e o t a e so 's e po m nt rm f h t p r n m l y e ; o

To a pe so in u e o th t pa t o pre i er n j r d n a r f m s s
(2) The spo se chi d pa e t bro h r o sisteu , l , r n , t e r r y u o n o re t tha th pe so no m l yo w r n t e r n r a l

o th t pe so a a co se u nce of a r n s n q e f
"pe so a i j ry to th t pe so a whor n l n u " a r n t m

d Wo ke s' Co p n a i n An i il r L w. r r m e s t o d S m a a sa y o the e pl y e t re a en f m o m n - l t d
To a pe so , whe he o no a "e pl y e or n t r r t n m o e " fde cri e in Pa a ra hs b d r g p (a), (b), or (c)
a y i sure , i be e i s f r t e "bo i y i j r " a en n d f n f t o h d l nu y rabove is directed.
pa a l o m st be pro i e und r a wo k r 'y b e r u vd d e r e sThi e cl si n a pl e w e he th in ure m ys x u o p i s h t r e s d a
co p nsa i n o di a i i y be e i s la o am e t o r s b l t n f t w rbe l a l s a e po e r n ny o hei be a n m l y r o i a t r
si i a a .m l r l wa d t a y o l ga i n to sha e da a e wi h on o n b i t o r m g s t r

e. Ath et c c i iti sl i s A t v erepay someone else who must pay damages
o he "pe so a nj ry .f t r n l i u " To a pe so i j re whi er n n u d l

CO ERA E CV G o pa t ci a i g i a y phy ica e e ci e or r i p t n n n s l x r s s r– MED CAL P YMEN SI A T
ga e , po t , o a he i co te ts.m s s r s r t l t c n s1. In u in g e m ns r g A r e e t

f. P o u ts-Co p e ed O era i n a ardr d c m l t p t o s H za. We wi l pa m dca e pe se al y e i l x n s s
In l d d wi hi the "pro uct -co pe ecu e t n d s m l t dbeo o "bo i y i j r " ca se b n cci e tl w f r d l n u y u d y a a d n :
o e a i n h z r ".p r t o s a a d(1) On p e i e y u o n r e tr m s s o w o r n ;

g Co erag x l s o s. v e A E c u i n(2) On wa s ne t to pre i e y u o n o re ty x m s s o w r n ;
or u d r o e a en e C v r g A.

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 9 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

Because

accident

because

practice policy

privacy
malicious prosecution

directed
practice policy act

occurs,

accident;

regardless

accident;

Necessary medical, surgical
including prosthetic

devices; and

Necessary ambulance,

practices

capacity

because

described

occupies.

practicing, instructing

Excluded

a o r e pe se by phy i i nt u x n , sc a s o o r hocef u c i

To any insured, except "volunteer workers".



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

SU P EMEN ARY P YMEN SP L T A T a sum d by th in ure in th sa e "i sures e e s d e m n d
co tr ct ;n a "

1. We wi l pa , wi h to a y cl i wel y t n am
d. The a l ga i ns i th "sui " a d t e i f r a i nl e t o n e t n h n o m t oi v stga e o se tl , o a y "sui " a anst n i suren e i t r t e r n t g i a n d

we k o a o t th "o cur e ce o o f n e a en w b u e c r n " r f e s rwe d fe de n :
such th t no co fl ct a p a s to e i t be we na n i p e r xs t e

a. A l e pe se we i curl x n s n . th i t re ts o the i sure a d the i t re ts oe n e s f n d n n e s f
th i de nt ee n m i e ;b. Up to $2 50 fo th co t o ba l bo ds re u re, 0 r e s f i n q i d

b ca se o a ci e ts o tra f c l w voa i ne u f c d n r f i a i l t o s e. The in e n t e a d the i sure a k us tod m i e n n d s
a i i g o t o the use o a y tors n u f f n a d co t o th de e se o than n r l e f n f t
th Bo iy Inj ry Li b l t Co e a e a p i s. Wee d l u a i i y v r g p l e i d m i e a an t such "sui " a d a re than e n t e g i s t n g e t
do no h v t h se bo ds.t a e o t e n we ca a si n th sa e co n e to de e d thn s g e m u s l f n e

i sure nd th i d m i e ; ndn d a e n e n t e ac. The co t o bo ds to a ta hm n s, buts f n t c e t
f. The i d m i e :n e n t e

o i sura ce We do no ha e to furn sh th sef n n . t v i e (1) Ag e s i w i i g or e n r t n t :
bo d .n s

(a) Co p r t wi h us in th in e ti a i n,o e a e t e v s g t o
d. Al re so a l e pe se by thel a n be x n s se t e e t o d fe se o h "sui ";t l m n r e n f t e t

i sure a o r re ue t to a sist us in then d t u q s s (b) Im e i t l se d us co i s o a ym d a ey n p e f n
i v stga i n o de e se o th cl i o "sui ",n e i t o r f n f e am r t d m nd , no i e , sum o se o e ae a s t c s m n s r l g l
i cl di g l ss o e rn n s up to $5 0 an u n o f a i g 0 pa e s re ev d in wi h thep r c i e t

"sui ";t

e. Al co rt co ts ta e a anst th i sure in thel u s x d g i e n d (c) No i y an o h r insure who et f y t e r s
"sui ". Ho e e , th se pa m nt do not w v r e y e s t co e a e i a al be to th i de n t ev r g s v i a l e n m i e ;
a t rne s' fe s o a t rn y ' e pe se ta et o y e r t o e s x n s x d a dn
a anst h i sure .g i t e n d

(d) Co p r t wi h us wi h too e a e t t
f. Preu g e t i t re t a a d d a anst the co rdi a i g o he a pl caj d m n n e s w r e g i o n t n t r p i be i sura cel n n

i sure o tha pa t o th j d m n we pa . If a al bl o tn d n t r f e u g e t y v i a e t he i de n t e nn m i e ; a d
we m k a o f r to pa the a pl ca l li i oa e n f e y p i be mt f (2) Pro i e u w t ri t n ut o i a i n tovd s s i h w t e a h r z t o :
i sura ce we wil no pa a y pre u g e tn n , l t y n j d m n

(a) Ob an a d o h r i f r a i nt i n t e n o m t oi te e t ba e o tha pe i d o ti e a t r then r s s d n t r o f m f e
re a e t h "sui "; ndl t d o t e t ao fe .f r

(b)g. Al i t re t o the fu l a o n o a y ju g e tl n e s n l m u t f n d m n
i d m i e n uch "sui ".n e n t e i s tth t a t r e tr o th j d m n a da f e n y f e u g e t n

So lo g a th a o e co d t o s a e m t a t r e s'n s e b v n i i n r e , t o n yb fo e we ha e pad, o f r d to pa , oe r v i f e e y r
fe s by us in th de e se o thae e f n f tde o it d in co rt th pa t o th ju g e t thap s e u e r f e d m n t
i de n t e ne e sa y l t ga i n e pe sen m i e , c s r i i t o x n si w t i h a pl ca l lm t o n ura ces i h n t e p i be i i f i s n .
by us a d ne e sa y l t g ti n e p nse byn c s r i i a o x e s

The e pa m n s wi l no the l m ts os y e t l t i i f
th i d m i e a o r re u st wi l be pad ae n e n t e t u q e l i s

.
Su pe e t ry Pa m n s. No wi h ta dn thep l m n a y e t t t s n i g

2. If we de e d a i sure a anst a "sui " a d af n n n d g i t n n pro i i n o Pa a ra hvs o s f r g p 2. . 2)b ( of I –
i d m i e o the in ure i aso na e a an e n t e f s d s l m d s Co e a e – Co e a ev r g s v r g A – Bo i y Inj ry And l u d
to the "sui ", we wi l de e d tha i d m i e if a l ot l f n t n e n t e l f Pro e ty Da a e Li bi i y o Pa a ra hp r m g a l t r r g p 2. .e of
th f l o i ge ol w n I – Co e a e – Co e a ev r g s v r g B – Pe so ar n l

An Adv rt sin Inj ry Li bi i y such pa m nt wi ld e i g u a l t , y e s la. The "sui " a anst the i d m i e se kt g i n e n t e e s
no be de m d to be da a e fo "bo i y i j ry ,t e e m g s r d l n u "da a e fo the in ure ha a sum dm g s r s d s s e
"pro e ty da a e o "pe so a in u y , a d wi l nop r m g " r r n l j r " n l tth l a i i y o th i d m i e in a oe i b l t f e n e nt e r
re u e t e l m ts o n ura ced c h i i f i s n .a re m ntg e e

b. Thi i sura ce a pl e t uch l a i i ya sum ds n n p i s o s i b l t s e Ou o l g t o to de e d a in ure ' in e n t er b i a i n f n n s ds d m i e
by t e i sure ;h n d a d to pa fo a t rne s' fe s a dn y r t o y e n

l t g ti n e pe se a Sup l m n a y Pa m n si i a o x n s s p e e t r y e tc. The o l ga i n to de e d o the co t o thb i t o f n , r s f e
e ds wh nn e :de e se o , tha i d m i e , ha aso be nf n f t n e n t e s l e

Pa e10 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

respect

vehicle which

furnish

release

incurred

actual

conduct

connection

include

accrues

reduce
insurance

party

which
contract

that is an "insured contract";

respect

records

incurred
incurred

incurred

Section

Section

necessary

itonly for bond amounts the applicable limwithin

day because of time off from work.

Co du t a d co t o th de e se o t en c n n r l e f n f h

conditions are met:



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

a. We ha e use up the a pl ca l l m t o wo k rs" whi e pe fo m ng duv d p i be i i f r e l r r i ti se
in th pa m nt o j d m n s, re a e to the co d ct oe y e f u g e t l t d n u f y uro

se te e t o m dca x e se ; r bu i e s;t l m n s r e i l e p n s o sn s

(b) To th spo se chi d pa e t, bro he oe u , l , r n t r rb. The co dt o s se fo t a o e o the te m on i i n t r h b v , r r s f
si te o tha co "e pl y e os r f t - m o e " rth a r e e i a a ra he g e m n n P r g p f. a o eb v ,
"v l n e r wo k r" a a co se u nceou t e r e s n q ea e n o ge e .r o l n r m t
o a a r pf P r g a h (1) a)( a o eb v ;SE TI N I – WH S AN I SU EDC O I O I N R

(c) F r whi h th re i a y o l ga i n too c e s n b i t o1. If y u re d si n t d n tho a e g a e i e
sha e da a e wi h o re a so e ner m g s t r p y m o

a. An in i i ua, y u a d y u spo se a edvd l o n o r u r
ese who m st pa da a e be a sel u y m g s c u

i sure s, but o l wit to then d ny h
o the in ur de cri e in Pa a ra hf j y s b d r g p

o usin ss o o re t e soe o n r.f a b e f y u a h l w e
(1) a)( or (b) a o e rb v ; o

b. A pa tn rshi o jo n v n ure y u a e ar e p r i t e t , o r n
(d) Ari i g o t o hi o he pro i i g os n u f s r r vd n r

i sure . Y ur m m e s, y u pa t e s, a dn d o e b r o r r n r n
fa l ng to pro i e pro e sio a he l hi i vd f s n l at

th i spo se a e aso in ure s, bu o l wi her u s r l s d t ny t
ca e se vce .r r i s

Unl ss y u a e in th busin ss oe o r e e r
c. A li i e l a i i y co pa y y u a e a i sure .mt d i b l t m n , o r n n d

o cup ti n o pro i i g pro e sio a he l hc a o f vd n f s n l at
Y u m m e s a e aso i sure s, bu o l wi ho r e b r r l n d t ny t

ca e se vce , Pa a ra hr r i s r g p s (1) a)( , (b), (c)
to th o y ur busin ss. Y ue f o e o r

a dn (d) a o e do no a pl to "bo i y i j r "b v t p y d l n u y
m na e s a e i sure s, but o l wi h ta g r r n d ny t o

a i i g o t o pro i i g o fa l n to pro i er sn u f vd n r i i g vd
th i u i s a y ur a a e s.er d t e s o m n g r

fi st ad o "Go d Sa a i a se vce " byr i r o m r t n r i s
d. An o ga i a i n o he th n a pa t e shi , j i tr nz t o t r a r n r p on a y o y ur "e pl y e " o "v l n e rn f o m o e s r ou t e

v nt r o l m te l a i i y co p ny y u a e ae u e r i i d i b l t m a , o r n wo k rs", o h r tha a e po e or e t e n n m l y d r
v l n e r Any such "e pl y e " oou t e m o e s r

a e in ure s, but o l wi h to th ir s d n y t er "v l n e r wo k rs" pro i i g o fa l ng toou t e r e vd n r i i
d ti s a y ur o . Y uu e s o r o r pro i e fi st ad o "Go d Sa a i avd r i r o m r t n
st ck od r a e aso i sure s, but o l wi ho h l e s r l n d ny t se vce " du i g the r wo k ho rs fo y ur i s r n i r u r o

wi l be de m d to be wi hi thel e e t n
sco e o the r e pl y e t by y u op f i m o m n o re. A tr st, y u a e a in ure . Y u tru te s a eu o r n s d o r s e r
pe f r i g dut e re a e to the co d ct or o m n i s l t d n u faso in ure s, but o l wit to th il s d n y h er
y ur usin ss.o b ed ti s a t u te s.u e s r s e

(2) "Pro e ty d m ge to pr p rt :p r a a " o e y2. f he fo l wi g i aso a i sure :o t l o n s l n n d
(a) Own d, r se ye o u d b ;a. Y ur "v l n e r wo k rs" o l whi e pe fo mngo ou t e r e ny l r r i
(b) Re t d to in the custo y on e , , d rdu i s re a e to the o y ur busin ss,t e l t d f o e

co tr l o , o o e whi h phy ican o f r v r c s lo y u "e pl y e ", o h r th n et e y ur o r m o e s t e a i h r o r
co tr l i b i g e e ci e fo a yn o s en x r s d r n
pu po e b ;r s yo h r tha a pa t e shi , j i t v n u e o l mt dt e n r n r p on e t r r i i e

l a i i y co p ny o y u a a e s (i o re ai b l t m a ) r o r m n g r f y u a y u, a y o y u "e pl y e ", "v l n e ro n f o r m o e s ou t e
l m te l a i i y co pa y , but o l foi i d i b l t m n ) ny r wo k rs", a y pa t e o m m e i o rer e n r n r r e b r ( f y u a
wi hi the o the r e po m n by y u ot n f i m l y e t o r a pa t e shi o jo n v n u e , o a yr n r p r i t e t r ) r n
whi e pe f rm n du i s re a e to the co d ctl r o i g t e l t d n u m m e (i y u a e a li i e l a i i ye b r f o r m t d i b l t
o y ur busin ss. Ho e e , no e o th sef o e w v r n f e co pa y .m n )
"e pl y e " o "v l n e r wo k rs" a em o e s r ou t e r e r

b. An pe so (o he tha y ur "e pl y e oy r n t r n o m o e " ri sur d f r:n e s o
"v l n e r wo k r"), o a y o g nz t o , whi eou t e r e r n r a i a i n l

(1) "Bo i y i j r " o "pe so a nur ":d l nu y r r n l i j y a t n s y u e l e ta e m na e .c i g a o r r a s t a g r
(a) To y u, to y u pa t e s o e be s (io o r r n r r m m r f c. An pe so o o g nz t o ha i g pro ey r n r r a i a i n vn p r

y u a e a pa t e shi o j i t v n u e ,o r r n r p r on e t r ) te po a y custo y o y ur pro e ty if y u di ,m r r d f o p r o e
to y u m m e s (if y u a e a li i eo r e b r o r mt d bu nl :t o y
l a i i y co p n ), to a co "e pl y ei b l t m a y - m o e "

(1) Wit to li b l t a i i g o t o theh a i i y r sn u fwhi e in th o hi o hel e f s r r
m i t na ce o se o t a r p rt ; a dan e n r u f h t p o e y ne pl y e t o pe fo mng dut em o m n r r r i i s

re a e to the o y ul t d f o r (2) Unt l y u l ga re r se t t v ha be ni o r e l p e n a i e s e
bu i e s, o to y u o h r "v l n e r a pon e .sn s r o r t e ou t e p i t d

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 11 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

insurance

t described

Declarations as:

respect conduct
which

respect conduct
respect

respect
officers directors

respect

Each

conduct

acts
scope

doctor.

acting

occupied

care

course

conduct

respect

respect to the conduct of your business.

i sure . Y u "e e u i e o fi e s" a d di e t rsn d o r x c t v f c r n r c o

respect to their liability as stockholders.

"e e u i e o f ce s" (i y u a e a o ga i a i nx c t v f i r f o r n r n z t o



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

d. Y u l g l re re e t t v if y u di , but o lo r e a p s n a i e o e ny b. Ari e o t o th o n r hi , m i te a ce os s u f e w e s p an n n r
wi h to duti s as such. Tha use o t a a t o ny pre i et e t f h t p r f a ms s l a e o y u.e s d t o
re re e ta i e wi l ha e a l y u rig t a dp s n t v l v l o r h s n The i sura ce pro i e to such pre i e o ne ,n n vd d m s s w r
du i s un e hi Co e a e Pa tt e d r t s v r g r . m na e o l sso i to the fo l w nga g r r e r s l o i

e. An pe so o o ga i a i n tha , wi h y u pro i io s:y r n r r nz t o t t o r vs n
e pre s o im l e co se t, e t e use o isx s r p i d n n i h r s r a. The l m ts o i sura ce pro i e to suchi i f n n vd d
re po sib e fo the use o a wa e cra t th t y us n l r f t r f a o pre i e o ne , m na e o le so wi l be them s s w r a g r r s r l
do no o n th t s:t w a i m nm m l m t th t y u gre d o p o i e i hei i u i i s a o a e t r vd n t

(1) 50 fe t o g r e s; a d wri t n o a r e e t, o the le l n o l s n t e r g e m n r i i sm t
sho n i he ra i ns, hi e a e l ss.w n t t o w v r r e(2) No beng use to ca ry a y pe so ot i d r n r n r

pro e ty f r .p r o a b. The in ura ce pro i e to such pre i es n vd d m s s
o ne , m na e r e so o s no a pl t :w r a g r o l s r d e t p y o3. An o g nz t o y u ne l o fo m o h ry r a i a i n o wy r r , t e

th n a pa t e shi , jo n v nt r o l m t d l a i i ya r n r p i t e u e r i i e i b l t (1) An "bo i y in u y o "pro e ty da a ey d l j r " r p r m g "
co p ny a d o y u a e t e soe o n r o i th t o cur , o "pem a , n f o r h l w e r n a c s r rso a a d a v rti in l n d e s ng

y u m i t i a o ne shi in e e t o m r i j ry ca se byo an an n w r p t r s f o e n u " u d a o fe se tha in f n t s
th n 50 , wi l qu l fy a a Na e nsure f t e e i co m t e , ft r oa % l ai s m d I d i h r s m i t d a e y u to be t na t na e n i
no o h r siml r in ura ce a al bl to tha th t re i e ; rt e i a s n v ia e t a p m s s o
o ga i a i n o e e :r nz t o . H w v r (2) St u tu a ate a i ns, ne or c r l l r t o w r
a. Co e a e und r thi pro i i n i a f rde o l de oi i n o e a iv r g e s vs o s f o d ny m l t o p r t o s pe fo m dn r r e by o or n

un i th 180t da a t r y u o fo m th be af o such p e i e ot l e h y f e o r r e h l f r m s s wn r, m na e re a g r o
o ga i a i n o the e d o the pe i d, l sso .r nz t o r n f r o e r

5. An pe so o o g nz t o th t is a e ui m nty r n r r a i a i n a n q p e
b. Co e a ev r g A do s no a pl to "bo i y in u y o l sso nd t a o a ee t p y d l j r " r e r a h t y u h v gr e i w i t n coa e d n a r t e ntr cta

"pro e ty da a e th t be o e y u o a re m nt to in l dp r m g " a f r o r g e e cu e a a a d t o as n d i i n l i sure on d n
i e r f rm d he o ga i a i n nd th s Co e a e Pa t is au r d o o e t r nz t o ; a i v r g r n i sure , bun d t o l wi hny t

re pe t to l a i i y fo "bo i y i j ry , "pro e tys c i b l t r d l nu " p rc. Co e a ev r g B do s no a py to "pe so a a de t p l r n l n
da a e , r "pe so a nd a v rt si g i j ry th t:m g " o r n l a d e i n nu " aa v rt sin i j ry a i i g o t o a o f n ed e i g nu " r sn u f n f e s

co mt e be o e y u a q i e o fo m d them i t d f r o c u r d r r e a. Is "bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a e th td l n u " r p r m g " a
o ga i a i n o cur , o i "pe so a a d a v rt si g in u yr nz t o . c s r s r n l n d e i n j r "

ca se by a o fe se tha is co m t e ,u d n f n t m i t d
F r th pu po e o Pa a r po e r s s f r g a h 1. o Se t of c i n II –

subse u nt to the si nng o tha co tr ct oq e g i f t n a r
Who Is An In ure , e ch such o ga i a i n wi l bes d a r nz t o l

a re m nt a dg e e ; n
de m d o b e ig a e n t ee e t e d s n t d i h

b. Is ca se , in whoe o i pa t, by y u a ts ou d l r n r o r c r
a. An o g nz t o , o he tha a pa t e shi , jo nr a i a i n t r n r n r p i t o i si n in the m i t n nce o e a i n o usem s o s an e a , p r t o r

v nt r r i i e i bi i y co pa y re u e o l mt d l a l t m n ; o o e upm n l a e to y u by such e up e tf q i e t e s d o q i m n
l sso .e rb. A rust;t

The in ura ce pro i e t such qu p e t l sso ss n vd d o e i m n e r i
a e in it na e o the do um nt thas t d s m r c e s t

subj ct to t e fo l wi g p o i i n :e h l o n r vso s
go e n i s str ct rev r t u u .

a. The l m ts o i sura ce pro i e to suchi i f n n vd d
4. An pe so o o g nz t o th t i a pre i ey r n r r a i a i n a s m s s e ui m n e so w l e t e m nm m l m t t aq p e t l s r i l b h i i u i i s h t

o ne , m n g r o l sso a d th t y u ha e a re dw r a a e r e r n a o v g e y u a r e to pro i e i the wri te co tr ct oo g e d vd n t n n a r
i a wri t n co t a t o a re m nt to i cl d a an t e n r c r g e e n u e s n a re m nt o the li i s sho n i thg e e , r mt w n e
a di i n l in ure o th s Co e a e Pa t is ad t o a s d n i v r g r n De l ra i ns, hi h v r a e l ss.ca t o w c e e r e
i sure , but o l wit re pe t to li b l t fo "bo i yn d ny h s c a i i y r d l

b. The i sura ce pro i e to such e up e tn n vd d q i m n
i j ry , "pro e ty da a e o "pe so a a dnu " p r m g " r r n l n

l sso do s no a pl to a y "bo i y i j ry oe r e t p y n d l n u " r
a v rt sin nur " th t:d e i g i j y a

"pro e ty da a e th t o curs, o "pe so ap r m g " a c r r n l
a. Is "bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a e th t a d a v rt sin in ur " cad l n u " r p r m g " a n d e i g j y u e by a o fe ses d n f n

th t i co m t e , a t r the e ui m nt l a ea s m i t d f e q p e e soccurs, or is "personal and advertising injury"
e pi e .x r sca se by a o fe se tha is co m t e ,u d n f n t m i t d

subse u nt to the si nng o tha co tr ct oq e g i f t n a r No pe so o o ga i a i n is a in urer n r r nz t o n s d
a re m nt a dg e e ; n th co du t o a y curre t o pa t pa t e shi , jo ne n c f n n r s r n r p i t

Pa e12 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

respect

charge

acquire

which
which

acquire
policy

whichever is earlier;

occurred
acq

subject

contract
Decla che

cease

construction

indica

Declarations as:

with respect to



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

a. The a o n sho n fo th Da a e Tom u t w r e m g
a Na e In ure in the ra i n . Thi pa a ra h Pre i e Re tm d s d a t o s s r g p m s s n e To Y u Li i i thd o m t n e
do s no a pl to a y such pa t e shi , jo n v nt re o De rae t p y n r n r p i t e u r t o s o hi Co e a e Pai n f t s v r g rt o; r
l m te l a i i y co pa y tha o h rwi e qua i i s a ai i d i b l t m n t t e s l f e s n b. $3 0 0 0 if no a o nt i sho n fo the0 , 0 m u s w r

Da a e To Pre i e Re t d To Y u Li i im g m s s n e o m t n

SE TI N I I– L MIT F I S RAN EC O I I S O N U C
7. Su j ct to Pa a r pb e r g a h 5. a o e the M dcab v , e i l1. The Li i s o Insura ce sho n i thm t f n w n e

Ex e se Li i i th m st we wil pa und rp n m t s e o l y ea d th rul s be o fi the m st we wi l pan e e l w x o l y
Co e a ev r g C fo a l m di e p nse be a se or l e x e s c u fr ga de s o he nu be f:e r l s f t m r o
"bo i y i j r " su tan d ya yo e p rso .d l nu y s i e b n n e n

a. In ure s;s d
The Li i s o Insura ce o thi Co e a e Pa t a plm t f n f s v r g r p y

b. Cl i s m de o "sui s" bro gh ; oam a r t u t r se a a ey to e ch co se ut v a n a pe i d a d to a yp r t l a n c i e n u l r o n n
re ani g pe i d o l ss th n 12 m nt s, sta t n wi hm i n r o f e a o h r i g tc. Pe so s o o ga i a i n m kng or n r r nz t o s a i r
th be i nn o the po i y pe i d sho n i thee gn i g f l c r o w nbri gng "sui s".n i t
De ra i ns, une s the poi y pe i d is e t nd d a t rt o l s l c r o x e e f e

2. The Ge e a Agg e a e Lm t m st e wi l p yn r l r g t i i i o w l a
i sua ce fo a a di i n l pe i d o le s th n 12s n r n d t o a r o f s a

fo he sum o :r t f
m nt s. In th t ca e th a d t o a pe i d wi l beo h a s , e d i i n l r o l

a. M di a x e se un e o e a ee c l e p n s d r C v r g C; de m d pa t o h l st re i g e i d o urp se oe e r f t e a p n p r o f r p o s f
de e m nng th Lm ts o nsura cet r i i e i i f I n .b. Da a e unde Co e a em g s r v r g A, e ce t da a ex p m g s

o "bo i y i j ry o "pro e ty da a ef d l n u " r p r m g " SE TI N I – CO MERCIAL G N RAL L AB L TYC O V M E E I I I
i cl d d in th "pro uct -co pe e o e a i nsn u e e d s m l t d p r t o CO D TI NN I O S
ha a d ; ndz r " a

1. B n ru tcya k p
c. Da a e u d r Co e a em g s n e v r g B.

Ba k up cy o i sov ncy o th i sure o o thn r t r n l e f e n d r f e
3. The Pro u ts-Co pl t d Ope a i ns Aggr g ted c m e e r t o e a i sure ' e ta e wi l no re i v us o o r o l ga i nn ds s t l t l e e f u b i t o s

Li i i th m st we wi l pa un e Co e a emt s e o l y d r v r g A for un e hi Co e a e Pa td r t s v r g r .
da a e o "bo i y in u y a d "pro e tym g s f d l j r " n p r

2. D ti s In T e vent O cc rren e O f n e,u e h E f O u c , f e s
da a e i cl de i the "pro uct -co pe em g " n u d n d s m l t d

Cla m r S ii O u t
o e a i n h z rd .p r t o s a a "

a. Y u m st se to i th t we a e no i i d a so no u e t a r t f e s o
4. Su j ct to Pa a r pb e r g a h 2. a o e th Pe so a Andb v , e r n l

a pra a l o a o a o f n es be f n " r n f e s
Ad e t si g In u y Li i is the m st we wi l pav r i n j r m t o l y

whi h m y re ul i a cla m To the e t nc a s t n i . x e t
un e Co e a ed r v r g B fo the sum o a l da a er f l m g s

po si l , sho ls b e ud
be a se o al "pe so a i j ry a d "a v rt sinc u f l r n l n u " n d e i g

(1) Ho , whe a d whe e the e ce ow n n r r n " ri j ry sustan d y a yo e pe so r r a i a i nnu " i e b n n r n o o g nz t o .
o fe se t o l cef n o k p a ;

5. Su j ct to Pa a r pb e r g a h 2. or 3. a o eb v ,
(2) The na e a d a dr sse o a y in ur dm s n d e s f n j ea pl e , the Occurr n e Li i i th m st wep i s e c m t s e o

pe so s a d i n sse ; ndr n n w t e s awi l p y fo he sum o :l a r t f

(3) The na ur a d l ca i n o a y i j ry ot e n o t o f n n u ra. Da a e u d r Co e a em g s n e v r g A; nda
da a e a i i g o t o th e ce om g r sn u f e r n " r

b. M di a x e se un e o e a ee c l e p n s d r C v r g C;
o fe sef n .

be a se o a l "bo i y i j ry a d "pro e ty da a ec u f l d l nu " n p r m g "
b. If a cl i i m de o "sui " i bro g t a anstam s a r t s u h g i

a i i g o t o a yo e "o cur e ce .r sn u f n n c r n "
a y i sure , y u u t:n n d o m s

F r the pur o e o de e m ni g the a pl ca lo p s s f t r i n p i be
(1) Im e i t l re d th o them d a ey e f

Ea h Occurr n e Li i , a l re a e oc e c m t l l t d r
cl i r "sui " a d he da e r cev d ndam o t n t t e i e ; a

o i si n co m t e i pro i i g o fa l ng toms o s m i t d n vdn r i i
(2) No i y us a so n a pr ct ca l .t f s o s a i b epro i e fi st ad o "Go d Sa a i a se vce " tovd r i r o m r t n r i s

a y o e pe so wi l be de m d to be o en n r n l e e n Y u m st se to i tha e r cev ri t no u e t t w e i e w t e
"o cur e ce .c r n " o h cl i o "sui " a so n af t e am r t s o s

6. Su j ct to Pa a r pb e r g a h 5. a o e th Da a e Tob v , e m g c. Y u a d nyo he n ov d n ure m st:o n a t r i v l e i s d u
Pre i e Re t d To Y u Li i i the m st we wilm s s n e o mt s o l

(1) Im e i t l se d us co i s o a ym d a ey n pe f n
pa und r Co e a ey e v r g A fo da a e or m g s f

de a d , , sum o se o le am n s m n s r g l
"pre i e da a e to a y o e pre i e . Them s s m g " n n ms s

pa e s re v d in co ne n wit thp r e n h e
Da a e To Pre i e Re t d To Y u Li i w l em g m s s n e o mt i l b :

cl i r "sui ";am o t

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 13 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

Decl

Declarations

claims

s the

because

cla

cal

cla

ced

because

whichever
Each

acts

because

ctic "occurrence

notice include:

"occur

"occur

cor specifics

notice
practicable.

notices
cei ctio

v nt r o l m t d l a i i y co pa y tha is no sho n ae u e r i i e i b l t m n t t w s

the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

insured under Section II – Who Is An Insured.



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

(2) Au h ri e us to o ta n a d o h rt o z b i n t e (i ii ) An o f ce o of i r r f
i f rm t o ; a yo h r r a i a i n rn o a i n n t e o g nz t o ; o

(3) Co p r t wi h us i th in e ti a i n oo e a e t n e v s g t o r ( v)i A ruste f ny t u t;t e o a r s
se t e e t o the cl i o de e se a anstt l m n f am r f n g i

th t is y u pa t e , jo n v n u ea o r r n r i t e t r
th "sui "; nde t a

m m e , m na e o ru te ; re b r a g r r t s e o
(4) Assi t us, upo o r re ue t, i thes n u q s n

(b) An e po e a t o i e by suchy m l y e u h r z d
e fo ce e t o a y ri h a an t a yn r m n f n g t g i s n

pa t e shi , j i t v n ure li i er n r p on e t , m t d
pe so o o ga i a i n m y be l a lr n r r nz t o a i be

l a i i y co p ny trust or ot ei b l t m a , h r
to th i sure o in u y o da a ee n d f j r r m g

o ga i a i n to gi e o ar nz t o v f n
to wh ch hi i sura ce m yaso a pyi t s n n a l p l .

o o fe se" r f n .
d. No in ure wi l e ce t a th t in ure 's o ns d l , x p t a s d w

(3) to us o such of r
co t, v l nt ri y m k a pa m n , a sum a ys ou a l a e y e t s e n

o fe se wi l be de m d to be gi e a so nf n l e e v n s o
o l g ti n o a y e pe se o h r tha fob i a o , r n x n , t e n r

a pra ti a l i it is gi e i go d fa th as c c b e f v n n o i s
fi st i , wi h u o rr ad t o t u

so n a pra ti a l to y u wo k r 'o s c c b e o r r e s
co p nsa i n in ure . Thi a p i s o l ifm e t o s r s p l e nye. The fo l wi g pro i io s a py to Pa a ra hl o n vs n p l r g p a.
y u subse ue tl gi e no i e to us o theo q n y v t c fa o e bu o l fo pur o e o th in ura ceb v , t ny r p s s f e s n
"o cur e ce o o fe se a so n ac r n " r f n s o spro i e un e t i Co e a e Pa t o y u o a yvd d d r h s v r g r t o r n
pra t ca l a t r a y o th pe so sc i be f e n f e r ni sure l ste i Pa a r pn d i d n r g a h 1. or 2. o Se ti nf c o II
de cri e in Pa a ra hs b d r g p e. 1( ) or (2) a o eb v– Who I A nsure :s n I d
di co e s tha th "o cur e ce o o fe ses v r t e c r n " r f n

(1) No i e to us o such ot c f r m y re ul in sum to whi h the in ura cea s t s c s n
o fe se m st be gi e a so n af n u v n s o s pro i e un e th s Co e a e Pa t m yvd d d r i v r g r a
pra l o l a t r th e ce obe ny f e e r n " r a pl .p y
o fe se is k o n to y u (i y u a e af n n w o f o r n

Ho e e , i thi po i y i cl de a e do se e tw v r f s l c n u s n n r m n
i dvdu l , a y o y u pa tn rs orn i i a) n f o r r e

th t pro i e li i e co e a e fo "bo i y i j rya vd s m t d v r g r d l nu "
m m e s who i a in i i u l (if y u a e ae b r s n d vd a o r

o "pro e ty da a e o pol ti n co ts a i i gr p r m g " r l u o s r sn
pa t e shi o jo n v n ure , a y o y ur n r p r i t e t ) n f o r

o t o a di cha ge re e se o e ca e ou f s r , l a r s p f
m na e s who is a in i i u l (i y u a e aa g r n d vd a f o r "po l t n s" whi h co t i s a re ui e e t thal u a t c n an q r m n t
l m te li b l ty co p n ), a y o y ui i d a i i m a y n f o r th di cha ge re e se o e ca e o "po l t n s"e s r , l a r s p f l u a t
"e e u i e o f ce s" o (i y u a ex c t v f i r r f o r m st be re o te to us wi hn a spe i i n m eu p r d t i c f c u b r
a o g nz t o o h r tha a pa t e shi ,n r a i a i n t e n r n r p o da s a t r i s a ru t co m n e e t, th sf y f e t b p m e c m n i
j i t v nt re o li i e l a i i y co pa y ,on e u , r mt d i b l t m n ) Pa a r pr g a h e. do s n t a fe t t a e u re e t.e o f c h t r q i m n
a y o y ur tr ste s who is a i dvdu l (ifn f o u e n n i i a

3. L g l c i n Ag i s se a A t o a n t Uy u a e a trust) o a y "e pl y eo r r n m o e "
No pe so o o g nz t o ha a ri h und r th sr n r r a i a i n s g t e ia t o i e by y u to gi e no i e o au h r z d o v t c f n
Co e a e P rtv r g a :"o cur e ce o o fe sec r n " r f n .

a. To jo n us a a pa t o o h r i e bri g us i ti s r y r t e w s n n o(2) If y u a e a pa t e shi , jo n v n ureo r r n r p i t e t ,
a "sui " a ki g o d m ge f o n n ure ; ot s n f r a a s r m a i s d rl m te li b l ty co pa y o tru t, a d no ei i d a i i m n r s n n

b. To sue us o th s Co e a e Pa t unl ss a l on i v r g r e l fo y ur pa t e s, jo n v nt r m m e s,f o r n r i t e u e e b r
i s t rm ha e be n u l co p i d i ht e s v e f l y m l e w t .m na e s o t u te s a e i di i u l , o i ea g r r r s e r n vd as n t c

to us o such "o cur e ce o o f nse m stf c r n " r f e u A pe so o o ga i a i n m y sue us to re o e or n r r nz t o a c v r n
be gi e a so n a pra ti a l o l a t rv n s o s c c be ny f e a a r e se t e e t o o a fi a ju g e t a anstn g e d t l m n r n n l d m n g i
th "o cur e ce o o fe se i k o n ye c r n " r f n s n w b : a in ure ; but we wil no be li be fo da a en s d l t a l r m g s

th t a e no pa a l und r th te m o th sa r t y b e e e r s f i(a) An ndvdu l w o i :y i i i a h s
Co e a e Pa t o tha a e i e ce s o thev r g r r t r n x s f

(i) A pa t e o m m e o a yr n r r e b r f n a pl ca l l m t o in ura ce An a r e se tl m np i be i i f s n . g e d t e e t
pa t e shi r on e t r ;r n r p o j i t v n u e m a s a se tl m n a d ee se o i b l t ig e ye n t e e t n r l a f l a i i y s n d b

us, the i sure , a d the cl i a t o th cla m n 'n d n am n r e i a ts
(i )i A m na e o a y l m te l a i i ya g r f n i i d i b l t

l ga e r se ta i ee l r p e n t v .
co p nym a ;

Pa e14 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

records

which
because

executive director

notice
"occurrence

Notice "occurrence"

incur
consent.

ctica "occur

directors

"occurrence"



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

4. O h r n u an e ( it e I s r c i ) Tha i in ura ce fo "pre i et s s n r m s s
da a e ;m g "If v l d a d col cti l o h r i sura ce is a al bl oai n l e be t e n n v i a e t

( i )i i If th lo s a i e o t o thee s r s s u fth i sure fo a lo s we co e unde Co e a ee n d r s v r r v r g s A
m i t na ce o use o a rcra tan e n r f i f ,or B o th s Co e a e Pa t o r o l g t o s a ef i v r g r , u b i a i n r
"a t s" o wa e cra t to the e t ntu o r t r f xel m te a de cri e i a a ra hi i d s s b d n P r g p s a. a dn b. beo .l w
no subj ct to a y e cl sio i th st e n x u n n iAs use a y he e in th s Co e a e Pa t o h rd n w r i v r g r , t e
Co e a e Pa t th t a pl e tov r g r a p i si sura ce m a s in ura ce o th fun i g on n e n s n , r e dn f
arcra t "a t s" o w t rcra ti f , u o r a e f ;l sse , ha s p o i e y hr u h o o b haf o :o s t t i r vd d b , t o g r n e l f

(i )v Tha is in ura ce a al bl to at s n v i a e
(i) An t e i sura ce co pa yo h r n n m n ;

pre i e ow e , m na e orm s s n r a g r
(i )i Us o n f ur ff l a e n ura ce co pa i s,r a yo o a i i t d i s n m n e l sso th t qua i i s a a in uree r a l f e s n s d

e ce t whe th No cum l t o ox p n e n ua i n f un e Pa a ra hd r r g p 4. of II –
Occurr n e Li i pro i io o Pa a ra he c mt vs n f r g p 5. of Who Is An Insure , e ce t whed x p n

III – Li i s Of Insura ce o th Nomt n r e n Pa a r pr g a hd. beo pp i s; rl w a l e o
cum l ti n o Pe so a a d Adv rt sin In urua o f r n l n e i g j y (v) Tha is i sura ce a al b e to at n n v i a l n
Li i pro i io o Pa a ra hmt vs n f r g p 4. of III –

e ui m n l sso th t qua i i s aq p e t e r a l f e s
Li i s o In ura ce a p i s thmt f s n p l e e

a in ure unde Pa a r pn s d r r g a h 5. of
Am n m n – No Cum l t o Ofe d e t n ua i n II – Who Is An Insure ,d
Occurr n e Li i Of Li bi i y And Noe c m t a l t n

e ce t whe Pa a ra hx p n r g p d. beol w
Cum l t o Of Pe so a A d Ad e t si g Inj ryua i n r n l n v r i n u

a pl e .p i s
Li i e do se e t i i cl de n thmt n r m n s n u d i i ;

(b) An o the o h r i sura ce whe hey f t e n n , t r
(i ii )An i k e e ti n gro p; oy r s r t n o u r pri a y e ce s, co t n e t o o a ym r , x s n i g n r n n

o h r ba is, tha i a al bl to tht e s t s v ia e e(iv) Any self-insurance method or program, in
i sure whe the i sure is an d n n d nwhich case the insured will be deemed to be

th p o i e f o h r i sura ce a di i n l i sure , o is a y oe r vd r o t e n n . d t o a n d r n th re
i sure tha do s no qu l fy a an d t e t a i sOt e in ura ce do s no in l d um re lh r s n e t cu e b l a
na e i sure , un e such o h rm d n d d r t ei sura ce o e ce s in ura ce th t wa bo g tn n , r x s s n , a s u h
i sura cen n .spe i i a l to a py in e ce s o th Li i s oc f c l y p l x s f e m t f

(2) Whe th s i sura ce i e ce s, we wiln i n n s x s lIn ura ce sho n in the o th ss n w f i
ha e no dut und r Co e a ev y e v r g s A or B toCo e a e P rtv r g a .
de e d th i sure a anst a y "sui " i a yf n e n d g i n t f n

As use a y he e in th s Pa t o h rd n w r i r , t e
o h r in ure ha a du y to de e d thet e s r s t f n

i sure m a s a pro i e o o h r in ura ce Asn r e n vd r f t e s n .
i sure a an t tha "sui ". If no o h rn d g i s t t t e

use in Pa a ra hd r g p c. beo , in ure m a s al w s r e n
i sure de e d , we wi l un e t k t o son r f n s l d r a e o d ,

pro i e f n ura cevd r o i s n .
bu we wi l b nt t e t h i sure ' ri h st l e e i l d o t e n ds g t
a anst l h se o h r nsur r .g i a l t o t e i e sa. P i ary I su an er m n r c

(3) Whe thi in ura ce i e ce s o e o h rn s s n s x s v r t eThi insura ce is pri a y whes n m r n
i sura ce we wi l pa o l o r sha e o then n , l y ny u r fPa a r pr g a h b. beo a pl e . If th s i sura ce il w p i s i n n s
a o nt o the lo s, i a y th t e ce d them u f s f n , a x e spri a y o r o l g ti n a e no a f cte une sm r , u b i a o s r t f e d l s
sum o :fa y o th o h r i sura ce is aso pri a yn f e t e n n l m r .
(a) The to a a o nt tha a l such o h rt l m u t l t eThe , we wi l sha e wi h a l t a o he n ura cen l r t l h t t r i s n

i sur n e wo l pa fo th lo s i thn a c u d y r e s n eby t e m th d e cri e n Pa a r ph e o d s b d i r g a h c. beo ,l w
a se ce o hi i sura ce nb n f t s n n ; a de ce t h n a a ra hx p w e P r g p d. beo pp i s.l w a l e

(b) The to a o a l a d se ft l f l n l -b Ex e s I s ran e. c s n u c
i sure a o nt unde a l th t o h rn d m u s r l a t e

(1) Thi i sura ce i e ce s o e :s n n s x s v r i sur n en a c .

(4) We wi l sha e the re anng l ss, if a yl r m i i o n ,( )a An o the o he in ura ce whe hey f t r s n , t r
wi h a y o he in ura ce th t i not n t r s n a s tpri a y e ce s, co t n e t o o a ym r , x s n i g n r n n
de cri e in thi Ex e s Insura ces b d s c s no h r b si :t e a s
pro i i n a d wa no bo g t spe i i a l tvs o n s t u h c f c l y o

( )i Tha is Fi e Ex e d d Co e a et r , t n e v r g , a pl i e ce s o the Li i s o In ura cep y n x s f m t f s n
Bu l e ' Ri k In ta l t o Risk oi d rs s , s l a i n r sho n i th r t o s o thi Cov r gw n e a i n f s e a e

Pa tr .

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 15 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

Each

Section

Section
because

Each

s policy

Section

Section

except

deductible

Decla
similar coverage for "your work";

Declarations

Coverage



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

c. Meth d O h rin a.o f S a g The sta e e t in th a et m n s e r
a cura e a d co pe ec t n m l t ;If a l o the o he i sura ce pe m t co t i ut ol f t r n n r i s n r b i n

by e u l sha e , w i l fo l w t i m t o l oq a r s e w l l o hs e h d as . b. Tho e sta e e ts a e ba e upos t m n r s d n
Und r th s e ch in ure co t i ut s re re e t ti n y ue i a s r n r b e p s n a o s o a e to us; nm d a d
e ua a o n s unt l it ha pa d it a pl ca lq l m u t i s i s p i b e c. We ha e i sue th s poi y i re i n e up nv s d i l c n l a c o
l m t o in ura ce o no e o th l ss re ans,i i f s n r n f e o m i y ur e re e ta i ns.o r p s n t o

The uni te ti n l o i sio o , o uni t n i na e ron n o a m s n f r n e t o l r r
If a y o th o h r i sura ce do s no pe m tn f e t e n n e t r i i , a y i f rm ti n pro i e by y u whi h we re i dn n n o a o vd d o c l e
co trbu i n by e u l sha e , we wi l co t i utn i t o q a r s l n r b e up n i issui g th s po i y wi l no pre u i e y uo n n i l c l t j d c o r
by l m t . Und r th s m t o , e ch i sure 'si i s e i e h d a n r ri ht unde th s in ura ce Ho e e , thi pro i i ng s r i s n . w v r s vso
sha e is ba e o the ra i o i s a p i a l i ir s d n t o f t p l c be l m t do s no a f ct o r ri h to col ct a di i n le t f e u g t l e d t o a
o in ura ce to th to a a pl ca l li i s of s n e t l p i be mt f pre i m o to e e ci e o r rig t o ca cel t o om u r x r s u h s f n l a i n r
i sura ce o l nsure s.n n f a l i r no re e a i cco d nce w t pp i a l n ura cen n w l n a r a i h a l c b e i s n

d P i a y And No -Co trib t ry In u an e If. r m r n n u o s r c l ws o e ul t o s.a r r g a i n
Req i ed B Wri te o tracu r y t n C n t 7. Se arat o f n u edp i n O I s r s
If y u spe i i a l a re i a wri t n co t a t oo c f c l y g e n t e n r c r Ex e t wi h re pe t to the Li i s o In ura ce a dc p t s c m t f s n , n
a re m nt tha the i sura ce a fo d d to ag e e t n n f r e n a y ri h s o du i s a sig e i th sn g t r t e s n d n i
i sure un e hi Co e a e Pa t m st p l nn d d r t s v r g r u a pyo Co e a e Pa t to the fi st Na e Insure , th sv r g r r m d d i
a pri a y ba i , o a pri a y a d no -m r ss r m r n n i sura ce a pl e :n n p i s
co trbu o y ba is, th s i sura ce is pri a y ton i t r s i n n m r

a. As i e ch Na e In ure we e the o lf a m d s d r ny
o h r in ura ce th t i a al bl ot e s n a s v ia e t

Na e n ure ; ndm d I s d a
whi h o e s such n ure a a n m d i sure ,c c v r i s d s a e n d

b. Se a a ey to e ch in ure a an t who cl ip r t l a s d g i s m ama d we wil no sha e wi h th t o h r in ura cen l t r t a t e s n ,
i m d o "sui " i b o g ts a e r t s r u h .pro i e ha :vd d t t

8. Tra sfe O i h s O e o ery Ag i s t ersn r f R g t f R c v a n t O h(1) The "bo iy i j ry o "pro e ty da a e fod l nu " r p r m g " r
To Uswhi h co e a e i so gh o cur ; ndc v r g s u t c s a
If the i sure ha ri h s to re o e al o pa t o a yn d s g t c v r l r r f n(2) The "pe so a a d a v rt sin i j ry for n l n d e i g n u " r
pa m n we ha e m d unde thi Co e a e Pa ty e t v a e r s v r g r ,whi h co e a e is so gh i ca se by ac v r g u t s u d n
th se ri ht a e tra sfe re t us. he i sure usto g s r n r d o T n d mo fe se t a i co m t e ;f n h t s m i t d
do no hng a te l ss to i p i th m At o r re u st,t i f r o m ar e . u q e

subse u nt to the si nng o tha co tr ct oq e g i f t n a r
th i sure wi l bri g "sui " o tra sfe tho e ri h se n d l n t r n r s g t

a re m nt by y ug e e o .
to us a d h l s e f rce t e .n ep u n o h m

5. P e i m Au ir m u d t
9. Wh n We D N t en we o o R e

a. We wi l co p t a l p e i m f r hs Co e a el m u e l r m u s o t i v r g
If we d ci e n t o r n w hs Co e a e P rt e wi le d o t e e t i v r g a , w l

Pa t i cco d nce wt ur ue a d a e .r n a r a i h o r l s n r t s
m i o de i e to th fi st Na e In ure sho n inal r l v r e r m d s d w

b. Pre i m sho n in th s Co e a e Pa t am u w i v r g r s th De l ra i n wri te no i e o the no r n wae ca t o s t n t c f n e e l
a v nce pre i m i a de o i pr m um o l . Ad a m u s p s t e i ny t no l ss th n 0 da s be o e t e e pi a i n da et e a 3 y f r h x r t o t .
th clo e o e ch a d t pe i d we wi l co p te s f a u i r o l m u e

If no i e is m i e , pro f o m i i g wi l be suffi i nt c al d o f a l n l c e t
th e rn d pre i m fo th t pe i d a d se de a e m u r a r o n n

pro f f o i eo o n t c .
no i e t th fi st Na e I sure . The du da et c o e r m d n d e t

SE TI N V – D F N T O SC O E I I I Nfo a di a d re ro pe ti e p e i m i t e d tr u t n t s c v r m u s s h a e
1. "shown as the due date on the bill. If the sum of Ad e t se e t" m a s a no i e th t s br a ca t ov r i m n e n t c a i o d s r

pu l she to the ge e a pub i o spe i i m rb i d n r l l c r c f c athe advance and audit premiums paid for the k te
po i y pe i d is gre te tha the e rn dl c r o a r n a e se m nt a o t y ur go ds, pro u ts o ser i eg e s b u o o d c r vc s

fo th purp se o a t a g custo e s or e o f t r m r rpremium, we will return the excess to the first
Na e nsure . supp rt r . o h p r o e o hi de i i i nm d I d o e s F r t e u p s s f t s f n t o :

c. The fi st Na e In ure m st k e re o d or m d s d u e p c r s f a. No i e th t a e publ she i cl de m t r at c s a r i d n u a e i l
th in o m t o we ne d fo pre i m pl ce o the Int rn t o oe f r a i n e r mu a d n e e r n sim l ri a
co p t ti n a d se d us co i s a such t m sm u a o , n n pe t i e m a s o co m ni a i n; a de n f m u c t o n
a we m y re u st.s a q e b. Re a di g we sit s, o l tha pa t o a we si eg r n b e ny t r f b t

6. Rep es n ati nr e t o s th t is a o t y u go d , pro u ts o se vcea b u o r o s d c r r i s
fo th pur o e o a t a custo e s or e p s s f t r m r rBy ti g t i p l cy o gre :p n hs oi , y u a e
supp rt r i co si e e a a v rtse e to e s s n d r d n d e i m n .

Pa e16 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

approach

specifically

ctin

cting

electronic

acce

whichever comes first.

Declarations

such insured



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

2. "Ad e t si g i j ry :v r i n nu " b. In by o wit a y o he ee o i m a s o, r h n t r l nc e n f
co m nca i n such a th In e n t, if tham u i t o , s e t r e ta. M a s in ur ca se by o e o m re o thee n j y u d n r o f
m te i l i p r f:a r a s a t ofo l wi g o fe se :l o n f n s

(1) Ra i o te e i i n pro r m i g bengdo r l vso g a m n i(1) Ora o writ e a i n incl di gl r t n t o , u n
tr n m t e ;a s i t dpu l ca i n by ee o i m a s, o m t ri lb i t o l nc e n f a e a

i y ur "a v rtse e t th t sla d rs on o d e i m n " a n e r (2) Ot e en e ta n e t e uca i n lh r t r i m n , d t o a,
l b l a pe son or or a i a i n ori es r g nz t o

i structi n l m si o ne s pro r m i gn o a, u c r w g a m n
di pa a e a pe so ' o o ga i a i nss r g s r ns r r nz t o '

ben ra sm t e ; oi g t n i t d r
go ds, pro u ts o se vce , pro i e thao d c r r i s vd d t
th cla m i m d o he "sui " i b o g t bye i s a e r t t s r u h (3) Ad e t si g tra sm t e wi h a y o suchv r i n n i t d t n f
a pe so o o g ni a i n h t cl i s to ha er n r r a z t o t a am v pro ra m n .g m i g
be n sla d re o li ee , o tha cla m toe n e d r b l d r t i s

6. "Co e a e t rri o y m a s:v r g e t r " e n
ha e ha it go ds, pro uct o se vcev d s o d s r r i s
di pa a e ;s r g d a. The Uni e Sta e o Am ri a (i cl di g i st d t s f e c n u n t

te r t r e a d po se si ns), Pue t Ri o a dr i o i s n s s o r o c n(2) Ora o writ e pub i i n incl di gl r t n l o , u n
Ca a an d ;pu l ca i n by ee i m a s, o m t r ab i t o l nc e n f a e i l

i o r "a v rt se e t th t:n y u d e i m n " a b. In e na i na wa e s o a rspa e but o l if thet r t o l t r r i c , ny
(a) Ap ro ri t s a pe so ' na e v i ep p a e r ns m , oc , i j ry o da a e o curs in th co rse o tra en u r m g c e u f v l

ph t gr p r i e e s; oo o a h o l k n s r o tra spo t t o be w e a y pl ce in l d dr n r a i n t e n n a s cu e
i Pa a r pn r g a h a. a o e rb v ; o(b) Unre so a l pl ce a pe so in aa n b y a s r n

fa se lgh ; rl i t o c. Al o h r pa t o th wo l if th i j ry ol t e r s f e r d e n u r
da a e a i e o t o :m g r s s u f(3) In r ng m nt o co y i ht "ti l " o "sl g n"f i e e f p r g , t e r o a

i y u "a v rt se e t , pro i e tha thn o r d e i m n " vd d t e (1) Go ds o pro uct m d o sod by y u ino r d s a e r l o
cl i i m d o th "sui " i bro gh by aam s a e r e t s u t th te ri o y de cri e i Pa a r pe r t r s b d n r g a h a.
pe so o o ga i a i n tha cla mr n r r nz t o t i s a o eb v ;
o ne shi o such co y i ht "ti l " ow r p f p r g , t e r

(2) The a ti i i s o a pe so who e ho e i ic vt e f r n s m s n"sl g n .o a "
th te ri o y de cri e i Pa a r pe r t r s b d n r g a h a.

b. In l d s "bo i y in ur " ca se by o e o m rcu e d l j y u d n r o e a o e but i a a fo a sho t ti e o y urb v , s w y r r m n o
o the o f n e de crib d in Pa a ra hf f e s s s e r g p a. bu i e s; rsn s o
a o eb v .

(3) "Pe so a a d a v rt sin i j ry o fe ser n l n d e i g n u " f n s
3. "Au o m a s:t " e n th t ta e pl ce th o g th In e ne oa k a r u h e t r t r

a. A l nd m t r v hcl , tra l r o se i r i ea o o e i e i e r m t al r si i a l ct o i m a s o o m nca i nm l r ee r nc e n f c m u i t o ;
de i n d fo tra e o pub i ro ds, i cl di gsg e r v l n l c a n u n

pro i e the insure ' re po sib l ty to pavd d ds s n i i y
a ya t che a hi e yo qu pm n ; rn t a d m c n r r e i e t o

da a e is de e m n d in a "sui " o th m r t im g s t r i e t n e e i s n
b. An o he la d v hcl th t is sub e t to ay t r n e i e a j c th te ri o y de cri e i Pa a r pe r t r s b d n r g a h a. a o e o ib v , r n a

co p l o y o fi a ci l re po si i i y la , om us r r n n a s n b l t w r se t e e t we a re ot l m n g e t .
o h r m to v hi l i sura ce l w, whe e i it e o r e c e n n a r t s

7. "El ct o i da a m a s in o m t o , fa t oe r nc t " e n f r a i n c s rl ce se r ri ci a l a a e .i n d o p n p lyg r g d
pro ra s sto e a o o , cre te o use o , og m r d s r n a d r d n r

Ho e e , "a t " do s no in l d "m bi ew v r u o e t cu e o l
tr n m t e to o fro co pu e so tw r (i cl d nga s i t d r m m t r f a e n u i

e ui m n ".q p e t
sy te s a d a p i a i ns so tw r ) ha d o fl p ys m n p l c t o f a e , r r o p

4. "Bo i y i j r " m a s:d l nu y e n di ks, CD-ROM , ta e , dri e , cel s, da as s p s v s l t
pro e sin de i e o a y o h r m di a ec s g vc s r n t e e a ra. Ph si a ha m i cl di g si kn ss o di e sey c l r , n u n c e r s a ,
use i h ee o i a l co t o l d e ui m n .d w t l nc l y n r l e q p e tsusta n d ya pe so ; oi e b r n r

b. M nt l a g i h, i j ry o i l e s, o e o i n le a n u s n u r l n s r m t o a 8. "Em l y e i cl de a "l a e wo k r". "Em l y epo e " n u s e s d r e po e "
di tre s, re ul i g a a y ti e fro suchs s s t n t n m m do s n t i cl d "te po a y wo k r .e o n u e a m r r r e "
ph si a h rm i e s o di e sey c l a , s s r s a .

9. "Ex cut v o f ce " m a s a pe so hodi g a y oe i e f i r e n r n l n n f
5. "Bro dca ti g m a s tra sm ttn a y a d o oa s n " e n n i i g n u i r th o fi e po it o s cre te by y u cha t r,e f c r s i n a d o r r e

vsua a e i l fo ny p r o ei l m t r a r a u p s : co sti u i n bya s o a y o h r siml r go e nngn t t o , l w r n t e i a v r i
do um n .c e ta. By ra i o ee i io ; odo r t l vs n r

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 17 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

public
ctr

ctr

cat
ctro

ckn

which
ctr



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

10. "Go d Sa a i a se vce " m a s a y e e g n y tr ck , ro db do m r t n r i s e n n m r e c a s a e s, tu n l und r a sn e, e p s or
m di a se vce fo whi h no co p n a i n is cro sin ;e c l r i s r c m e s t o s g
de a d d r e ev dm n e o r c i e . (2) Tha i d m i i s a a chi e gne r ot n e n f e n r t n i e r

11. "Ho ti e fi e m a s a fi e whi h e surv y r o i j ry o a as l r " e n r c m s e o f r n u r d m g ri in ut o :e a s g o f
tr l a l o bre k o t fro whe e i wan ol b e r a s u m r t s (a) Pre a i g a pr vng o fa l n top r n , p o i , r i i g

i t nd d o b .n e e t e pr pa e or ap r v , m p , shoe r p o e a s p
12. "Im are pro e t " m a s ta gbl pro e t , o he dra i g , o ip i d p r y e n n i e p r y t r w n s pn o s, re o ts, survi n p r e s,y

th n "y ur pro uct o "y ur wo k , tha ca n t be fi l o d rs, cha ga o d " r o r " t n o ed r e n e o d rs o ra i gsr e r d w n
use r s l ss use u e a se a d pe i i a i ns; rd o i e f l b c u : n s c f c t o o

a. It i co po a e "y ur pro uct o "y ur wo kn r r t s o d " r o r " (b) Gi i g di e t o s o i stru ti n , ovn r c i n r n c o s r
th t is kn wn o th ug t to be de e v , fa l ng to gi e th m ifa o r o h f e i i v e , th t is thea
de i n , n de u te o a g ro s; o pri a y ca se o the in u y of t i a q a r d n e u r m r u f j r r da a em g ;

orb. Y u ha e fa l d to ful i l the te m o a co tr cto v i e f l r s f n a
(3) Und r whi h the i sure , if a a chi e t,e c n d n r t cor agreement;

e gi e r o surv y r, a sum s l a i i y fon n e r e o s e i b l t ri such pro e t ca be re to e to use by t ef p r y n s r d h
a in u y o da a e a i in o t o then j r r m g r s g u fre ar, re l ce e t, a j stm nt o re o a o "y urp i pa m n du e r m v l f o
i sure 's re de i g o fa l r to re den d n r n r i u e n r

pro uct o "y ur wo k o y u fu fi l n t e te m od " r o r " r o r l l i g h r s f
pro e si n l se vce , in l dn ho e lstef s o a r i s c u i g t s i d

th co t a t o gr e e t.e n r c r a e m n
i Pa a r pn r g a h (2) a o e a d sup r i o yb v n e vs r ,

13. "In ure co t a t m a s:s d n r c " e n i spe t o , a chi e a o e gne ri gn c i n r t r l r n i e n
a t vti s.c i i ea. A co t a t fo a l a e o pre i e . Ho e e ,n r c r e s f m s s w v r

th t po t o o t e co t a t fo a l a e oa r i n f h n r c r e s f 14. "Le se wo k r" m a s a pe so l a e o y u ba d r e e n r n e s d t o y a
pre i e tha in e n f e a y pe so om s s t d m i i s n r n r l bo l a in fi m unde a a r e e t be we n y ua r e s g r r n g e m n t e o
o ga i a i n fo "pre i e da a e i no ar nz t o r ms s m g " s t n a d the la o le si g fi m to pe f rm dut e re a en b r a n r , r o i s l t d
"i sure o tr ct ;n d c n a " to the co d ct o y ur bu i e s. "Le se wo k r"n u f o sn s a d r e

do s n t i cl d "te p ra y wo k r .e o n u e a m o r r e "b. A i e ra k a re m n ;sd t c g e e t
15. "Lo di g o unl a i g" m a s th ha d i g oa n r o d n e n e n l n fc. An e se e t o li e se a re m nt e ce t iny a m n r c n g e e , x p

pro e typ r :co ne ti n wi h co stru ti n o de oi i nn c o t n c o r m l t o
o e a Af e i is m v d fro th pl ce whe e i isp r t r t o e m e a r tti n o o i hn 5 e t o a ro do s n r w t i 0 f e f a r i a ; a.l

t d fo m v m n i t o o t a arcra tp e r o e e t n o r n o n i f ,d. An o l ga i n, a re ure by o dna ce tob i t o s q i d r i n ,
wa e cra t r "a t ";t r f o u oi d m i y a m nci a i y e ce t i co ne ti nn e n f u i p l t , x p n n c o

wi h o k f r a m ni a i yt w r o u l t ; b. Whi e i is i o o a arcra t wa e cra t ol t n r n n i f , t r f r
"a t "; ru o oe. An ee a o ant na ce a re m ntl v t r m i e n g e e ;

c. Whi e i is be n m v d fro a a rcra tl t i g o e m n i f ,f. Tha pa t o a y o he co t a t o a re m ntt r f n t r n r c r g e e
wa e cra t o "a t " to th pl ce whe e i ist r f r u o e a r tp r ann to y ur busi e s (i cl di g ae t i i g o n s n u n n
fi a l e i e e ;n l yd l v r di de n fi a i n o a m ni i a i y i co nen m i c t o f u cp l t n n n

wi h wo k pe f r e fo a m nci a i y und rt r r o m d r u i p l t ) e bu "l a i g o unl a i g do s no i cl de thet o dn r o dn " e t n u
whi h y u a sum th to t li b l t o a o h r m v m nt oc o s e e r a i i y f n t e o e e f pro e ty by m a s op r e n f a m ch ncae a i l
pa t to pa fo "bo i y in ur ", "pro e ty de i e o h r tha a har y y r d l j y p r vc , t e n n tr ck tha i no a ta hed u , t s t t c d
da a e o "pe so a i j ry t a thi d pe som g " r r n l nu " o r r n to t e arcra t w t rcra t o "a t ".h i f , a e f r u o
o o ga i a i n To t l a i i y m a s a li b l tyr r nz t o . r i b l t e n a i i 16. "M bi e e upm n " m a s a y o the fo l wi go l q i e t e n n f l o n
th t wo l be i po e by l w i t e a se ce oa ud m s d a n h b n f ty e o la d v hi l s, i cl di g a y a ta hep s f n e ce n u n n t c d
a y co t r g e m ntn n r o a r e e . m chi e yo e ui m nta n r r q p e :
Pa a r pr g a h f. do s no i cl de th t pa t o a ye t n u a r f n a. Bu l o e s, fa m m chi e y fo ki ts a d o h rl d z r r a n r , r l f n t e
co tr ct o a re m n :n a r g e e t v hi s de i n d fo use pri ci a l o f pub ie sg e r n p l y f l c
(1) Tha i d m i i s a ra l o d fo "bo i y ro d ;t n e n f e i r a r d l a s

i j ry o "pro e ty da a e a i i g o t onu " r p r m g " r sn u f b. Ve i l s m i t i e fo use soey o o ne t tohce an an d r l l n r x
co stru n o de oi i n o e a i ns,n r m l t o p r t o pre i e y u wn r e tm s s o o o r n ;
wi hi 50 fe t o a y ra l o d pro e t a dt n e f n i r a p r y n

c. Ve i l s t a t a e n l r t e ds;hce h t r v l o w e r aa fe t ng a y ra l o d bri g o tre tl ,f c i n i r a d e r s e

Pa e18 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

ect,
beco

unco

cti
cie

ctu

acce

cip

ctio

act

ctio

cra

cle



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

d. Ve i s, whe he sel -pro el d o no ,h t r f p le r t b. An a t o o i si n co m t e in pro i i g oc r m s o m i t d vd n r
m i tan d pri a i y to pro i e m b l ty to fa l ng to pro i e fi stan i e m r l vd o i i i i vd r ad o "Go d Sai r o m ri aa t n
pe m ne t y m u t d:r a n l o n e se vce " to a pe so , un e s y u a e i ther i s r n l s o r n

bu i e s o occup ti n of pro i i gsn s r a o vdn(1) Po e cra e , sho es, l a e s, di g rs ow r n s v l o d r g e r
pro e sio a e l h ca e se vce .f s n l h at r r i sdri l ; ol s r

18. "Pe so a a d a v r i i g i j ry m a s "pe so ar n l n d e t sn n u " e n r n l(2) Road construction or resurfacing
e ui m n such a gra e s, scra e s o i j ry o "a v rt sin nq p e t s d r p r r n u " r d e i g i j r ".u y
ro l rs;l e

19. "Pe so a nur ":r n l i j y
e. Ve i l s no de crib d i Pa a r phce t s e n r g a h a., b., c.

a. M a s i j ry o he tha "a v rtsin in u y ,e n n u , t r n d e i g j r "or d. a o e th t a e no se f pro el d a d a eb v a r t l - p l e n r
ca se by o e o m r o th fo l w ngu d n r o e f e l o im i t i e pri a i y to pro i e m b l t toan an d m r l vd o i i y
o fe se :f n spe m n n l a ta he e up e t of ther a e t y t c d q i m n

fo l wi g t p s:l o n y e (1) F l e a re t, de e t o r m ri o m n ;as r s t n i n o i p s n e t
(1) Ai co pr sso s, pum s a d ge e a o s,r m e r p n n r t r

(2) M l ci us pr se o ;a i o o i n
i cl dng spra i g, we dng bui dngn u i yn l i , l i
cl a i g ge ph si a e pl ra i n, l gh i ge n n , o y c l x o t o i t n (3) The wro gf l e i fro , wro gf l e trn u v n m n u n y
a d el se vci g e ui m nt rn w l r i n q p e ; o i t , o in a i n o the ri h o pri a en o r v s o f g t f v t

o cup ncy o a ro m dwe l n o pre i ec a f o , l i g r m s s(2) Che ry pi k rs a d si i a de i e use tor c e n m l r vc s d
th t a pe so o cupe , pro i e tha thea r n c i s vd d tra se o o e o k rs;i r l w r w r e
wro g u vct o , wro g u nt yo n a i nn f l e i i n n f l e r r i v so

f. Ve i l s no de crib d i Pa a r phce t s e n r g a h a., b., c.
o the ri h o pri a e o cupa cy isf g t f v t c n

or d. a o e m i tan d pri a i y fo pu po eb v an i e m r l r r s s
co m t e by o o be af o the o ne ,m i t d r n h l f w r

o h r tha th tra spo t t o o pe so s ot e n e n r a i n f r n r
l ndo d o le so o tha ro m dwel ng oa l r r s r f t o , l i rca g .r o
pre i e ;m s s

Ho e e , se f pro el d v hcl s wi h thw v r l - p l e e i e t e
(4) Ora o writ e pub i a i n incl di gl r t n l c t o , u nfo l wi g ty e o pe m n nt y at a hel o n p s f r a e l t c d

pu l ca i n by ee t o i m a s, o m t r ab i t o l c r nc e n f a e i le ui m nt a e no "m bi e e u pm n " bu wilq p e r t o l q i e t t l
th t sl nd r o l b l a pe so oa a e s r i es r n rbe co si e e "a t s":n d r d u o

o di pa a e a pe so 's or s r g s r n r(1) Eq i m nt de ig e ri a i y f r:u p e s n d p m r l o

(a) Sn w r m v lo e o a; pro i e t a the cl i i m d r he "sui "vd d h t am s a e o t t
i bro g t by a pe so o o g nz ti n thas u h r n r r a i a o t(b) Ro d m i t na ce but noa an e n , t

co stru n o r surfa i g; o cl i s to ha e be n sl nd r d o i en r e cn r am v e a e e r l b l d, oe r
th t cl i s to ha e ha i s go ds, pro u tsa am v d t o d c(c) St e t i g;r e n n
o se vce di pa a e ; or r i s s r g d r

(2) Che ry pi ke s an siml r de i er c r d ia vc s
(5) Ora o wri te publ ca i n, in l d nl r t n i t o cu i gm un e o a t m bi e o truck cha siso t d n u o o l r s

pu l ca i n by ee tr nc m a s, o m t ri lb i t o l c o i e n f a e aa d se t ase o o e o k rs; a dn u d o r i r l w r w r e n
th t:a(3) Ai co pr sso s, pum s a d ge e a o s,r m e r p n n r t r

i cl di g spra i g we di g bui di gn u n yn , l n , l n (a) Ap ro ri t s a pe so ' na e v i ep p a e r ns m , oc ,
cl a i g ge ph si a e pl ra i n, l gh i ge n n , o y c l x o t o i t n ph t gr p r i e e s; oo o a h o l k n s r
a d el se vci g e ui m ntn w l r i n q p e .

(b) Unre so a l pl ce a pe so in aa n by a s r n
Ho e e , "m bi e e up e t do s no i cl de a yw v r o l q i m n " e t n u n

fa se l gh .l i t
l nd v hcl th t is sub e t to a co puso y oa e i e a j c m l r r

b. In l d s "bo i y in ur " ca se by o e o m rcu e d l j y u d n r o efinancial responsibility law, or other motor vehicle
i sura ce l w, whe e i is l ce se o pri ci a l o the o f n en n a r t i n d r n p l y f f e s s de crib d in Pa a ra hs e r g p a.
ga a e . Such la d v hcl s a e co sid rer g d n e i e r n e d a o eb v .
"a t s".u o

20. "Po l t n s" m a a y soi , l qud ga e u ol u a t e n n l d i i , s o s r
17. "Occurr n e m a s:e c " e n th rm l irr t n o co t m n nt i cl di g sm k ,e a i a t r n a i a , n u n o e

v po , so t, fu e , s, ak l s, che i as a da r o m s d l a i m c l na. A a ci e t, i cl di g co ti uo s o re e t dn c d n n u n n n u r p a e
wa te Wa te in l d s m te i l to be re y l d,s . s c u e a r as c c ee po ure to substa t a l th sa e ge e ax s n i l y e m n r l
re o di i n d o r cl i e .c n t o e r e am dha m ul co di i n ; rr f n t o s o

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 19 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

cle

cut

ctio

clea

ctio

aci

organization
organization's goods, products or services,



COMM RCIAL E ERAL IAB LITYE G N L I

21. "Pre i e da a e m a s: co tr ct ca l fo wo k a m re th nm s s m g " e n n a l s r r t o a
o e j b i en o s t .a. Wit re to th fi st pa a ra h o theh s e r r g p f

e ce ti n in Ex l siox p o s cu n j. of I – (c) Whe tha pa t o the wo k do e a an t r f r n t
Co e a ev r g A – Bo i y In ur And Pro e td l j y p r y j b si e ha be n put to it i t nd do t s e s n e e
Da a e Li b l ty "pro e ty da a e to a ym g a i i , p r m g " n use b nyp r o o rg nz t o th rya e s n r o a i a i n o e
pre i e whi e re t d to y u fo a pe i d om s s l n e o r r o f th n an th r co tr ct r ora o e n a o
se e o fe e co se ut v da s, in l dng thev n r w r n c i e y cu i subco t a t r wo kn o th sa en r c o r i g n e m
co te ts o uch re i e ; rn n f s p m s s o pro e tj c .

b. Wit re pe t to th e ce t o to Ex l si nsh s c e x p i n c u o c. Wo k tha m y ne d se vce m i t na cer t a e r i , an e n ,
th o gr u h n. i he l st a a ra h o a a r pn t a p r g p f P r g a h 2. co r ct o , re ar o re l ce e t, bu w i hr e i n p i r pa m n t h c
o Se ti nf c o I – Co e a ev r g A – Bo iy Inj ry Andd l u i o h rwi e co pl t , wi l be tre t d as t e s m e e l a e s
Pro e ty Da a e La i i y "pro e ty d m ge top r m g i b l t , p r a a " co pe e .m l t d
a y pre i e whi e re t d t y u fo a pe i d on m s s l n e o o r r o f

b. Do s no in l d "bo i y in u y o "pro e tye t cu e d l j r " r p rm re th n se e co se ut v da s, o whi eo a v n n c i e y r l
da a e a i i g o t o :m g " r sn u fte p ra i y o cupe by y u wi h pe m ssio om o r l c i d o t r i n f

th o n r, ca se ye w e u d b : (1) The tr n po t ti n o pro e t , unl ss thea s r a o f p r y e
i j ry o da a e a i e o t o co d t o nn u r m g r s s u f a n i i n i(1) F rei ;
o on a v hcl no o n d o o e a e byr e i e t w e r p r t d

(2) Ex l si n;po o y u, a d tha co di i n wa cre t d by theo n t n t o s a e
" o h t e i l b nyf t a v hce y a(3) Lightning; l a i g o unl a i g"o dn r o d n
i sure ;n d(4) Sm k re ul i g fro fi e e pl sio oo e s t n m r , x o n r

l g t i g ri h nn ; o (2) The e i te ce o to l , uni sta l dxs n f os n l e
e ui m nt o ab nd n d o unuseq p e r a o e r d(5)
m te i l ; ra r as o

Bu "pre i e da a e un e thi Pa a r pt m s s m g " d r s r g a h
(3) Pro uct o o e a i n fo whi h thd s r p r t o s r c eb. do s no in l d "pro e ty da a e to a ye t c u e p r m g " n

cl ssi i a i n, li te i th De ra i ns oa f c t o s d n e t o rpre i e ca se b :m s s u d y
i a poi y Sche u e sta e th t pro uct -n l c d l , t s a d s

(1) Rup u e bu sti g o o e a i n o pre suret r , r n , r p r t o f s co pe e o e a i n a e subj ct to them l t d p r t o s r e
re i f e i e ;l e d vc s Ge e a g re a e Li i .n r l A g g t mt

(2) Rup u e o bu sti g due to e p nsio ot r r r n x a n r 23. "Pro e ty d m ge m a s:p r a a " e n
swel n o th co t n s o a y bui dn ol i g f e n e t f n l i g r

a. Ph si a in u y to ta gi l pro e t , in dng aly c l j r n be p r y i lstru tu e ca se b r e ul i g r m w t r;c r u d yo r s t n f o a e
re ul i g l ss o use o th t pro e t . Al suchs t n o f f a p r y lor
l ss o use wi l be de m d to t t e t m fo f l e e a h i e o

(3) Ex l si n o ste m bo l r , ste m pi e ,po o f a i e s a p s th p y i a nu y t a ca se t re h sc l i j r h t u d i ; o
ste m e gi e o te m t r i e .a n n s r s a u b n s

b. Lo s o use o ta gi l pro e ty tha i nos f f n b e p r t s t
ph si a l in ur d Al such l ss o use wi l bey c l y j e . l o f l22. "Products-completed operations hazard":
de m d to o cur a the ti e o th cee e c t m f e n "

a. In l d s a l "bo i y in ur " a d "pro e tycu e l d l j y n p r
th t a se ta c u d i .

da a e o cur i g a a fro pre i e y um g " c r n w y m ms s o
F r the purp se o th s in ura ce "ee i da ao o s f i s n , l nc t "o n o re t a d a i in o t o "y ur pro uct ow r n n r s g u f o d " r
i n t a gbl ro e t .s o t n i e p p r y"y ur o k e ce t:o w r " x p

24. "Sl g n :o a "(1) Pro uct th t a e sti l in y ur phy icad s a r l o s l
a. M a s a phr se th t o h r u e fo he pu p see n a a t e s s r t r opossession; or

o t ra ti g a t n i n n t er d e t sin .f a t c n t e t o i h i a v r i g
(2) Wo k tha ha no y t be n co pe e or t s t e e m l t d r

b. Do s no in l d a phra e use a , o in thee t cu e s d s r ,a a d n d. Ho e e , "y ur wo k wi l beb n o e w v r o r " l
na e o :m fde m d co pl t d a th e rle t o thee e m e e t e a i s f

fo l wi g i e :l o n t m s (1) An pe so o o g nz t o , o he th n y u;y r n r r a i a i n t r a o
or(a) Whe a l o th wo k ca l d fo i y un l f e r l e r n o r

co tr ct ha b e o pe e .n a s e n c m l t d (2) An busin ss, o a y o th pre i e ,y e r n f e m s s
go ds, pro uct , se vce o wo k o a yo d s r i s r r , f n(b) Whe a l o th wo k to be do e a then l f e r n t
pe so r r a i a i n t e ha o .r n o o g nz t o , o h r t n y uj b sit ha be n co pl t d i y uo e s e m e e f o r

Pa e20 o 21g f CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

pect
Section

cla

clu

occur

"occurre

ctro

Water.



COMM RCI L G NERAL IAB LI YE A E L I T

25. "Su t m a s a civ l pro e dn i whi h da a ei " e n i c e i g n c m g s (a) Y uo ;
be a se o "bo i y in u y , "pro e ty da a e oc u f d l j r " p r m g " r (b) Ot e s t a i g nd r y u a e rh r r d n u e o r n m ; o
"pe so a a d a v rt si g i j ry to whi h thir n l n d e i n nu " c s

(c) A pe so o or a i a i n who er n r g nz t o si sura ce a pl e a e al ge . "Su t i cl de :n n p i s r l e d i " n u s
bu i e s o a se s y u ha e a qu re ;sn s r s t o v c i d

a. An a bt a i n pro e di g i whi h suchr i r t o c e n n c a dn
da a e a e cla m d a d to whi h th in urem g s r i e n c e s d

(2) Co t i e s (o he tha v hi l s), m t ri l ,n an r t r n e ce a e as
m st subm t o do s sub i wi h o r co se tu i r e m t t u n n ;

pa t o e upm n furn she i co ne ti nr s r q i e t i d n n c o
or

wi h uch g o s o ro uct .t s o d r p d s

b. An o he al e n ti e di put re out oy t r t r a v s e s l i n b. In l d s:cu e
pr ce di g in whi h such d m ge a e cl i eo e n c a a s r am d

(1) Wa ra ti s o re re e ta i ns m de a a yr n e r p s n t o a t na d to whi h th in ure subm ts wit o rn c e s d i h u
ti e wi h re pe t to the fi n ss, qua i ym t s c t e l t ,co se t.n n
du a i i y pe fo m n e o use o "y urr b l t , r r a c r f o

26. "Te p ra y wo k r m a s a pe so who im o r r e " e n r n s pro uct ; ndd " a
fu ni he to y u to substi ut fo a pe m ne tr s d o t e r r a n

(2) The pro i i g o o fa l re to pro i evd n f r i u vd"e pl y e o l a e o to m e se so a o sho tm o e " n e v r e t a n l r r -
wa ni g o n tr ct o s.r n s r i s u i nte m w r l a o di i n .r o ko d c n t o s

c. Do s no i cl de v ndng m chne o o h re t n u e i a i s r t e27. "Ti l " m a s a na e o l t r r r a t sti o kt e e n m f a i e a yo r i c w r .
pro e ty re t d to o l ca e fo the use op r n e r o t d r f

28. "Unso i co m nca i n m a s a yl d m u i t o " e n n o h r b t no sodt e s u t l .
co m nca i n in a y fo m tha th re i nt om u i t o , n r , t e e f

31. "Y u o k :o r w r "such co m nca i n di no spe i a l re ue t tom u i t o d t f c l y q s
a. M a s:e nre ev .c i e

(1) Wo k o o e a i n pe f rm d by y u o or r p r t o s r o e o r n29. "Vo u t e wo k r m a s a pe so who i no y ul n e r r e " e n r n s t o r
y ur e af; a do b h l n"e pl y e , a d who do a e hi o he wo k a dm o e " n n t s s r r r n

a t a th di e ti n o a d wi hi the sco e oc s t e r c o f n t n p f (2) M te i l , pa t o e upm n furn she ina r as r s r q i e t i d
du i s de e m n d by y u a d is no pad a fe ,t e t r i e o , n t i e co ne ti n wi h uch w r o pe a i n .n c o t s o k r o r t o s
saa y o o he co pe sa i n by y u o a y n esel r r t r m n t o o r n o e l

b. In l d s:cu efo her o k p r o m d f r o .r t i w r e f r e o y u
(1) Wa ra ti s o re re e ta i ns m de a a yr n e r p s n t o a t n30. "Y u ro uct :o r p d "

ti e wi h re pe t to the fi n ss, qua i ym t s c t e l t ,
a. M a s:e n du a i i y pe fo m n e o use o "y urr b l t , r r a c r f o

(1) An go d o pro uct , o h r th n re l wo k ; a dy o s r d s t e a a r " n
pro e ty m n f ct r d sod ha de ,p r , a u a u e , l , n l d (2) The pro i i g o o fa l re to pro i evd n f r i u vd
di tr bu e r dspo e f ys i t d o i s d o b : o n tr ct o s.r i s u i n

CG 1 0 02 1T 0 9 Pa e 21 o 21g f© 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

cite
cip

ci

warnings



 − 54 −2023 Wisconsin Act 73  2023 Senate Bill 268

ture, as provided under s. 13.172 (2), regarding the status
of the directory maintained under sub. (6), manufacturers
and electronic vaping devices included in the directory,
revenue and expenditures related to administration of
this section, and enforcement activities undertaken pur-
suant to this section.

SECTION 64b.  Tax 8.87 of the administrative code is
repealed.

SECTION 64c.0Nonstatutory provisions.

(1)  TRANSFER OF ALCOHOL BEVERAGES REGULATION

AND ENFORCEMENT FUNCTIONS.

(a)  Definitions.  In this subsection:
1.  “Department” means the department of revenue.
2.  “Division” means the division of alcohol bever-

ages in the department.
3.  “Secretary” means the secretary of revenue.
(b)  Assets and liabilities.  On the effective date of this

paragraph, the assets and liabilities of the department pri-
marily related to alcohol beverages regulation and
enforcement under ch. 125, as determined by the secre-
tary, become the assets and liabilities of the division.

(c)  Tangible personal property.  On the effective date
of this paragraph, all tangible personal property, includ-
ing records, of the department that is primarily related to
alcohol beverages regulation and enforcement under ch.
125, as determined by the secretary, is transferred to the
division.

(d)  Contracts.  All contracts entered into by the
department in effect on the effective date of this para-
graph that are primarily related to alcohol beverages reg-
ulation and enforcement under ch. 125, as determined by
the secretary, remain in effect and are transferred to the
division.  The division shall carry out any obligations
under those contracts unless modified or rescinded by the
division to the extent allowed under the contract.

(e)  Position and employee transfers.  On the effective
date of this paragraph, all positions, and the incumbent
employees who hold those positions, in the department
with duties that are primarily related to alcohol beverages
regulation and enforcement under ch. 125, as determined
by the secretary, are transferred to the division.

(f)  Employee status.  Employees transferred under
par. (e) have all the rights and the same status under ch.
230 in the division that they enjoyed in the department
immediately before the transfer.  Notwithstanding s.
230.28 (4), no employee transferred under par. (e) who
has attained permanent status in class is required to serve
a probationary period.

(g)  Rules and orders.  All rules promulgated by the
department that relate to alcohol beverages regulation
and enforcement under ch. 125 and that are in effect on
the effective date of this paragraph remain in effect until
their specified expiration dates or until amended or
repealed by the division.  All orders issued by the depart-
ment that relate to alcohol beverages regulation and
enforcement under ch. 125 and that are in effect on the

effective date of this paragraph remain in effect until their
specified expiration dates or until modified or rescinded
by the division.

(h)  Pending matters.  Any matter pending with the
department on the effective date of this paragraph that is
primarily related to alcohol beverages regulation and
enforcement under ch. 125, as determined by the secre-
tary, is transferred to the division.  All materials submit-
ted to or actions taken by the department with respect to
the pending matters are considered as having been sub-
mitted to or taken by the division.

(i)  Fees.  All fees established by the department
related to permits issued under ch. 125 that are in effect
on the day before the effective date of this paragraph shall
remain in effect until modified or rescinded by the divi-
sion.

(j)  Secretary to develop plan for orderly transfer.  The
secretary shall develop a plan for an orderly transfer from
the department to the division and shall resolve any dis-
agreement between the department and the division with
respect to any matter specified in this subsection.  The
secretary’s plan for orderly transfer shall include the
transfer of positions under par. (e) plus the transfer of a
sufficient number of currently vacant authorized FTE
positions in the department to total 20.0 FTE positions in
the division as well as initial staffing assignments in the
division.

(2)  TRANSITION; PERMIT ISSUER.  On the effective date
of this subsection, any permit issued by the department
of revenue under ch. 125 prior to the effective date of this
subsection shall be considered to have been issued by the
division of alcohol beverages.

(3)  EXPIRATION OF RETAIL LICENSES HELD BY PRODUC-
ERS.  Notwithstanding s. 125.04 (11) (b), any retail license
issued under ch. 125 to a winery or a brewer shall expire
on the effective date of this subsection and the license
shall be nonrenewable.

(4)  RETAIL CLOSING HOUR EXCEPTION FOR 2024

NATIONAL POLITICAL CONVENTION.

(a)  In this subsection:
1.  “Convention period” means the period beginning

on the first day of a national political convention held in
Milwaukee in the summer of 2024 until the day after the
convention’s last day.

2.  “Municipality” has the meaning given in s. 125.02
(11).

3.  “Southeast Wisconsin municipality” means a
municipality any part of which is located within
Kenosha, Racine, Walworth, Rock, Milwaukee, Wauke-
sha, Jefferson, Dane, Ozaukee, Washington, Dodge,
Columbia, Sheboygan, or Fond du Lac County.

(b) 1.  Notwithstanding s. 125.32 (3) (a), but subject
to subds. 2. and 3., during the convention period, the clos-
ing hours for premises operating under a Class “B”
license issued by a southeast Wisconsin municipality
shall be between 4 a.m. and 6 a.m.

Lacey Reynolds
Highlight



 − 55 − 2023 Wisconsin Act 73 2023 Senate Bill 268

2.  A southeast Wisconsin municipality may establish
a process to designate, and may so designate, any licensee
holding a license issued by the southeast Wisconsin
municipality and to which subd. 1. would otherwise
apply as ineligible or disqualified for the extended clos-
ing hour specified in subd. 1.

3.  Notwithstanding s. 125.32 (3) (d), a southeast Wis-
consin municipality may, by ordinance adopted after the
effective date of this subdivision, opt out of subd. 1. and
retain during the convention period the closing hours
specified in s. 125.32 (3) (a).

(c) 1.  Notwithstanding s. 125.68 (4) (c) 1., but subject
to subds. 2. and 3., during the convention period, the clos-
ing hours for premises operating under a “Class B” or
“Class C” license issued by a southeast Wisconsin
municipality shall be between 4 a.m. and 6 a.m.

2.  A southeast Wisconsin municipality may establish
a process to designate, and may so designate, any licensee
holding a license issued by the southeast Wisconsin
municipality and to which subd. 1. would otherwise
apply as ineligible or disqualified for the extended clos-
ing hour specified in subd. 1.

3.  Notwithstanding s. 125.68 (4) (c) 5., a southeast
Wisconsin municipality may, by ordinance adopted after
the effective date of this subdivision, opt out of subd. 1.
and retain during the convention period the closing hours
specified in s. 125.68 (4) (c) 1.

(d) 1.  Notwithstanding ss. 125.29 (8) (a), 125.52 (5)
(a), and 125.53 (4) (a), but subject to subds. 2. and 3., dur-
ing the convention period, the closing hours for a full−
service retail outlet under s. 125.29 (7), 125.52 (4), or
125.53 (3), and the on−premises sales hours on brewery
premises, manufacturing or rectifying premises, and
winery premises, operating in a southeast Wisconsin
municipality shall be between 4 a.m. and 6 a.m.

2.  A southeast Wisconsin municipality may establish
a process to designate, and may so designate, premises in
the municipality of any permittee under s. 125.29,
125.52, or 125.53 to which subd. 1. would otherwise
apply as ineligible or disqualified for the extended clos-
ing hour specified in subd. 1.

3.  A southeast Wisconsin municipality may, by ordi-
nance adopted after the effective date of this subdivision,
opt out of subd. 1. and retain during the convention period
the closing hours specified in ss. 125.29 (8) (a), 125.52
(5) (a), and 125.53 (4) (a), as unaffected by par. (b).

(5m)  TRANSITION; INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION AUTHOR-
ITY.  The administrator of the division of income, sales
and excise tax in the department of revenue shall have
interim authority to undertake all measures necessary to
implement the changes in this act by the effective date of
each change, including taking action in preparation for
the creation of a division of alcohol beverages and
appointment of a division administrator and bureau
directors.

SECTION 64d.0Initial applicability.

(1)  SAFE RIDE SURCHARGE.  The treatment of s.
346.657 (1) first applies to violations committed on the
effective date of this subsection.

(2)  JURISDICTION OVER OUT−OF−STATE PERMITTEES.

The treatment of s. 125.535 (3) (b) 3., (c), (d), and (e), the
renumbering of s. 125.58 (2), the renumbering and
amendment of s. 125.30 (3), the amendment of s. 125.30
(2), and the creation of ss. 125.30 (2) (d) and (3) (b) and
125.58 (2) (b) and (c) first apply with respect to permits
issued after the effective date of this subsection.

SECTION 65.0Effective dates.  This act takes effect on
the first day of the 5th month beginning after publication,
except as follows:

(1)  RETAIL SALE OF ELECTRONIC VAPING DEVICES.  The
treatment of ss. 134.65 (title), (1), (1g), (1r), (2m), (3m),
(4), (5m), and (8) and 134.66 (1) (g), the renumbering and
amendment of s. 134.65 (1m), and the creation of s.
134.65 (1m) (a) 1. and 2. and (b) take effect on the 90th
day after the day of publication.

(2m)  DOR ENFORCEMENT; ALCOHOL VAPOR DEVICES.

The treatment of ss. 40.02 (48) (am) 19. and (c), 71.78
(1), (1g), (4) (b) and (v), (5), and (6), 71.83 (6), 72.06,
73.03 (51b), 73.031, 77.61 (5) (am), (b) 2. and 15., (c),
and (d), 78.80 (3), 125.02 (1c), 125.09 (8), 134.65 (1a),
139.11 (4) (a) (intro.), 139.38 (6), 139.44 (2), (2m), and
(8) (a), (am), (b), (c), and (d), 139.82 (6), 230.36 (1m) (b)
2. (intro.) and (2m) (a) 9., 565.01 (6c), 565.02 (9) (intro.),
565.17 (5) (a) and (d), 565.40 (title) and (4), 565.50 (2),
(2m), (3), and (4), 946.82 (4), and 995.15, the renumber-
ing of s. 565.02 (8) (e), and the renumbering and amend-
ment of s. 565.02 (8) (f) take effect on the day after publi-
cation.

(3m)  TRANSITION; INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION AUTHOR-
ITY.  SECTION 64c of this act takes effect on the day after
publication.

(4m)  FULFILLMENT HOUSES AND COMMON CARRIERS.

The treatment of ss. 125.02 (6d), 125.025 (3) (by SECTION

21m), 125.12 (5) (a) (by SECTION 25L), 125.22, 125.23,
125.535 (7), 125.68 (10) (a) and (b), 139.08 (5), and
139.11 (1) (by SECTION 40o) and (4) (b) 2. takes effect on
the first day of the 13th month beginning after publica-
tion.

(5m)  NEW PERMIT FEES.  The treatment of s. 125.04
(8) (title), the renumbering of s. 125.04 (8), and the cre-
ation of s. 125.04 (8) (b) take effect on the first day of the
13th month beginning after publication.

(6m)  COOPERATIVE WHOLESALERS.  The treatment of
ss. 125.545 (title), (1) (a), (ar), (cm), (d), (e), and (em), (2)
(a) 1., 3. b., and 4., (b), and (c), (3) (a) 2. (by SECTION

26hc) and 2m., (b), and (c), (4), (6) (a) 1. (by SECTION

26hk), 2m., 3m., and 4. (by SECTION 26hq), and (7) (by
SECTION 26ht) and 185.043 (2) (by SECTION 49d) takes
effect on the first day of the 13th month beginning after
publication.

(7m)  OPERATOR’S PERMIT.  The treatment of ss. 125.02
(14m) (by SECTION 21g), 125.04 (3) (a) (intro.) (by SEC-

Lacey Reynolds
Highlight

Lacey Reynolds
Highlight



PLAN COMMISSION – FINDING OF FACT 
 
DATE:  May 16, 2024 
PROJECT: Jeff Schultz, JRS Holdings- Transportation Facility 
PC ID:  E24.04.008 
ACTION: Conditional Use Permit 
 
 
The City of Elkhorn Plan Commission officially convened on May 2, 2024, to 
consider the Conditional Use Permit application submitted by Jeff Schultz, JRS 
Holdings for a transportation facility. 
 
After considering the Conditional Use Permit application, the staff report, oral 
and written testimony, the Elkhorn 2040 Comprehensive Development Plan, the 
Zoning on the subject property, and other materials presented at the meeting, 
the Plan Commission does hereby make the following “finding of fact”: 
 
FINDING OF FACT 
 
1) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a transportation facility on 

the subject property, if properly conditioned, are in accordance with the 
intent and purpose of Chapter 17 (Zoning) of the City of Elkhorn Municipal 
Code. 
 

2) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a transportation facility on 
the subject property, if properly conditioned, are compatible with other uses 
permitted in the same zone or vicinity. 
 

3) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a transportation facility on 
the subject property, if properly conditioned, will not be hazardous, harmful, 
offensive, or otherwise adverse to the environment. 
 

4) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a transportation facility on 
the subject property, if properly conditioned, will not be detrimental to the 
value of the neighborhood or community. 

 
Based upon the “Findings of Fact”, the Plan Commission motioned, seconded, 
and voted to recommend APPROVAL of the Conditional Use Permit application 
to the Common Council. 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT No. 24-05 

 
JEFF SCHULTZ, JRS HOLDINGS/BULK MATERIAL TRUCKING – 702 S NATHAN LANE 

 
 
Pursuant to Section 17.5-1 of the City of Elkhorn Municipal Code, A “Transportation Facility” located at 702 S Nathan 
Lane, Tax Key Parcel YU SW 00047D, shall be permitted as a Conditional Use. The operation at said location shall be 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

1. The project shall be developed in accordance with the plan of operations.  Any deviation from the approved 
plans shall require zoning administrator and/or Plan Commission approval. 

2. Tires shall never be stored outdoors in public view. 
3. Dumpsters shall be fully enclosed, and the property owner shall apply for applicable permits pertaining to 

fencing or screening. 
4. The maximum number of semi-trucks and/or trailers combined shall never exceed 15. 
5. Outdoor storage or parking of vehicles, semi-trucks, or trailers shall always be on a hard surface, and never on 

grass. 
6. Mechanical work shall be exclusive to BMT and shall not be available to the general public. 
7. Adequate loading areas shall be provided so that that all vehicles loading, maneuvering, or unloading are 

completely off public ways and so all vehicles never need to back up into public ways. 
8. The operation shall not locate, store, discharge, or permit the discharge of any treated, untreated, or 

inadequately treated liquid, gaseous, or solid materials of such nature, quantity, toxicity, obnoxiousness, or 
temperature that might run off, seep, percolate, or wash or be harmful to human, animal, plant, or aquatic 
life. 

9. Applicant shall provide reimbursement to the City, all costs incurred by the City for review of this conditional 
use including but not limited to engineering, legal and planning review that occurred prior to permit issuance 
and during the implementation of the plans and improvements on site. 

10. The applicant accepts the conditional use approval/zoning permit and beginning the project means that you 
have read, understand, and agree to follow all conditions of this approval. Therefore, JRS Holdings, and Bulk 
Material Trucking their heirs, successors, and assigns are responsible for full compliance with the above 
conditions. 
 

 
 

Failure to fully comply with the above stated conditions shall be considered grounds for revocation of this permit. 
 

Common Council of the City of Elkhorn 
 

By: ________________________________    Attest: ________________________________ 
                                   Tim Shiroda, Mayor       Lacey L. Reynolds, City Clerk 

 
State of Wisconsin     State of Wisconsin 
County of Walworth     County of Walworth 
Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me     Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me 
this__________  day of  ________________ 20__,   this_______ day of  ________________ 20__, 
 
           
                                              Notary Public         Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: ________________     My Commission Expires: _________________ 
 

 
By: ________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Owner       Tenant 
 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 
 Printed Name      Printed Name 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Elkhorn – Conditional Use No. 09-04 - Page 2 

State of Wisconsin       State of Wisconsin   
County of Walworth       County of Walworth  
Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me    Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me   
this__________ day of  ________________ 20__,  this__________ day of  ________________ 20__, 
     
    ________________________________________ 
                                              Notary Public                 Notary Public 
   
My Commission Expires: _________________     My Commission Expires: _________________  
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Allison Schwark, Zoning Administrator 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKHORN 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

NEEDS ANALYSIS/STUDY OF FIRE STATION 

 

  

Issued May 30, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

CITY OF ELKHORN 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

NEEDS ANALYSIS/STUDY OF FIRE STATION 

May 30, 2024 

 

The City of Elkhorn is seeking proposals from qualified firms for a comprehensive 

needs assessment of the Elkhorn Area Fire Department. The assessment shall 

identify the current state of the facility, identify deficiencies, and provide 

recommendations for improvements to the existing facility to meet current and 

future operational needs. If the analysis determines that the existing station can not 

be upgraded, renovated, or expanded to meet the required needs, the City is also 

seeking recommendations on possible locations for a new facility. The evaluation 

shall include cost estimates for each option considered by the firm, i.e. remodel of 

existing station or building a new facility. It is anticipated that the contract for this 

study will be approved on July 15, 2024. The study shall be completed no later 

than October 4, 2024. 

 

Proposals may be mailed or delivered electronically. All proposals must be 

received by no later than noon on Thursday, June 20, 2024. Proposals delivered 

or received after the submittal deadline will be deemed late and rejected. There are 

no exceptions to this requirement.  

 

If submitting a proposal by mail, the proposal must be placed in a sealed envelope, 

plainly marked “Sealed Proposal for Needs Analysis/Study of Fire Station” and 

addressed to the following: 

 

Matthew Lindstrom 

City of Elkhorn 

Director of Public Works 

PO Box 920 | 311 Seymour Ct. 

Elkhorn, WI 53121 

 

If submitting a proposal electronically, please send it to Matthew Lindstrom, 

Director of Public Works, at mlindstrom@cityofelkhorn.org.  

  

Inquiries regarding this RFP may be directed to Matthew Lindstrom, Director of 

Public Works, either by phone at 262.723.2223 or e-mail at 

mlindstrom@cityofelkhorn.org. 



3 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 

Community Information 

 

The City of Elkhorn is located in the center of Walworth County, Wisconsin, and 

serves as the county seat. Elkhorn has a population of approximately 10,240 people 

according to the most recent 2022 Census estimate. In the past year the City has 

seen an increase in commercial and industrial development that is expected to 

continue. There is a large mixed-use multi-family residential and commercial 

project under development. The City’s desirable location near the crossroads of     

IH-43 and Highway 12 is likely to encourage growth in the City for the foreseeable 

future. 

 

Fire Department Information 

 

The Elkhorn Area Fire Department (EAFD) is comprised of two divisions: Fire 

Protection Services and Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Both divisions 

provide services for the City of Elkhorn along with the Townships of Sugar Creek, 

Geneva, and Lafayette, with a total coverage area of 103 square miles. Most 

personnel are cross trained in both disciplines Fire and EMS. 

 

The EAFD currently runs all operations out of a single fire station, originally 

constructed in 1971, and located at 13 S. Broad St. in Downtown Elkhorn.  

Building additions were added, at unknown times, for EMS operations and 

apparatus storage off the rear and south side of the station. Said additions nearly 

span the entire footprint of the existing lot. Ingress/egress to rear apparatus storage 

is limited to a narrow alley on the north side of the station. The City purchased 

land and constructed a station parking lot off the south side of the station in 2022.  

The parking lot has (9) regular stalls and (1) handicap stall. It also includes a small 

existing storage garage. Other than a single off-street parking stall (marked for fire 

staff only), said lot is the only designated parking area solely for the EAFD staff. 

 

Considering the age, size and limitations of the existing station and knowing it was 

originally designed and built to serve as an all-volunteer department, it has been 

determined that a needs analysis/study is warranted. 

 

 

 



4 

 

The EAFD is a combination department, transitioning towards a complete paid 

career department. The EAFD currently consists of 28 employees as follows: 

(1) Fire Chief, (1) Assistant Fire Chief, (1) Administrative Assistant, (24) Career 

personnel, and (1) Paid on Call.  In 2023 EAFD responded to approximately 2,285 

calls for service. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The City of Elkhorn is seeking proposals from qualified firms for a comprehensive 

needs assessment of the Elkhorn Area Fire Department. The assessment shall 

identify the current state of the facility, identify deficiencies, and provide 

recommendations for improvements to the existing facility to meet current and 

future operational needs. If the analysis determines that the existing station can not 

be upgraded, renovated, or expanded to meet the required needs, the City is also 

seeking recommendations on possible locations for a new facility. The evaluation 

shall include cost estimates for each option considered by the firm, i.e. remodel of 

existing station or building a new facility. It is anticipated that the contract for this 

study will be approved on July 15, 2024. The study shall be completed no later 

than October 4, 2024. 

 

A. Meet with the Fire Chief and staff to discuss potential growth and areas of 

focus for plausible remodel. 

 

B. Prepare and present a summary plan outlining space needs and plausibility 

of remodeling the current facility to handle the required day-to-day 

operations of the fire department, presently and future considerations. The 

summary shall consider: 

a. Facility Condition Asseddment (compliance with building 

codes/regulations, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, etc.) 

b. Operational Needs (work space, training areas, living quarters, 

storage, apparatus bays, equipment storage needs, staff parking, 

decontamination space, shower facilities, etc.) 

c. Safety and Compliance Review (health and safety hazards, 

compliance with OSHA and NFPA standards) 

d. Community and Service Demand Analysis (consideration of 

community growth patterns and future development plans, stations’ 

location to service coverage area) 

 

 

 



5 

 

C. Summary Plan shall incorporate cost estimates for each improvement, 

renovation or expansion option considered. The Plan shall consider at least 

one option for “new facility location” with cost estimate. 

 

D. It is expected that the study will define and illustrate the space needs and 

conceptual layout from a personnel, training, equipment, storage and site 

operations perspective. This shall be a full-service facility that when 

designed and constructed shall take into account current needs, short-term 

future needs as well as a facility ready to handle long term expectations and 

technology/infrastructure that enhances the service our Fire Department 

provides to the community. 

 

E. This study is intended to be provided to the engineer/architectural firm to 

undertake design and development of this facility. 

 

F. Disclaimer 

a. This section is not meant to provide an exhaustive and complete scope 

of service. Items may be added or removed to this scope of services.  

A final scope of services agreement will need to be arranged between 

the City and Consultant. 

 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 

 

Proposals may be mailed or delivered electronically. All proposals must be 

received by no later than noon on Thursday, June 20, 2024. Proposals delivered 

or received after the submittal deadline will be deemed late and rejected. There are 

no exceptions to this requirement.  

 

All proposals shall be as follows: 

 

1. Cover letter. 

2. Provide a brief and concise statement of the understanding of the space 

needs analysis/study. 

3. Identify the qualifications of the consultant, including relevant projects, 

particularly projects in providing services similar to those in Scope of 

Services for municipal clients. 

4. Identify the project team and their expertise/experience with similar study’s. 

 

 



6 

 

5. The proposals shall identify references from municipal clients for which the 

firm/individual to be assigned as the City’s point of contact have worked on 

likewise project and study’s. References must include the name, title, 

address, and phone number of the contact person. 

6. Define the project approach and identify the specific tasks involved in the 

performance of the proposed work effort and how these tasks would be 

implemented. 

7. Any additional information that the Consultant feels would aid the City in 

evaluating the firm’s ability to meet the selection criteria. 

8. The proposal shall include a quote for all costs associated with performing 

the proposed Space Needs Analysis/Study. If additional or alternative efforts 

are recommended these should be broken out separately from primary tasks. 

9. Provide a timeline for the anticipated completion of the study. 

 

City’s Rights and Options 

During the evaluation process, the City reserves the right to request additional 

information or clarifications from proposers, or to allow corrections of errors or 

omissions. At the discretion of the City, Consultants submitting proposals may be 

requested to make oral presentations as part of the evaluation process.  

 

The City reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any ideas in 

a proposal regardless of whether the proposal is selected. Submission of a proposal 

indicates acceptance by the Consultant of the conditions contained in this request 

for proposals, unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted and 

confirmed in the contract between the City and the Consultant selected.  

 

The City of Elkhorn reserves the right to reject any and all submittals, waive any 

irregularities, reissue all or part of this Request for Proposals, and not award any 

contract, all at its discretion and without penalty.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION AND EVALUATION SCHEDULE 

 

The following chart shows the anticipated schedule of events for submitting and 

evaluating proposals. This schedule is subject to change based on the City’s needs 

and best interests. 

 

City issues Request for Proposals May 30, 2024 

Deadline for submittal of proposals June 20, 2024 

Discussion and possible decision by 

Common Council regarding acceptance 

of a proposal from a Consultant 

July 1, 2024 

Discussion and possible decision by 

Common Council regarding execution 

of a Contract to perform Space Needs/ 

Analysis Study of Fire Station 

July 15, 2024 

  
 



Change in Broker Proposal
• Current Broker = Peter Rathsack

• Limited services provided
• Current commission is approximately $80k/year -  willing to lower to 

$60k/year

• Proposed Broker = A.J. Gallagher
• Benefits consulting 
• Compliance consulting 
• Communication materials 
• Provides Pay Transparency – invoices can be separate vs. now they are 

included in our costs to TPA
• Will negotiate for commission to be $47k/year. Change needs to take 

place before stop loss renewal is signed.



Estimated Cost Savings – HRA

Estimated HRA Savings (Reducing HRA contribution to half)
Family 500 EEs on Family 65 32,500
Single 250 EEs on Single 23 5,750

Savings 38,250

Reduce HRA

Estimated HRA Savings (Removing HRA)
Family 1000 EEs on Family 65 65,000
Single 500 EEs on Single 23 11,500

Savings 76,500

Remove HRA
Or

Estimated HRA Savings (HRA for employees only)
Single 500 EE Count 88 44,000

Savings $32,500

HRA only for Employees Option

Or



Estimated Cost Savings – Adding a Premium
Final Proposal Numbers 

Total 
Expected 

Cost per EE
Single 1062.06
Family 3207.3

Monthly Premiums

5% of Total 
Expected 
Cost

EE Cost Per Pay 
Period

2.5% of Total 
Expected Cost

EE Cost Per 
Pay Period

2% of Total 
Expected Cost

EE Cost Per Pay 
Period

1.75% of Total 
Expected Cost

EE Cost 
Per Pay 
Period

1.5% of 
Total 
Expected 
Cost

EE Cost 
Per Pay 
Period

1% of Total 
Expected 
Cost

EE Cost 
Per Pay 
Period

Employee Only 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Employee + Spouse 107.26 53.63 53.63 26.82 42.90 21.45 37.54 18.77 32.18 16.09 21.45 10.73

Employee + Child(ren) 107.26 53.63 53.63 26.82 42.90 21.45 37.54 18.77 32.18 16.09 21.45 10.73
Employee + Family 160.37 80.18 80.18 40.09 64.15 32.07 56.13 28.06 48.11 24.05 32.07 16.04

Estimated Premium Savings

5% Premium 2.5% Premium 2% Premium 1.75% Premium 1.5% Premium 1% Premium

Coverage
# of 

Employees
Overall Savings 

per Month
Overall Savings 

per Year

Overall 
Savings per 

Month
Overall Savings 

per Year
Overall Savings 

per Month
Overall Savings per 

Year

Overall 
Savings 

per Month

Overall 
Savings per 

Year

Overall 
Savings 

per Month

Overall 
Savings per 

Year

Overall 
Savings 

per Month

Overall 
Savings per 

Year
Single 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Family 43 6,896 82,748 3,448 41,374 2,758 33,099 2,413 28,962 2,069 24,825 1,379 16,550
EE + Spouse 12 1,287.14 15,446 643.57 7,723 514.86 6,178 450.50 5,406 386.14 4,634 257.43 3,089
EE + Children 10 1,072.62 12,871 536.31 6,436 429.05 5,149 375.42 4,505 321.79 3,861 214.52 2,574

111,065.51 55,532.75 44,426.20 38,872.93 33,319.65 22,213.10

* Total expected cost per EE may change if new broker is approved, as commission will decrease.

EE Cost Per Pay Period includes 24 periods versus 26 as deductions would be taken on the 1st and 2nd 
payroll of each month.


	05a HRMinutes 05.01.24.pdf
	CITY OF ELKHORN

	05aiv HR Minutes 05.16.24.pdf
	CITY OF ELKHORN

	ADPC7A1.tmp
	Owner       Tenant
	Printed Name      Printed Name

	12d Group Health Insurance - Council Packet.pdf
	2024-2025�Group Health Insurance Review
	Background
	Background
	Background
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Other Municipalities
	Slide Number 8
	Current Plan Details
	Possible Changes to Existing Self-Insured Plan- Implement all or some
	Change in Broker Proposal
	Timeline
	Estimated Cost Savings – HRA
	Estimated Cost Savings – Adding a Premium
	Estimated Cost Savings – Adding a Premium
	Change in Schedule of Benefits
	Estimated Cost Savings – Adding a Premium
	Questions to the Committee




